Chorley

Council

Development Control
Committee

Agenda and Reports

For consideration on

Tuesday, 8th December 2009

In the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Chorley
At 6.30 pm




PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC SPEAKING AT MEETINGS OF THE DEVELOPMENT
CONTROL COMMITTEE

4.

5.

Persons must give notice of their wish to address the Committee, to the
Democratic Services Section by no later than midday, two working days before the
day of the meeting. (12 Noon on the Friday prior to the meeting)

One person to be allowed to address the Committee in favour of the officers
recommendations on respective planning applications and one person to be
allowed to speak against the officer’s recommendations.

In the event of several people wishing to speak either in favour or against the
recommendation, the respective group/s will be requested by the Chair of the
Committee to select one spokesperson to address the Committee.

If a person wishes to speak either in favour or against an application without
anyone wishing to present an opposing argument that person will be allowed to
address the Committee.

Each person/group addressing the Committee will be allowed a maximum of three
minutes to speak.

The Committees debate and consideration of the planning applications awaiting
decision will only commence after all of the public addresses.

ORDER OF SPEAKING AT THE MEETINGS

The Corporate Director (Business) or her representative will describe the proposed
development and recommend a decision to the Committee. A presentation on the
proposal may also be made.

An objector/supporter will be asked to speak, normally for a maximum of three
minutes. There will be no second chance to address Committee.

The applicant or her/his representative will be invited to respond, again for a
maximum of three minutes. As with the objector/supporter, there will be no second
chance to address Committee.

A local Councillor who is not a member of the Committee may speak on the
proposed development.

The Development Control Committee, sometimes with further advice from Officers,
will then discuss and come to a decision on the application.

There will be no questioning of speakers by Councillors or Officers, and no questioning of
Councillors or Offices by speakers.




Cheorley

Council

Town Hall
Market Street
Chorley
Lancashire
PR7 1DP

27 November 2009

Dear Councillor

2DOEO\QELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 8TH DECEMBER

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Development Control Committee is to be held in the
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Chorley on Tuesday, 8th December 2009 at 6.30 pm.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence

2. Declarations of Any Interests

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal interest in respect of
matters contained in this agenda. If the interest arises only as result of your membership
of another public body or one to which you have been appointed by the Council then you
only need to declare it if you intend to speak.

If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, you must withdraw from the meeting.
Normally you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do,
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may remain in the
room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave immediately. In either case you
must not seek to improperly influence a decision on the matter.

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 16)

To confirm the minutes of the Development Control Committee meeting held on 10
November 2009 (enclosed).

4. Planning applications awaiting decision (Pages 17 - 18)

A table of planning applications to be determined is enclosed.

Please note that copies of the location and layout plans are included (where applicable)
on the agenda. Plans to be considered will be displayed at the meeting or may be viewed
in advance by following the links to current planning application on our website.
http://planning.chorley.gov.uk/PublicAccess/TDC/tdc_home.aspx

(a) 09/00640/FUL - 4, Ewell Close, Chorley (Pages 19 - 36)

Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).



09/00708/FUL - Land 15m West of 176A Wood Lane, Heskin, Lancashire (Pages
37 - 46)

Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).

09/00780/FUL - Land 50m South of 54 to 64 Lancaster Lane, Clayton-le-Woods,
Lancashire (Pages 47 - 58)

Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).

09/00873/FUL - Orcheton House Farm, Wood Lane, Heskin, Lancashire, PR7 5PA
(Pages 59 - 68)

Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).

09/00850/FUL - Formerly Multipart Distribution Limited, Pilling Lane, Chorley
(Pages 69 - 80)

Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).

09/00745/FULMAJ - Quarry Road Industrial Estate, Quarry Road, Chorley (Pages
81 -90)

Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).

09/00749/FULMAJ - Land between Froom Street and Crosse Hall Lane, Chorley
(Pages 91 - 108)

Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).

09/00714/FULMAJ - Land adjacent to Fairview Farm (including land bounded by
Chorley Road, Eller Brook and railway), Chorley Road, Adlington (Pages 109 -
128)

Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).

Planning Appeals Notification Report (Pages 129 - 132)

Report of Corporate Director (Business) (enclosed).

Delegated decisions determined by the Corporate Director (Business) in

consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Committee

(@)

Planning applications delegated on 25 November 2009 (Pages 133 - 134)

Table (enclosed)

Planning applications delegated on 24 November 2009 (Pages 135 - 136)

Table (enclosed)

Planning applications delegated on 20 November 2009 (Pages 137 - 138)

Table (enclosed)



(d) Planning applications delegated on 10 November 2009 (Pages 139 - 140)

Table (enclosed)

7. Delegated Decisions determined by the Corporate Director (Business) (Pages 141 -
150)

Schedule of applications determined between 29 October and 25 November 2009
(enclosed).

8. Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - Section 257 Public Path Diversion Order -
Part of Public Footpath No. 6, Adlington (Pages 151 - 154)

Report of Corporate Director (Governance) (enclosed). Location plan showing the current
and proposed footpaths will be circulated at the meeting.

9. Proposed Confirmation of Tree Preservation Orders (Pages 155 - 158)

Report of Corporate Director (Governance) (enclosed).

10. Any other item(s) that the Chair decides is/are urgent

Yours sincerely

%ovx vo.Hadl

Donna Hall
Chief Executive

Dianne Scambler

Democratic and Member Services Officer
E-mail: dianne.scambler@chorley.gov.uk
Tel: (01257) 515034

Fax: (01257) 515150

Distribution

1. Agenda and reports to all members of the Development Control Committee, (Councillor
Harold Heaton (Chair), Councillor Geoffrey Russell (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Ken Ball,
Julia Berry, Judith Boothman, Alistair Bradley, Henry Caunce, Mike Devaney, David Dickinson,
Dennis Edgerley, Christopher France, Keith Iddon, Roy Lees, June Molyneaux, Simon Moulton,
Mick Muncaster and Ralph Snape) for attendance.

2. Agenda and reports to Jane Meek (Corporate Director (Business)), Chris Moister (Legal Services
Manager), Paul Whittingham (Development Control Manager) and Dianne Scambler (Democratic
and Member Services Officer) for attendance.

This information can be made available to you in larger print
or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.

Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service.



a1 Hiledlatl agaie amsfl didiell erami sl asia 8. a1 Aaar Al Hoaal

-,

HIE Sul S31, ML AR UR Flot SR 01257 515822

, e ; +'| . T ~ - * - -] . T - -
o/ ..-.éj,‘:‘ur';_:}_,:’_a*;;::_' c'._;.,,,'lf“‘*..'.:r’.r:-..-:‘_L-L"'._:L- U‘quuggjg?'i o e Ly

01257 515823 1



Agenda Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

Development Control Committee

Tuesday, 10 November 2009

Present: Councillor Harold Heaton (Chair), Councillor Geoffrey Russell (Vice-Chair), Councillors
Ken Ball, Julia Berry, Judith Boothman, Alistair Bradley, Mike Devaney, David Dickinson,
Dennis Edgerley, Christopher France, Keith Iddon, Roy Lees, June Molyneaux, Simon Moulton
and Mick Muncaster

Officers: Jane Meek (Corporate Director (Business)), Chris Moister (Legal Services Manager),
Paul Whittingham (Development Control Manager), Andy Wiggett (Principal Planning Officer) and
Dianne Scambler (Democratic and Member Services Officer)

Also in attendance: Councillors Adrian Lowe (Chorley North East) and Edward Smith (Chisnall)

09.DC.91 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Henry Caunce and Ralph
Snape

09.DC.92 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS

No declarations of interest were declared.

09.DC.93 MINUTES
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting of the Development Control
Committee held on 13 October 2009 be held as a correct record for signing by
the Chair.

09.DC.94 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AWAITING DECISION

The Corporate Director (Business) submitted reports on nine planning applications for
planning permission to be determined by the Committee.

RESOLVED - That the planning applications as now submitted, be determined
in accordance with the Committee’s decisions recorded below:
(a) 09/00640/FUL - 4, Ewell Close, Chorley

(The Committee received representations from and objector to the proposals and the
applicant’s agent)

(The Ward Representative Councillor Adrian Lowe also spoke against the proposals)

Application no: 09/00640/FUL

Proposal: Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 7 two storey
detached dwellings with associated garages and infrastructure.

Location: 4, Ewell Close, Chorley

Decision:

It was proposed by Councillor Dennis Edgerley, seconded by Councillor Alistair
Bradley and was subsequently RESOLVED (12:2) to defer the decision to allow for
further dialogue between the planning officers and the developer.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 1
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 2 Agenda ltem 3

(b) 09/00696/FULMAJ - Land between Waggon and Horses Public House and
Summerfields, Chapel Lane, Coppull, Chorley

(The Committee received representation from an objector to the proposals and the

Applicant)

Application no: 09/00696/FULMAJ

Proposal: Residential development comprising 40 dwellings and
associated access roads

Location: Land between Waggon and Horses Public House and
Summerfields, Chapel Lane, Coppull

Decision:

It was proposed by Councillor Ken Ball, seconded by Councillor Roy Lees, and was
subsequently RESOLVED (10:2) to grant planning permission subject to a legal
agreement on contribution to play space provision and affordable housing and
the following conditions:

1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the
date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a
scheme for the disposal of foul and surface waters has been approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall be constructed
and completed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason : To ensure a satisfactory means of drainage and in accordance with
Policy No. EP18 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

3. No development shall take place until:

a methodology for investigation and assessment of ground contamination has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
investigation and assessment shall be carried out in accordance with current
best practice including British Standard 10175:2001 “Investigation of potentially
contaminated sites — Code of Practice”. The objectives of the investigation
shall be, but not limited to, identifying the type(s), nature and extent of
contamination present to the site, risks to receptors and potential for migration
within and beyond the site boundary;

all testing specified in the approved scheme (submitted under a) and the
results of the investigation and risk assessment, together with remediation
proposals to render the site capable of development have been submitted to the
Local Planning Authority;

the Local Planning Authority has given written approval to the remediation
proposals (submitted under b), which shall include an implementation timetable
and monitoring proposals. Upon completion of the remediation works, a
validation report containing any validation sampling results have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by
ensuring that the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the
proposed end use and in accordance with the guidance set out in PPS23:
Planning and Pollution Control

4. During the construction period, all trees to be retained shall be protected by
1.2 metre high fencing as specified in paragraph 8.2.2 of British Standard

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 2
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 3 Agenda ltem 3

BS5837:2005 at a distance from the tree trunk equivalent to the outermost limit
of the branch spread, or at a distance from the tree trunk equal to half the height
of the tree (whichever is further from the tree trunk), or as may be first agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority. No construction materials, spoil,
rubbish, vehicles or equipment shall be stored or tipped within the area(s) so
fenced. All excavations within the area so fenced shall be carried out by hand.
Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained and in accordance with Policy
No. EP9 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. Before the demolition of the buildings on the site the survey for the possible
presence of roosting bats as recommended in Section 5.2 of the report prepared
by Environmental Research and Advisory Partnership received on the 23"
December 2008 shall be carried out and the results submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any mitigation measures found to be
necessary shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
implemented before development on the site commences.

Reason: To secure the protection of vulnerable species in accordance with
Policy EP4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

6.No development shall take place until full details have been submitted of the
predicted energy use of the development expressed in terms of carbon
emissions and a schedule setting out how energy efficiency is being addressed,
including benchmark data. It will show the on-site measures to be installed and
implemented so as to produce a minimum of 10%, or locally set targets
(whichever is the higher) of the predicted energy use of the development by
means of low carbon energy sources. Appropriate on-site measures include
rainwater/brown water recycling. No development shall commence until the
scheme has been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such
details as may be approved shall be implemented and retained in perpetuity
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area, in line with the objective of
National Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning, the
Climate Change Supplement to PPS1 and Chorley Borough Council's
Sustainable Resources DPD.

(c) 09/00665/0UTMAJ - Park Mills, Deighton Road, Chorley

(The Committee received representations from an objector to the proposals)

Application no: 09/00665/0UTMAJ

Proposal: Outline application for residential development (specifying
access)

Location: Park Mills, Deighton Road, Chorley

Decision:

It was proposed by Councillor Roy Lees, seconded by Councillor David Dickinson,
and was subsequently RESOLVED to grant outline planning permission subject
to a Legal Agreement and the following conditions:

1. An application for approval of the reserved matters (namely layout, external
appearance of the buildings, scale and landscaping of the site) must be made to
the Council before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission
and the development hereby permitted must be begun two years from the date
of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved indicative Masterplan (reference 09-026 Drawing No: 001 Rev E

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 3
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 4 Agenda ltem 3

October 2009), in relation to the scale, including building heights, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable form of development for the site within the
parameters of the outline permission.

3. No development shall take place until:

a) A methodology for investigation and assessment of ground
contamination has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority. The investigation and assessment shall be carried in
accordance with current best practice including British Standard 10175:2001
‘Investigation of potentially contaminated site - Code of Practice’. The
objectives of the investigation shall be, but not limited to, identifying the
type(s), nature and extent of contamination present to the site, risks to
receptors and potential for migration within and beyond the site boundary;

b) All testing specified in the approved scheme (submitted under a) and the
results of the investigation and risk assessment, together with remediation
proposals to render the site capable of development have been submitted to the
Local Planning Authority;

c) The Local Planning Authority has given written approval to the
remediation proposals (submitted under b), which shall include an
implementation timetable and monitoring proposals. Upon completion of the
remediation works a validation report containing any validation sampling
results shall be submitted to the Local Authority.

Thereafter, the development shall only be carried out in full accordance with the
approved remediation proposals.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by
ensuring that the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the
proposed end use, in accordance with PPS23.

4. No part of the development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the
two vehicular accesses have been constructed in accordance with plans, which
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development thereafter shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved plans unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy
No.TR4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
notwithstanding any such detail which may have previously been submitted.
The scheme shall indicate all existing trees and hedgerows on the land; detail
any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of
development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and shrubs to be planted,
their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard landscaped;
and detail any changes of ground level or landform. All planting, seeding or
turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in
the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of any
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and
any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species,
unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 4
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 5 Agenda ltem 3

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and in accordance with
Policy No.GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

6. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until samples of all
external facing materials to the proposed building (notwithstanding any details
shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall only be carried out using the approved external facing materials unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the
locality and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 of the Adopted Chorley
Borough Local Plan Review.

7. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of
the colour, form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials
(notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans and
specification) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This shall include details of how the proposed
driveway/hardsurfacing to the front of the properties/communal areas shall be
constructed using permeable materials on a permeable base, or provision shall
be made to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or porous
area or surface within the boundaries of the property (rather than to the
highway). The development shall only be carried out in conformity with the
approved details unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Local Planning
Authority

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the
visual amenity of the area and to prevent flooding and in accordance with Policy
Nos. GN5 and HS9 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

8. Before any development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of
the surfacing, drainage and marking out of all car park and vehicle manoeuvring
areas shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The car park and vehicle manoeuvring areas shall be
provided in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of the
premises as hereby permitted. The car park and vehicle manoeuvring areas
shall not thereafter be used for any purpose other than the parking of and
manoeuvring of vehicles.

Reason: To ensure adequate on site provision of car parking and manoeuvring
areas and in accordance with Policy RT2 of the North West Regional Spatial
Strategy 2008.

9. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the
Management Company and arrangements for the future management and
maintenance of the site, including storage, collection of refuse and
management of the open space, shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall thereafter be managed by the
approved Management Company, or their successors, in accordance with the
approved arrangements.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory management of the site and in accordance
with Policies GN5, HS4 and TR4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

10. The site must be drained on a separate system, with only foul drainage
connected into the foul sewer. Surface water should discharge to the
soakaway/watercourse/surface water sewer and may require the consent of the
Environment Agency. If surface water is allowed to be discharged to the public
surface water sewerage system the Environment Agency may require the flow
to be attenuated to a maximum discharge rate determined by United Utilities.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 5
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 6 Agenda ltem 3

Reason: To secure proper drainage and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP17 of
the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

11. The application for approval of Reserved Matters shall be accompanied by
full details of the predicted energy use of the development expressed in terms
of carbon emissions. If no data specific to the application is available
benchmark data will be acceptable. A schedule should include how energy
efficiency is being addressed, for example, amongst other things through the
use of passive solar design. It will be flexible enough to show the on-site
measures to be installed and implemented so as to reduce carbon emissions by
the figure set out in policy SR1 of the Sustainable Resources DPD at the time of
commencement of each individual plot by means of low carbon sources. No
development shall commence until the scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details as may be
approved shall be implemented and retained in perpetuity unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In line with the objective of
National Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning, the
Climate Change Supplement to PPS1, Policies EM16 and EM17 of the Regional
Spatial Strategy and Chorley Borough Council’s Sustainable Resources DPD.

12. The application for approval of Reserved Matters shall demonstrate and
provide full details of how the design and layout of the buildings will withstand
climate change. The scheme shall include details of the Code for Sustainable
Homes Level, how the proposals minimise energy use and maximise energy
efficiency. All dwellings commenced after 2010 will be required to meet Level 3,
all dwellings commenced after 2013 will be required to meet Level 4 and all
dwellings commenced after 2016 will be required to meet Level 6 of the Codes
for Sustainable Homes. No development shall commence until the scheme has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details as may be approved shall be implemented and retained in
perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In line with the objective of
National Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning, the
Climate Change Supplement to PPS1, Policies EM16 and EM17 of the Regional
Spatial Strategy and Chorley Borough Council’s Sustainable Resources DPD.

13. The application for approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by
full details of the location of the on site affordable housing units. The
development shall only be carried out in conformity with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure the proper development of the site and in accordance with
Policy Nos. HS5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

14. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of
the position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected
(notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans) shall
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until all fences and walls shown in the
approved details to bound its plot have been erected in conformity with the
approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved details shall
have been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to substantial
completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide
reasonable standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No.
HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

15. During the construction period, all trees to be retained shall be protected by
1.2 metre high fencing as specified in paragraph 8.2.2 of British Standard
BS5837:2005. The trees on the southern boundary/southwest corner of the site

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 6
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 7 Agenda ltem 3

shall be fenced along the whole length of the trees, giving a minimum of six
metres clearance from the trunks of the trees. Any other trees to be retained ont
ehs tie shall be fenced at a distance from the tree trunk equivalent to the
outermost limit of the branch spread, or at a distance from the tree trunk equal
to half the height of the tree (whichever is further from the tree trunk), or as may
be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. No construction
materials, spoil, rubbish, vehicles or equipment shall be stored or tipped within
the areas so fenced. All excavations within the area so fenced shall be carried
out by hand.

Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained and in accordance with Policy
Nos. EP9 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

16. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to
be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out on the area of
land affected until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval
from the Local Planning Authority for, an amendment to the Method Statement
detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by
ensuring that the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the
proposed end use and in accordance with Government advice contained in
PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control.

17. Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied, provision for
cycle parking provision, in accordance with details to be first agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority, shall have been made.

Reason : To ensure adequate on site provision for cycle parking and in
accordance with Policy No. TR18 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

18. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the bin
storage facilities associated with the proposed residential units shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The bin
storage thereafter shall be constructed and retained in accordance with the
approved plans.

Reason: To ensure that adequate refuge storage is provided on site and in
accordance with Policy HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

19. The demolition of the existing buildings and subsequent development
hereby permitted shall only be carried out in accordance with the bat mitigation
proposals in sections 4.2-4.4 (inclusive) of the Report of Licensed Bat Survey
(dated May 2009) carried out by the Environmental Research & Advisory
Partnership.

Reason: To ensure the continued and future protection of bats and in
accordance with Policy EP4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review
and PPS9..

20. No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a
scheme for the provision and implementation of a surface water regulation
system has been approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
be completed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding and in accordance with PPG25.

21. The application for approval of reserved matters shall be accompanied by
full details of existing and proposed ground levels and proposed building slab
levels (all relative to ground levels adjoining the site), notwithstanding any such
detail shown on previously submitted plans. The development shall only be
carried out in conformity with the approved details.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 7
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 8 Agenda ltem 3

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality, in the interests of the
amenities of local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

(d) 09/011708/FUL - Land 15m West of 1776 A Wood Lane, Heskin
(The Committee received representations from an objector to the proposals, the

applicant’s agent and the ward representative, Councillor Edward Smith who spoke
against the development)

Application no: 09/00708/FUL

Proposal: Erection of detached bungalow

Location: Land 15m West of 176, Wood Lane, Heskin
Decision:

It was proposed by Councillor Dennis Edgerley, seconded by Councillor Mick
Muncaster, and was subsequently RESOLVED to defer the decision to allow the
Members of the Committee to visit the site of the proposed development.

(e) 09/00594/FULMAJ - Formerly Multipart Distribution Limited, Pilling Lane,

Chorley

Application no: 09/00594/FULMAJ

Proposal: Re-plan of part of the site including the construction of 42
dwellings, garages and associated works (amendment to
reserved matters approval 07/01228/REMMAJ) Including
amendments to existing parking areas to serve plots 343-351
and 371

Location: Formerly Multipart Distribution Limited, Pilling Lane, Chorley

Decision:

It was proposed by Councillor Dennis Edgerley, seconded by Councillor Simon
Moulton, and was subsequently RESOLVED to grant full planning permission
subject to the following conditions:

1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the
date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in conformity
with the proposed ground and building slab levels shown on the approved
plans or as may otherwise be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority before any development is first commenced.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in the interests of the
amenities of local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of
the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

3. No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
notwithstanding any such detail which may have previously been submitted.
The scheme shall indicate all existing trees and hedgerows on the land; detail
any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of
development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and shrubs to be planted,
their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard landscaped;
and detail any changes of ground level or landform.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and in accordance with
Policy No.GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

4. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 8
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 9 Agenda ltem 3

following the occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development,
whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of 5
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season
with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority
gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of the appearance of the locality and in accordance with
Policy No GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until samples of all
external facing materials to the proposed buildings (notwithstanding any details
shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall only be carried out using the approved external facing materials.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the
locality and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review

6. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of
the colour, form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials
(notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans and
specification) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out in conformity
with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the
visual amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of
the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

7. Surface water must drain separate from the foul and no surface water will be
permitted to discharge to the foul sewerage system.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP17 of
the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

8. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the
Management Company to deal with the future management and maintenance of
the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The site shall thereafter be managed by the approved Management
Company.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory management of the unadopted highways
and public open space and in accordance with Policies TR4 and HS21 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

9. The site shall be remediated in accordance with BAE Environmental
Remediation Strategy Report (Reference: A0356-02-R1-1). Upon completion of
the remediation works a verfication/ completion report containing any validation
sample results shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by
ensuring that the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the
proposed end use and in accordance with Government advice contained in
PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control

10. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until that part of the service
road which provides access to it from the public highway has been constructed
in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy
No.TR4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 9
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 10 Agenda ltem 3

11. The garages hereby permitted shall be kept freely available for the parking
of cars, notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995.

Reason: In order to safeguard the residential amenity and character of the area
and in accordance with Policy HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review

12. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the proposed
residents consultation procedure shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include information on how
the residents will be kept informed on the progress of the development prior to
commencement and during the development period. Additionally details of the
main contact / site manager during the development shall be provided to the
Local Planning Authority and the residents prior to the commencement of the
development. The residents consultation plan shall be implemented and
completed in accordance with the approved procedure.

Reason: To ensure that the existing residents are fully aware of the progress of
the development.

13. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of
the position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected
(notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans) shall
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until all fences and walls shown in the
approved details to bound its plot have been erected in conformity with the
approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved details shall
have been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to substantial
completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide
reasonable standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No.
HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

14. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the measures set out within the action plan of the Residential Travel Plan dated
April 2009 (submitted under application 09/00374/DIS).

Reason: To reduce the number of car borne trips and to encourage the use of
public transport and to accord with Policies TR1 and TR4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

(f) 09/00702/CB3 - Tatton Community Centre and Park, Silverdale Road,

Chorley
Application no: 09/00702/CB3
Proposal: Erection of 8m high flagpole to display Green Flag Award
Location: Tatton Community Centre, Silverdale Road, Chorley
Decision:

It was proposed by Councillor Chris France, seconded by Councillor June Molyneaux,
and was subsequently RESOLVED to recommend full Council to grant planning
permission

(9) 09/00703/CB3 - Nature Reserve bounded by Bury Lane and Bolton Road,

Withnell
Application no: 09/00703/CB3
Proposal: Erection of 8m high flagpole to display Green Flag Award
Location: Nature Reserve bounded by Bury Lane and Bolton Road,
Withnell
Decision:
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 10

Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 11 Agenda ltem 3

It was proposed by Councillor Keith Iddon, seconded by Councillor Simon Moulton,
and was subsequently RESOLVED to recommend full Council to grant planning
permission.

(h) 09/00783/FUL - Land 65m South East of Tesco Supermarket and on the
South side of Foxhole Road, Chorley

Application no: 09/00783/FUL
Proposal: Erection of Public House/Restaurant
Location: Land 65m south East of Tesco Superstore and on the South

side of Foxhole Road, Chorley
Decision:
It was proposed by Councillor Keith Iddon, seconded by Councillor David Dickinson,
and was subsequently RESOLVED to grant full planning permission subject to the
following conditions:

1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the
date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of
the position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected to the
site boundaries (notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously
submitted plans) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. No building shall be occupied or land used pursuant
to this permission before all walls and fences have been erected in accordance
with the approved details. Fences and walls shall thereafter be retained in
accordance with the approved details at all times.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to protect the
amenities of occupiers of nearby property and in accordance with Policy Nos.
GNS5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

3. The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in conformity
with the proposed ground and building slab levels shown on the approved
plans or as may otherwise be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority before any development is first commenced.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in the interests of the
amenities of local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

4. Surface water must drain separate from the foul and no surface water will be
permitted to discharge to the foul sewerage system.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP17 of
the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. The use hereby permitted shall be restricted to the hours between 10.00
hours and 00.00 hours Monday to Thursday, 10.00 hours and 01.00 hours Friday
and Saturday and 11.00 hours and 00.00 hours on Sundays.

Reason: To define the permitted opening hours and in accordance with Policy
Nos. EP20 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

6. No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
notwithstanding any such detail which may have previously been submitted.
The scheme shall indicate all existing trees and hedgerows on the land; detail
any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of
development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and shrubs to be planted,

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 11
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 12 Agenda ltem 3

their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard landscaped;
and detail any changes of ground level or landform.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and in accordance with
Policy No.GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

7. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development,
whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of 5
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season
with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority
gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of the appearance of the locality and in accordance with
Policy No GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

8. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of
the colour, form and texture of all external facing materials to the proposed
buildings (notwithstanding any details shown on the previously submitted plans
and specification) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out using the
approved external facing materials.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the
locality and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 of the Adopted Chorley
Borough Local Plan Review.

9. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of
the colour, form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials
(notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted plans and
specification) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out in conformity
with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the
visual amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5, DC8A of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

10. The first floor living accommodation shall be occupied and used only in
conjunction with the ground floor use hereby permitted (namely public house
Use Class A4 and restaurant Use Class A3) and shall not be used as a separate
dwelling unit.

Reason: The first floor living accommodation is to accommodate staff
associated with the permitted use of the site. The erection of a dwelling on this
site would be contrary to Policies EM1 and HS6 and as such to avoid the
creation of a separate dwelling unit on this site.

11. Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied, provision for
cycle parking provision, in accordance with details to be first agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority, shall have been made.

Reason : To ensure adequate on site provision for cycle parking and in
accordance with Policy No. TR18 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

(i) 09/00750/FUL - 605, Preston Road, Clayton-Le-Woods, Chorley

Application no: 09/00750/FUL

Proposal: Resubmission of application 09/00150/FUL amendment to
previously approved layout (08/00203/FULMAJ) and erection
of 7 detached houses/infrastructure on adjacent plot

Location: 605, Preston Road, Clayton-Le-Woods, Chorley

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 12
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 13 Agenda ltem 3

Decision:

It was proposed by Councillor Keith Iddon, seconded by Councillor David Dickinson,
and was subsequently RESOLVED (6:4) to grant planning permission subject to a
Legal Agreement and the conditions listed below, with Councillors David
Dickinson, Harold Heaton, Keith Iddon, Simon Moulton, Mick Muncaster and
Geoff Russell voting for and Councillors Julia Berry, Alistair Bradley, Mike
Devaney and Chris France voting against the proposals.

Councillors Ken Ball, Judith Boothman, Dennis Edgerley, Roy Lees and June
Molyneaux abstained.

1. No development shall take place until full details have been submitted of the
predicted energy use of the development expressed in terms of carbon
emissions and a schedule setting out how energy efficiency is being addressed,
including benchmark data. It will show on-site measures to be installed and
implemented so as to produce a minimum of 10% or locally set targets
whichever is the higher) of the predicted energy use of the development by
means of low carbon energy sources. Appropriate on-site measures include
rainwater/brown water recycling. No development shall commence until the
scheme has been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such
details as may be approved shall be implemented and retained in perpetuity
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area, in line with the objective of
National Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement : Planning, the
Climate Change Supplement to PPS1 and Chorley Borough Council’s Adopted
Sustainable Resources DPD.

2. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the
date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

3. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of
the colour, form and texture of all external facing materials to the proposed
buildings (notwithstanding any details shown on the previously submitted plans
and specification) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out using the
approved external facing materials.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the
locality and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

4. No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
notwithstanding any such detail which may have previously been submitted.
The scheme shall indicate all existing trees and hedgerows on the land; detail
any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of
development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and shrubs to be planted,
their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard landscaped;
and detail any changes of ground level or landform.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and in accordance with
Policy No.GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of
the position, height and appearance of all fences and walls, including those
along the rear of the site which abuts the commercial estate road from plot 10 to
plot 8, to be erected (notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously
submitted plans) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until all fences and

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 13
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 14 Agenda ltem 3

walls shown in the approved details to bound its plot have been erected in
conformity with the approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the
approved details shall have been erected in conformity with the approved
details prior to substantial completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide
reasonable standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No.
HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

6. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until the applicant
has submitted to and had approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a
report to identify any potential sources of contamination on the site and where
appropriate, necessary remediation measures. The report should include an
initial desk study, site walkover and risk assessment and if the initial study
identifies the potential for contamination to exist on site, the scope of a further
study must then be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and
thereafter undertaken and shall include details of the necessary remediation
measures. The development shall thereafter only be carried out following the
remediation of the site in full accordance with the measures stipulated in the
approved report.

Reason: In the interests of safety and in accordance with the guidance set out
in PPS23 — Planning and Pollution Control 2004.

7. Prior to the commencement of the development, full details of the
Management Company to deal with the future management and maintenance of
the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The site shall thereafter be managed by the approved Management
Company.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory management of the private driveway,
resident’s parking spaces and refuse storage/collection at the site and in
accordance with Policy TR4 of the Adpoted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

8. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development,
whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of 5
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season
with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority
gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of the appearance of the locality and in accordance with
Policy No GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

09.DC.95 PLANNING APPEALS NOTIFICATION REPORT
The Corporate Director (Business) submitted a report giving notification of two
appeals that had been lodged against the refusal of planning permission.
RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

09.DC.96 DELEGATED DECISIONS DETERMINED BY THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR
(BUSINESS) IN CONSULTATION WITH THE CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR OF
COMMITTEE
The Committee received for information, tables listing four applications for Category
‘B’ development proposals which had been determined by the Corporate Director
(Business) in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee at meetings
held on 13 and 28 October 2009.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 14

Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 15 Agenda ltem 3

RESOLVED - That the tables be noted.

09.DC.97 DELEGATED DECISIONS DETERMINED BY THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR
(BUSINESS)
The Committee received for information, a schedule listing the remainder of the
planning applications determined by the Corporate Director (Business) under

delegated powers between 1 and 28 October 2009.

RESOLVED - That the schedule be noted.

Chair

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 15
Tuesday, 10 November 2009



Agenda Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 17 Agenda ltem 4

Report

Report of

Meeting

Corporate Director Development Control

(Business) Committee 08.12.2009
PLANNING APPLICATIONS AWAITING DECISION
Item Application No. Recommendation Location Proposal
1 09/00640/FUL Permit (Subject to 4 Ewell Close Chorley PR6  Demolition of existing
Legal Agreement) 8TT bungalow and erection of 7
two storey detached
dwellings with associated
garages and infrastructure
(resubmission of
application 09/00541/FUL)
2 09/00708/FUL Permit (Subject to Land 15m West Of 176A Erection of a detached
Legal Agreement) Wood Lane Heskin bungalow (resubmission of
Lancashire application 09/00350/FUL)
3 09/00780/FUL Permit (Subject to Land 50m South Of 54 To Erection of 3 detached
Legal Agreement) 64 Lancaster Lane Clayton- dwellings and associated
Le-Woods Lancashire infrastructure on land to
rear of 54 to 64 Lancaster
Lane (extension of
previously permitted
scheme, utilising access
road approved by
09/00354/FULMAJ)
4 09/00873/FUL Permit Full Orcheton House Farm Replacement agricultural
Planning Wood Lane Heskin workers dwelling, re-use
Permission Lancashire PR7 5PA and relocation of former
dwelling as fishing training
centre (re-submission of
planning application
09/00678/FUL)
5 09/00850/FUL Permit (Subject to Formerly Multipart Re-plan of part of the site

Legal Agreement)

Distribution Limited Pilling
Lane Chorley

including the construction
of 8 dwellings, parking
court and associated
garages (amendment to
reserved matters approval
07/01226/REMMAJ).
Including the erection of 1
additional dwelling.



Report

6 09/00745/FULMAJ
7 09/00749/FULMAJ
8 09/00714/FULMAJ

Agenda Page 18

Permit (Subject to
Legal Agreement)

Permit (Subject to
Legal Agreement)

Permit Full
Planning
Permission

Quarry Road Industrial
Estate Quarry Road
Chorley

Land Between Froom
Street And Crosse Hall
Lane Chorley

Land adj. Fairview Farm
(incl Land Bounded by
Chorley Road Eller Brook
and Railway) Chorley
Road, Adlington

Agenda ltem 4

Proposed Residential
Development. Erection of
66 Dwellings and
Associated Infrastructure.

Erection of 37 dwellings
(amendment to layout,
design, landscaping and
external appearance
approval as part of planning
approval
02/00680/REMMAJ)

Erection of 37 affordable
dwellings with amenity
space and off street parking
at Fairview Farm,
Adlington.



Agenda Page 19 Agenda ltem 4a

ltem 1 09/00640/FUL Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)
Case Officer Mrs Helen Lowe

Ward Chorley North East

Proposal Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 7 two storey

detached dwellings with associated garages and
infrastructure (resubmission of application 09/00541/FUL)

Location 4 Ewell Close Chorley PR6 8TT

Applicant Mr Darren Brown

Members will recall that this application was reported at the last Development Control
Committee, but a decision was deferred until the period neighbour consultation had
expired and all consultation responses had been received. As a number of comments
were reported on the addendum and have subsequently been received a new report is
included below. An amended plan has been received in response to the comments
raised by residents and members at the last committee meeting.

Proposal This application proposes the demolition of one existing dwelling
and the erection of 7 two storey detached dwellings with
associated garages and infrastructure.

Location 4 Ewell Close, Chorley

Summary The main issues to consider in determining the application are
impact on neighbour amenity, design and appearance, impact on
highway safety and ecology.

Planning Policy GN1: Settlement Policy — Main Settlements
GNS5: Building Design and Retaining Existing Landscape Features
EP9: Trees and Woodlands
EP18: Surface Water Runoff
HS4: Design and Layout of Residential Development
HS6: Housing windfall Sites
HS21: Playing Space Requirements
TR4: Highway Development Control Criteria

Chorley into 2016: Sustainable Resources DPD
Supplementary Planning Guidance Design Guidance

PPS1
PPG3
PPG9

Planning History = 09/00541/FUL Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 8
two storey detached dwellings with associated garages and
infrastructure
Withdrawn 10™ August 2009

Consultees

Responses LCC Highways: have reservations on the proposal mainly due to
the poor existing site lines for the new properties. Five of the
properties access directly onto a bend on Dorking Road which
adversely affects each of the. Furthermore there are evergreen



Agenda Page 20 Agenda ltem 4a

trees on the boundaries of neighbouring properties (i.e. nos. 11 &
13 Dorking Road) that affect sight lines but to which the applicants
have no control over. Plot 3 accesses almost directly on to the
Ewell Close/Dorking Road junction and the westward sightline
here is very poor due to the presence of the evergreen trees
bordering No. 11 as mentioned above. Object to this proposal for
these reasons and also on the grounds of 5 new accesses being
created on to a particularly unsuitable part of the highway where
none existed before.

Members should note that when the previous application was
submitted no objection in principle was raised by LCC Highways
to the proposal and only a number of minor amendments to the
position and size of driveways and garages suggested.

The change in advice on highway matters is a concern that
members should have regard to as decision makers. Advice on
appeal is that planning authorities should carefully consider the
advice from the highway authority in reaching a decision. In this
instance due to a change of highway advice the comments on all
but plot 3 are open to criticism and may not be substantiated on
appeal. Plot 3 could be amended to provide an access onto Ewell
Close and as such the access to this ploy could be removed and
required to be reconsidered.

United Utilities: no objection to the proposal provided that the site
is drained on separate system, with only foul drainage connected
to the foul sewer.

Neighbourhoods: are satisfied with the contents of the desk top
study and agree that the risk of contamination is low. However,
should during the course of the development, any suspected
contaminated material be discovered then the development
should cease until such time as further remediation proposals
have been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

LCC Ecology: The proposed development appears to comply with
relevant policies and guidance. Planning conditions will be
necessary to ensure compliance with the above policies and
guidance. been felled and further details of the proposed
hedgerow.

o European Protected Species: bats

According to the bat survey (Kingdom Ecology, August 2009) there
is very little likelihood of a significant bat roost being present within
the existing bungalow. The proposals should therefore have no
impact upon the population status of bats locally. However, there
is always a chance that individual bats could be present under roof
tiles or the hanging tiles on the western gable end.

The consultant has therefore recommended that loose roofing tiles
and wooden hanging tiles should be dismantled by hand. If the
presence of bats is suspected at any time then works should
cease immediately and Natural England should be contacted for
advice. This should be implemented through planning condition.

° Breeding Birds

Habitats on the site, including existing buildings, have the potential
to support nesting birds. It needs to be ensured that detrimental
impacts on breeding birds are avoided.



Agenda Page 21 Agenda ltem 4a

o Habitat connectivity
The above policies require maintenance and enhancement of
habitat connectivity. It will therefore be appropriate to ensure that
curtilage boundaries allow the movement of wildlife.
o Mitigation/compensation and biodiversity
enhancement
The ecological consultant has made a number of
recommendations in order that the proposals contribute towards
the key principles of biodiversity planning policy (section 4.5 of the
ecology report). These include the planting of native tree and
shrub species, the planting of garden plants of value to
biodiversity, and the installation of bat and bird boxes on retained
trees. The Planning, Design and Access Statement includes the
intention to plant a native species boundary hedge. This intention
is supported, it should be noted that laurel is not native and box,
whilst native very locally in southern England, would not naturally
occur in this area.

MAPS — Chorley Community Safety Partnership: ask that the
properties have burglar alarms fitted and laminated glass to the
ground floor external panes of the double glazed units.

Arboricultural Officer: no objection to removal of leylandii hedge

Planning Policy and Urban Design Team Leader

Detailed Design Comments

The character of the area is a mix of 2 storey, largely detached
dwellings and bungalows (where land rises). Materials include red
brick, concrete pantiles, painted render and hanging tiles.
Garages tend to be integral. The gardens are open plan to the
frontages, largely delineated with shrubs and hedges.

Accordingly, the set back of proposed properties is characteristic
of the area as is the proposed open plan nature of the front
gardens. However, the architectural style does not appear to
reflect that of the locality and | would like to see more explanation
as to how this layout and design has evolved.

Generally it appears that the applicant has sought to squeeze as
many identical units onto the site as possible with little recognition
of the site characteristics such as the influence of levels, and
principles of good design practice.

For plots 4,5 and 6 the driveways are too long, 13m, 15m and
15m respectively (if one includes the garages 4 cars can be
accommodated) with the result that hardstanding over-dominates
the streetscene. The design of house type plot 1, although a more
efficient use of land with an integral garage, would be improved if
the garage were stepped back as opposed to forward. A garage
should not dominate an elevation.

A design solution which incorporated some semi-detached units
would increase the number of units contributing to a higher density
and more interesting streetscene. | have provided a draft layout
which demonstrates how this could work. | would like to stress
that it is not necessary to strictly adhere to separation distances
within the development as future residents know what they are
buying into and privacy/amenity can be safeguarded through
imaginative floor layouts.



Agenda Page 22 Agenda ltem 4a

Clir Edgerley also asked that the following issues be considered:

My ward colleagues and | are not opposed to the principle of
development but are concerned about a number of aspects as
follows.

The number of properties seems essentially to have been derived
from PPG3 but as the report says the surrounding estate is of a
less dense nature. Should that less dense nature not be more
pertinent in determining the density of this development?

In addition the development on this site would also seem to be
constrained by

o the triangular shape of the site

o the topography; in particular the difference in level
compared with the existing bungalows on Dorking Road

o existing dwellings around the site.

It strikes us that these all make it difficult to achieve satisfactory
relationships with the existing properties given the number and
type of dwellings proposed. The report seems to suggest that 4
bedroom houses make it difficult to meet the guidance on garage
provision in the manual for streets. Does this not suggest a
reduction in either the number of dwellings or a reduction in the
size of dwellings or both?

The report deals with the relationship with bungalows on Dorking
Road and highlights the difference in levels as a cause for
concern. Would this concern not be more adequately met by
bungalows on this part of the site? Elsewhere on Dorking Road
there are existing houses opposite existing bungalows but the
separation is greater, the fall in levels is less and the gables of the
bungalows not their windows face the houses. These all make the
relationship better. These standards cannot be met at the
application site so perhaps active consideration to bungalows
should be given.

In the report dealing with the earlier withdrawn application there
was reference to an unsatisfactory relationship of a garage to No
13 Dorking Road. This relationship seems to have been improved
a little but would it not be improved more by having an integral
garage and taking the building line further back into the site?

Third Party
Representations To date 25 letters of objection have been received from
neighbouring residents (multiple letters have been received from
one household) and one letter from the director of a housing
association which owns a neighbouring property. They make the
following comments:
o Density is not in keeping with the area;
o The proposed garages are not large enough to
accommodate a family sized car;
The proposal will lead to an increase in on road parking;

o Noise and disturbance during the building period;

o Loss of privacy and increased overlooking, particularly for
the Bungalows on Dorking Road that are not presently
overlooked;

. Increased traffic will lead to noise and disturbance;



Agenda Page 23 Agenda ltem 4a

There will be a negative impact on highway safety;
Overload on utilities such as water and gas;

Houses are too close to the pavement — will upset building
lines and architectural rhythms. They will be too prominent
within the street scene;

Two storey houses would be overwhelming and
oppressive;

Loss of natural drainage;

The loss of the conifers will affect water table and stability
of existing properties;

Will overload the drainage systems;

Impact on wildlife including bats;

The plans were not discussed with neighbours ahead of
the application being made;

The developer should provide some amenity for locals e.g.
a small play area;

There should be an obligation to provide some smaller
affordable houses for young people;

The garage at plot 7 will block light to our garden — would
this development stop us extending our house in the
future.

There is no economic need for more executive style 4 bed
detached houses;

Plot 2 on Ewell Close is at an incongruous angle to the rest
of the road and should be repositioned;

There should be a fixed schedule of works under penalty
to prevent piecemeal development;

The conifer hedge is a valuable wildlife resource;

The development must be with minimum disturbance;

In reality this particular site is hardly brownfield;

Concerns regarding road safety at the junction of Ewell
Close and Dorking Road;

Not enough parking is being provided;

Extra cars parked on the road, walls, trees and hedges will
obstruct visibility;

The care home at number 20 gives rise to vehicles being
parked on the road and continual traffic;

It would be difficult to park cars on the driveway at plot 7;
There would not be enough distance between plot 3 and
no. 12 & no. 14 Dorking Road;

The distance between plot 4 & no. 16 Dorking Road
appears to be less than 20m,;

Object to the loss of the highway verge;

Under the LCC Residential Road Guide Dorking Road
would be classed as a Type 4A road and Ewell Close a
Type 5A road. The sightline for such a junction should
comprise of a sightline envelope measured from a point
2.4m into Ewell Close to a point 60m to the left on Dorking
Road. The proposed development sites house, trees and
drives within the envelope;

What is the timescale for development;

Current water systems are unable to cope and mains
services are under strain;

The estate junction onto Blackburn Road is unsafe;

All the proposed properties on Dorking Road appear to be
in front of the building line of existing properties, this gives
a terracing and overbearing effect;



Agenda Page 24 Agenda ltem 4a

o The proposed front gardens are small — some within 4m of
the public pathway;

o Most of the front windows are bay windows - is this being
taken into account in the measurements;

o There appears to be a shortfall in the minimum

requirement of 21m, the lower slab level of the bungalows
needs to be taken into account.

Two letters of support have been received, one from an occupant
of the application property and one from outside of the Borough.

Assessment A number of changes have been made to the proposals since the
application was last reported to Committee. These are:
o All garages have been amended in size so that their
internal dimensions are at least 3m by 6m;
o Finished floor level details have been provided for the
facing bungalows on Dorking Road;
o The floor level of plot 4 has been reduced by 0.45m.

In accordance with Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing, the site
is considered to be previously developed land. Previously
developed land is land, which is or was last occupied by a
permanent structure including the curtilage of the developed land
and any associated fixed surface infrastructure. PPS3 encourages
the redevelopment of previously developed land as opposed to
developing Greenfield land. As such the principle of redeveloping
the site for residential development accords with Government
guidance. As the proposal is only for a net gain of 6 dwellings,
there is no affordable housing requirement.

Design and appearance

PPS1 states that design policies should avoid unnecessary
prescription and should concentrate in guiding the overall scale,
density, massing, height, landscape, layout and access of new
development in relation to neighbouring building and the local
area more generally. Local Planning authorities are advised not to
attempt to impose architectural styles or particular tastes.

The comments of the Planning Policy & Design Urban Design
Team Leader indicates that the design could be more interesting
and reflect the locality. He also advocates possibly increasing the
density by including semi-detached properties. The balance of
design and density could be made worse by a higher density
scheme.

The density of the proposed development would be slightly less
than Government Guidance in PPG 3 that a minimum of 30
dwellings per hectare should usually be appropriate (7 dwellings
on 0.25ha equals 28 dwellings per hectare). However, the
character of the surrounding area is of a less dense nature. It is
considered that the topographical characteristics of the site and
relationship with neighbouring existing properties would make a
higher density than the surrounding properties difficult to achieve.

Recent appeal decisions in the Borough (for example at 54
Lancaster Lane) have highlighted the advice in PPS3 that the
density of existing development should not dictate that of new
housing by stifling change or requiring replication of existing style
or form. This is supported by Policy HS4 of the Local Plan. The
development of the site with detached housing is not out of



Agenda Page 25 Agenda ltem 4a

character with the surrounding area. Although the properties
immediately opposite on Dorking are bungalows, other housing on
Ewell Close and Dorking Road are two storey detached dwellings.

The positioning of plot 2 at an angle to Ewell Close, rather than
the front elevation being parallel to Ewell Close as existing
dwellings and the proposed plot 1 do is somewhat incongruous,
however, it is not considered that this would be sufficient reason to
warrant refusal of the proposals.

The removal of the leyandii hedge is considered to enhance the
character of the area.

Neighbour Amenity

There is a difference in levels across the site — it falls from north to
south along Ewell Close and from north east to south west along
Dorking Road. Properties facing the site along Dorking Road are
true bungalows, with ground floor levels set slightly lower than that
of the road. Along Ewell Close, two storey houses face the
application site. Adjacent to the north boundary there is a split
level dwelling at no. 6 Ewell close with a number of windows and
rooflights facing the application site and a two storey dwelling with
a blank gable facing the site at no. 13 Dorking Road. At present a
mature conifer hedge surrounds most of the site (apart from the
driveway entrance and adjacent to the front of no. 6 Ewell Close).
This is proposed to be entirely removed, however no indication of
the proposed boundary treatments have been shown along the
northern boundary of the site.

The Councils interface standards require that there is a minimum
distance of 21m between windows to habitable rooms at first floor
level from any such facing windows in neighbouring houses.
Where the proposed slab levels are 0.5m or more above that of
neighbouring houses, the spacing guideline should be increased
by 1m for every 0.25m difference in slab levels. Although the
properties are bungalows on Dorking Road it is considered
appropriate to apply this guideline. As stated above a number of
these properties (particularly those directly opposite the site) are
set slightly lower than the road, finished floor levels have been
provided for these properties. The applicant has amended the
plans so that the finished floor levels of the proposed dwellings
mean that all the minimum interface standards would be met. The
closest properties would be the dwelling at plot 4 and no. 16
Dorking Road, there would be a distance of 21m between these
properties. The finished floor level of the proposed welling would
be 0.459m higher than that of the bungalow. The distances
between all of the other proposed dwellings and the bungalows all
exceed the distances required (taking into account differences in
levels). The windows affected in the bungalows are to the front of
the properties and clearly visible from the road and public view.
The site plan’s do appear to allow for the dining room bay
windows to be included in the house plans, even if extra distance
is allowed for the projection of the lounge/bed 1 bay windows
(0.5m), the interface standards are still all met. Moving the
position of dwelling further to the rear on plot 7 (which is adjacent
to no. 13 Dorking Road) would result in an unsatisfactory
relationship (interface standards would not be met) with plot 1 to
the rear and no. 6 Ewell Close. The position of the garage
complies with the 45 degree plus 3m guidelines taken from the
nearest ground floor window of no. 13 Dorking Road.



Agenda Page 26 Agenda ltem 4a

The bungalows on Dorking Road, are not however, overlooked by
any dwellings at present and the proposed development would
result in a considerable change from the present situation. There
would undoubtedly be an intensification in the level of overlooking
that would occur. With regard to the effect of the proposal on the
bungalows on Dorking Road, this is a finely balanced decision,
however it is considered that it would be difficult to sustain a
refusal on the grounds of loss of privacy and overlooking to these
properties as the minimum interface standards are met and the
windows affected are clearly visible from the highway.

With regard to the impact of the proposals on the amenity of
residents on Ewell Close, again the interface standards are met.
Number 11 Dorking Road is due west of plot 3 and is set lower
than the proposed dwelling, however, the ground floor facing
window is screened by planting and the dwelling at plot three is
set at an angle to number 11.

Highway Safety

The submitted draft RSS Parking Standards require that a four
bedroomed dwelling should be provided with three off road
parking spaces. Each dwelling has been provided with a garage
and a driveway that can accommodate at least two cars. The
applicant has provided amended plans of the proposed garages,
now with internal dimensions of 6m by 3m. All dwellings are now
considered to have at least three off road parking spaces in
accordance with the draft RSS Parking Standards.

At the time of writing the report the applicant was currently liasing
with LCC Highways to overcome the objections made.

Ecology

Recent case law has emphasised the importance of the Local
Planning Authority giving due consideration to the three tests in
1994 Regulations for European Protected species when deciding
whether to grant planning permission for a development which
could harm a European Protected Species (such as bats). The
three tests (which also relate to the granting of licences) are that:
the activity to be licensed must be fore imperative reasons of
overriding public interest or for public health and safety; there
must be no satisfactory alternative and favourable conservation
status of the species must be maintained.

The applicant has provided two bat surveys and an ecological
survey with the application. The first bat survey concluded that
there was potential for bats to roost here and it would be hard to
confirm they never do, some provision for bats needs to be made
in the new build. Precautions during construction would also need
to be put in place and a further dusk survey should be carried out
in July. The second survey carried out a further dusk emergence
survey and a dawn re-entry survey. No evidence of roosting bats
was found and it is considered very unlikely that a significant bat
roost is present. There remains low risk that gaps between loose
roofing tiles could be infrequently used. It is recommended that
care is taken during the demolition of the building and loose
roofing tiles and wooden hanging tiles are dismantled by hand. If



Agenda Page 27 Agenda ltem 4a

any evidence of bats is found work should immediately halt and
further advice sought.

The ecological survey concluded that in its current form the
bungalow and garden of the application property has a very low
ecological and nature conservation value and displays negligible
potential value for the support of Species of Principal Importance
of UK BAP Priority Species. Clearances of conifers, shrubs and
localised ivy should take place outside of the bird breeding
season ( mid march to mid august). The landscaping scheme
should favour planting of native tree and shrubs in clusters. Close
boarded fences should not be the boundary treatment. Bat and
bird boxes should be installed in the retained conifers.

It is not considered that the applicant’s choice of boundary
treatment could be restricted as such fences could be erected
without the need for planning permission. The landscaping
scheme proposed accords with the suggestions made by the
ecologist and other matters can be secured by condition.

Other issues
A draft s106 agreement to secure play space contributions is
currently being prepared by the Council’s Legal Services section.

The applicant has provided information to show how the proposals
meet the requirements of policy SR1. Comments from Planning
Policy are awaited.

The use of permeable/porous ground surfacing materials could be
secured by condition.

The noise and disturbance caused during construction is
considered to be transitory and it is considered that it would be
unreasonable to attach conditions restricting hours of operation or
parking of vehicles due to the fact that there are no particularly
sensitive land uses nearby (such as an elderly persons home) and
the small size of the site.

It may be easier to meet the relevant interface standards with
bungalows on the site, however, the choice of type of dwellings on
the site is not a matter that the Council can impose upon the
applicant (this is supported by case law). The interface standards
are the means by which the council can seek to ensure the
amenities of neighbouring residents.

Conclusion Subject to the resolution of the highway objections and the receipt
of a signed Section 106 Agreement the proposal is accordingly
recommended for approval.

Recommendation: Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)
Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until samples of all external
facing materials to the proposed building(s) (notwithstanding any details shown on
previously submitted plan(s) and specification) have been submitted to and approved in



Agenda Page 28 Agenda ltem 4a

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out using
the approved external facing materials.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in
accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

2. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour,
form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials (notwithstanding any such detail
shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be
carried out in conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the visual
amenity of the area, to ensure that there is not an undue increase in surface water run-
off and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5, HS4 and EP18 of the Adopted Chorley
Borough Local Plan Review.

3. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of
this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

4. In accordance with the recommendations set out in the Conclusions and
Recommendations of the Bat survey Results dated 31* August 2009, any loose roofing
tiles and wooden hanging tiles should be dismantled by hand.

Reasons: In the interests of species protection and in accordance with Policy EP4 of the
adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review and PPG9

5. No development shall take place until a scheme for the installation of bat and bird
boxes on the site (as required in the recommendations contained in paragraph 4.6 of the
Ecological Survey and Assessment) has been submitted to an approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reasons: In the interests of species protection and in accordance with PPG9 and policy
EP4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

6. Surface water must drain separate from the foul and no surface water will be
permitted to discharge to the foul sewerage system.
Reason: To secure proper drainage and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP17 and EM2
of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

7. No development shall take place until a scheme detailing the on-site measures to be
installed and implemented so as to reduce carbon emissions, by the figure set out in
policy SR1 of the Sustainable Resources DPD at the time of commencement of each
individual plot, by means of low carbon sources has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted scheme shall also include full
details of the predicted energy use of the development expressed in terms of carbon
emissions (If no data specific to the application is available benchmark data will be
acceptable) and how energy efficiency is being addressed, for example, amongst other
things through the use of passive solar design. The approved details shall be fully
implemented and retained in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In accordance with Government
advice contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change -
Supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1 and in accordance with Policies EM16 and
EM17 of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy and Policy SR1 of Chorley Borough
Council's Adopted Sustainable Resources Development Plan Document and
Sustainable Resources Supplementary Planning Document.

8. No development shall take place until a scheme to demonstrate and provide full
details of how the design and layout of the buildings will withstand climate change has
been submitted to an approved on writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details



Agenda Page 29 Agenda ltem 4a

shall include details of the proposed Code for Sustainable Homes Level, how the
proposals minimise energy use and maximise energy efficiency. All dwellings
commenced after 1% January 2010 will be required to meet Code Level 3, all dwellings
commenced after 1% January 2013 will be required to meet Code Level 4 and all
dwellings commenced after 1% January 2016 will be required to meet Code Level 6 of
the Codes for Sustainable Homes. The approved details shall be fully implemented and
retained in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In accordance with Government
advice contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change -
Supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1 and in accordance with Policies EM16 and
EM17 of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy and Policy SR1 of Chorley Borough
Council's Adopted Sustainable Resources Development Plan Document and
Sustainable Resources Supplementary Planning Document.




Agenda Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 31 A

Jane E Meek BSc(Hons) DipTP MRTPI
Director of Development and Regeneration
Chorley Borough Council

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Chorley B.C. 100018509

Application No.
09/00640/FUL

Grid Ref:
E: 359631

N: 419638

Scale:

1:1,250




Agenda Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Apmmoss

e IR S

Agenda ltem 4a

Agenda Page 33

"

LOSALSUOD 50 BoMaE Gy Buurp SuGH0 DuR

14 30 R0 200 24 OF SARmud| wWeoRinR Iy .
PRt 07 O £E5SSE

i CEPIGIOE U1 SUDUD) UGn0TE DL -
B ap s xews seteies

33 W0SL U SNEC; SR WL X WY
s ELINDRNG JOU 8 5 ARy PuE A

weg e S G 03 sleq Busegd »

“gazidar g 0y

2150 U3 Ui Busip S0

AG PRHECD T
w3 Busepas enm S

o2 47




Agenda Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



N PEF

Agenda ltem 4a

D w008
Tdy wWi0p-0L B1aa eciasnbue
T WD 08-0% PO F
TW/p W Op-0f 10D ¢

15gNIYs Budedepuey

SCIUA 005E-069 smor paiabiew aenan ui poLRY

{SMNGO WNUINGIAY 3500 J&0ENG
{miogngi %20} AoH

{euAboucLy snEorian) vIouwel

1sapeds SuSpay snouatipuy

Agenda Page 35

1B waQ1-3 WO'E-5L 7 (BHE SRAUOS)  WRBGIIYM
U0 - WS-/ 7 (SIS3AS Snjely) S1ddy qexd
w201-g wiyg-6£°7 (escunmb snuy) SN

gib wogT-g Wy e-g 7 {enednong Sngs0S) wemoy

H=EST

dnpyys §8 alosy MO e

snpayss o) Supuald aruug e

PICTR

fsigswuad asncy @ o3 yed 00s Twou)
5 upm soeps Bued D909y UTAL O5EX0SE @

Buned sgeounad arecilicg vosueR

ugT e

SLisnoy $2 YING Bunzy 4y @M %0uG STT U

T JEQUS DOmEcy oSk natess ol W -

foign CaTeren  SaIUSGR  Oruiwesne b SHNGH | aut.

BRI P e

2uoe  TITEMF

ko]
O Tad TS
e U S 1

S

TR AHNESE NIk SETRISNY

SoE

amf =L




Agenda Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Item 2

Case Officer
Ward

Proposal

Location
Applicant

Application No.

Proposal

Summary

Policies

Planning History

Background

Consultations

Agenda Page 37

09/00708/FUL Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Caron Taylor
Chisnall

Erection of a detached bungalow (resubmission of application
09/00350/FUL)

Land 15m West Of 1776 A Wood Lane Heskin Lancashire
Mr & Mrs Thomas Mauguan

09/00708/FUL

The application is for the erection of a detached bungalow. The
application was deferred at the previous Committee to allow a site
visit to take place.

The site is an infill plot and therefore the proposed bungalow is
appropriate development in the Green Belt and acceptable in
principle. The site does have a someone unusual relationship with
no. 1 The Meadows and is a simple bungalow on a small plot,
however given that there are other bungalows adjacent to the site,
there is no set building line in the street and the proposal complies
with the relevant interface guidelines in terms of neighbour
amenity it is not considered a refusal could be substantiated on
planning grounds.

The development plan for the area comprises the Regional Spatial
Strategy for the North West and the Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review 2003. The Local Plan contains policies of most relevance
to the current application. In particular policies: PPG2, DC1, DC4.

The recent planning history of the site is as follows:
The site history of the property is as follows:

Ref: 09/00350/FUL Decision: Withdrawn
Decision Date: 6 July 2009
Description: Erection of a detached bungalow

The application is made in full for a single detached bungalow. A
previous application (09/00350/FUL) for a similar scheme was
withdrawn in July. The application site is currently the rear garden
of no. 176A Wood Lane. The site is bounded by No. 1 The
Meadows to the east, no. 176A to the east and no. 176 to the
southeast of the site. The proposed bungalow will be accessed off
The Meadows.

LCC Highways
Have no objection to the proposal subject to recommended
conditions.

Neighbourhoods
Recommend an informative note.

Agenda ltem 4b



Agenda Page 38 Agenda ltem 4b

Coal Authorit
Standing advice

Heskin Parish Council

The Parish Council see little difference with the original
[withdrawn] application and wish to repeat their strong objections
to this proposal:

o Overdevelopment on this very small back garden site;

o It will result in loss of privacy for neighbours whose
property is very close and will be overlooked;

o The proposal seems to be proposed on the line of an
existing foul sewer which already cause difficulty;

o The application, if approved, will lead to considerable loss

of amenity for immediate neighbours and those across the
narrow estate road.

Representations Six letters of objection have been received to the proposal,
including from ClIr Edward Smith.

o The proposal will result in an obtrusive and cramped site
out of character with the rest of the estate;

o It sill result in overdevelopment of the site;

o The dwelling will be positioned closer to the road than the
other properties son The Meadows;

o The proposed building presents an extremely unattractive

aspect resembling a public toilet out of keeping with
strretscene and locality;

o Loss of residential amenity to surrounding residents,
especially no. 1 The Meadows;
. The size of the building and plot will not proved adequate

amenity for the occupier and will not provide quality
housing. In addition the remaining garden at no. 176a will
only be small reducing their amenity. This is out of
character with the area;

o Drainage will be a problem. There is a foul drain that runs
across the site and is covered by covenants;

o The site is unsuitable in the Green Belt and will create a
precedent if permitted;

o The rear windows in the proposed property will be
overlooked by windows in nos. 176 and 178;

o The proposed driveway is not big enough;

o The property does not fulfil a local need;

The front of the property will be overlooked by the
properties opposite;

. The front elevation has an almost blank facade to the road
which is detrimental to the streetscene;

o The proposed bungalow is 8m high and would dominate
the adjacent properties [the bungalow is 4m high]

o The proposal will result in a loss of privacy and light and
will cause noise and pollution to the surrounding
properties;

o On-road parking outside the property would cause
problems due to its close proximity to the junction with
Wood Lane.

Assessment Principle of the development

The site is in the Green Belt. Infill plots within existing villages,
including Heskin, are appropriate development in the Green Belt in
line with PPG2. In this case, the site in question is within an
existing built up frontage within a clear group of buildings, with



Agenda Page 39 Agenda ltem 4b

buildings on wither site. It is therefore acceptable in principle.

Scale, Design and Appearance

The application proposes an ‘L’ shaped bungalow, 4 metres in
height. There are a range of properties in the immediate area. No.
176a is bungalow with a steep pitched roof while no. 1 The
Meadows is also a bungalow with a lower roof and a side
extension to the east that. No. 2 The Meadows next door but one
to the site is also a bungalow nut of a different design with a fully
hipped roof. The majority of other properties in the immediate
vicinity are semi-detached two-storey houses. It therefore
considered that due to the range of properties in the street it could
not be argued that a bungalow would be out of keeping with the
immediate area, particularly as the existing three bungalows are
all of different designs.

In terms of the positioning of the bungalow on the site, although it
would sit closer to the road than the majority of other properties on
The Meadows, its front gable would sit almost flush with the side
gable of no. 176A Wood Lane which it would almost always be
viewed in the context of. In addition, there is not a clear building
line on the Meadows, with different properties being set different
distances from the road and at different angles. The proposed
property and 176A Wood Lane will have small gardens, however
many people do not wish to have a very large garden especially
someone who may move into a small bungalow. It is not for the
Local Planning Authority to decide how big a garden someone
may wish to have, providing the scheme complies with the
adopted interface distances in terms of neighbouring properties.

In terms of design the property will have a pitched roof to match
those in the area. In addition the design incorporates a front gable
which reflects the gable on no. 1 The Meadows and also the side
gable of no. 176A Wood Lane on the corner. The bungalow is
simple in its design, but so are the adjacent bungalows. It is
considered that providing the detailing (such as windows set in
reveal) and materials of the bungalow are of a sufficient standard
that it will not be out of keeping with the surrounding properties.
These will be the subject of conditions.

In terms of drainage the property will need to comply with building
regulations, but covenants on the land are not a matter that can
be considered as part of a planning application.

Neighbour Amenity

Due to the side extension on no. 1 The Meadows the proposed
bungalow does have a somewhat unusual relationship with this
property. No. 1 has a front window in part of the extension and the
site of the proposed property (which is currently the rear garden of
no. 176 A Wood Lane) projects in front if it. The proposal does
comply with a 3m plus 45-degree line drawn from this window.
The proposed property will use the area in front of this window as
a garden area. It is already used as a garden for no. 176A and
has a fence around it. Although the relationship with no. 1 The
Meadows is unusual due to the side extension it complies with the
relevant guidelines and therefore it is not considered a refusal on
these grounds could be justified.

The property would be built in the rear garden of no. 176A Wood
Lane. This property has rooflights in its rear roof plane with



Agenda Page 40 Agenda ltem 4b

upstairs living accommodation. Next to this is no. 176 Wood Lane
a semi-detached house. The proposal complies with the 10m
guideline with regards to the distance between the upper floor
windows and the boundary with the proposed property. There will
be approximately 21m between the front window of the proposed
bungalow and the properties opposite on the other side of The
Meadows. This complies with the adopted interface guidelines.

It is considered there is justification to remove the Permitted
Development Rights of the property for extensions and outbuilding
given the size of the plot and its relationship with neighbouring
properties, to protect the amenities of the adjacent properties.

Highways and Parking

With regards to highways, LCC (Highways) raise no objections to
the application subject to conditions relating to visibility and
hardsurfacing. The plan shows a double driveway to provide two-
off road parking spaces as is required for a two bedroom property.
However the driveway shown is slightly too narrow to allow two
cars to be parked comfortably off the road. Therefore a condition
will be applied to any permission that it must measure at least 5m
wide. It is not considered the property will result in unacceptable
on-road parking as it has off-road parking available.

Commuted Sum

A commuted sum is required towards public open space which is
a material consideration in determining the application. This needs
to be secured through a s106 agreement so the application is
recommended for approval subject to this being signed.

Trees

There are two trees on the site. Both are proposed to be retained
as part of the scheme, however their size means they do not
warrant the protection of a Tree Preservation Order, which would
be the only means of securing this.

Recommendation: Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)
Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until samples of all external
facing materials to the proposed building(s) (notwithstanding any details shown on
previously submitted plan(s) and specification) have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out using
the approved external facing materials.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in
accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and DC8A of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

2. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of
this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

3. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced full details of existing
and proposed ground levels and proposed building slab levels (all relative to ground
levels adjoining the site) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously
submitted plan(s). The development shall only be carried out in conformity with the
approved details.



Agenda Page 41 Agenda ltem 4b

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality, in the interests of the amenities of
local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and DC4 of the Adopted Chorley
Borough Local Plan Review.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (as amended), (Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A to E), or any
Order amending or revoking and re-enacting that Order, no alterations or extensions
shall be undertaken to the dwelling(s) hereby permitted, or any garage, shed or other
outbuilding erected (other than those expressly authorised by this permission).

Reason: The property is on a small plot, therefore to protect the appearance of the
locality and the amenities of the neighbouring properties and in accordance with Policy
No. DC4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans, the proposed
driveway/hardsurfacing to the front of the property shall be constructed using permeable
materials on a permeable base, or provision shall be made to direct run-off water from
the hard surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within the boundaries of the
property (rather than to the highway), unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent flooding, in accordance with
Policy Nos. GN5 and HS9 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

6. Before the access is used for vehicular purposes, that part of the access extended
from the highway boundary for a minimum distance of 5m into the site shall be
appropriately paved in tarmacadam, concrete, block paviours, or other approved
materials as agreed to in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent loose surface material from being carries onto the public highway
thus causing a potential source of danger to other road users.

7. Before the access for vehicular purposes, visibility splays shall be provided between
the highway boundary and the points on either side of the drive measured 5m back form
the nearside edge of the carriageway.

Reason: To assist visibility.

8. Before the development hereby permitted commences, details of the drive shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This should
demonstrate a drive of not less than 5m wide. The driveway shall then only be
constructed in accordance with the approved plan before the dwelling is occupied.
Reason: To ensure sufficient parking is provided for the dwelling and in accordance with
Policy TR4 of the adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

9. The windows in the dwelling hereby permitted shall be set in a minimum reveal of
5cm.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the building and locality and
in accordance with Policy No. HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.




Agenda Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Aggjnda Page 43 Agenda ltem 4b

LANCASHIRE COUNTY

Playing Field

Stanley Wives Farm

A

path (um)

A

i R duced fi the Ord S i ith th issi
Jane E Meek BSc(Hons) DipTP MRTPI of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. Crown Copyrigh.

Director of Deve|opment and Regeneration Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

) may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Chorley Borough Council Chorley B.C. 100018509

Application No. Grid Ref: Scale:

E: 353144 2

09/00708/FUL N: 414907 1:1,250




Agenda Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



ol

AT LT T O T T T T AL

LTI T T

ISEIRNANNNRNENREERNRUNNNNNENEEE |

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 1:50

SIDE ELEVATION 1:50 1 SIDE ELEVATION 1:50
= IO =
:\ T TR T T T R L N N Y — f&'\‘\(\\\\\ N \\Q
\ N
b N -
[N
[ O@ 5 CHORLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
—~ e j S // TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
R . 5 # T e
\ k ; // -8 SEP 2009
\ \ = ‘
\ \ /// G THIS IS THE PLAN REFERRED TON
N N / APPLICATION No.CX1
'hI 5 ol // oL
= s '
g CREATE NEW // REMOVE EXISTING E 20.08.09  Minor alterations as per planner
”7 wm” W I \ ‘\\‘ \ SITE ENTRANCE , SITE ENTRANCE 0 D . 25.06.09 Du_uelling re-designed as per planners
. \ i e o GRass G 08.06.09  Minor amendments to site plan
‘ | AR \ m\ w - B 07.0508 Minor amendments o plans and elevalions
R R S S S i Lo —— A |03.04.09 1 Amendmenls to scheme as per planners comments
N — -, E G Revision | Dale Amendmenls
® N [F:]
HALL : \ Client 1y 1 MALIGHAN
\ BATHROOM EXISTING PARKING N B , _
\ FOR 3 CARS Project [ PROPOED NEW DWELLING
N | | I76A WOOPD LANE
© LIVING ROOM | Co ) N e HESKN
| ] N CHORLEY
: N . = e '
\ L1 N DraWing i beop sty pLANS ELEVATIONS AND SITE
/}_ | & § " Title PLAN
N H : = =
. 3 § e Drawing [ 7781-0g-Ol A
| \ . _
N |
’ J= B o= \ Scale | psaown  [Date | oy, NOV 2009
\ cl 1o TN SS] 00 %ﬁ BEDROOM 2 \ \%! Peter
; @ 01 r_'_f @ \\t D [} []
5, R
\ T = w 5 Dickinson R.IBA
| = \ E W 169 Appley Lane North
AR \!: = '_'mm\\\\\ . | ES SN fom I: APPI@L{ Bﬂdq@
0 £ Woa Lacs
« O
T O
O <

PROPOSED SITE PLAN 1:200

Te, No.  OIZ57 25220%
Fan. No.  OI257 255786
E-mal peter@peterdickinson.couk

G ebed epuaby

qy wa)| epusby




Agenda Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 47 Agenda ltem 4c

ltem 3 09/00780/FUL Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)
Case Officer Caron Taylor

Ward Clayton-le-Woods West And Cuerden

Proposal Erection of 3 detached dwellings and associated

infrastructure on land to rear of 54 to 64 Lancaster Lane
(extension of previously permitted scheme, utilising access
road approved by 09/00354/FULMAJ)

Location Land 50m South Of 54 To 64 Lancaster Lane Clayton-Le-
Woods Lancashire

Applicant Wainhomes North West Ltd

Application No. 09/00780/FUL

Proposal The proposal is a full application for the erection of 3 detached
dwellings and associated infrastructure on land to the rear of 54 to
64 Lancaster Lane, Clayton-le-Woods. The application is to
extend a previously permitted scheme utilising the access road
approved by permission 09/00354/FULMAJ.

There is recent planning history at this site and planning
permission was originally granted for 7 dwellings on the site at
appeal and there have been subsequent applications for 3
additional properties and to alter the house types and highway
layout, the most recent being 09/00354/FULMAJ.

Background Members will be aware of the planning history on Lancaster Lane.
Two applications were refused for 7 dwellings. The applicant
appealed against the second refusal and the scheme was allowed
on appeal (07/00685/FUL). Following the appeal decision an
application was submitted (08/00862/FUL) to erect two dwellings
to the rear of 60 Lancaster Lane associated with the development
allowed on appeal. This application was approved. A further
application was then submitted to erect one dwelling to the rear of
62 Lancaster Lane (08/01070/FUL) which was approved. 10
dwellinghouses therefore received planning permission on the site
(all utilising the same access). A later application
09/00354/FULMAJ sought amendments to the layout and highway
layout of the properties and was approved in August this year.
Construction is underway on the site.

Summary The application is an extension of 3 additional properties to a
scheme of 10 previously approved houses. The three additional
properties will be of a similar design to those already approved
and will extend the previously approved access road. They will
have a similar relationship to the properties on Lancaster Lane
and Kirkby Avenue as the properties already approved and now
under construction. The application is therefore considered
acceptable subject to the signing of a Section 106 agreement.

Policies Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing



Agenda Page 48 Agenda ltem 4c

Planning Policy Statement 23: Planning and Pollution Control
Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport

Manual for Streets

North West Regional Spatial Strategy:

Policy DP1: Economy in the Use of Land and Buildings
Policy DP3: Quality in New Development

Policy UR7- Regional Housing Provision

Policy ER5- Biodiversity and Nature Conservation.
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review 2003:

GN1- Settlement Policy- Main Settlements

EP4- Species Protection

EP9- Trees and Woodland

EP10- Landscape Assessment

HS4- Design and Layout of Residential Developments
TR4- Highway Development Control Criteria
Sustainable Resources DPD

Sustainable Resources SPD

Planning History 07/00124/FUL- (Number 54) Demolition of existing dwelling and
the erection of 7 detached houses.
Refused April 2007
07/00685/FUL- (Number 54) Demolition of existing dwelling and
erection of 5 detached houses and 2 bungalows.
Refused September 2007. ALLOWED ON APPEAL
07/00346/0UT- (Number 46 and 48) Outline application for the
proposed development to create 5 No. new detached dormer
bungalows to include an amended access off the highway
between no's 46 and 48 Lancaster Lane. Refused August 2007
07/00951/0OUT- (Number 50) Outline application for the erection
of 1No detached dormer bungalow and 1No two storey detached
house.
Withdrawn
07/01423/FULMAJ- Demolition of 54 Lancaster Lane and the
erection of 19 No. new dwellings including associated
infrastructure on land to the rear of 46 to 60 Lancaster Lane.
Refused March 2008. Appeal withdrawn
08/00855/FULMAJ- Demolition of 54 Lancaster Lane and the
erection of 19 No. new dwellings including associated
infrastructure on land to the rear or 46 to 60 Lancaster Lane.
Withdrawn
08/00862/FUL- Proposed construction of 2 detached
dwellinghouses with associated infrastructure and plot substitution
on plot 5 of previously approved application 07/00685/FUL
Approved October 2008
08/01070/FUL- Erection of one detached dwelling on land to the
rear of 62 Lancaster Lane, Clayton Le Woods (utilising access
road approved by 07/00685/FUL and 08/00862/FUL.)
Approved 20th March 2009
09/00354/FULMAJ- Erection of 10 detached dwellings and
associated infrastructure on land to the rear of 54-62 Lancaster
Lane.
Approved August 2009

Consultations Lancashire County Council Highways
Comments will be placed on the addendum.

United Utilities
Have no objection to the proposal.

Chorley Council Contaminated Land Officer




Agenda Page 49 Agenda ltem 4c

The extended site area is beyond the area studied as part of the
ground investigation report submitted for the previously approved
applications. They ask if the applicant has done any further
investigation works in this extended area where the current three
properties are proposed.

The applicant has confirmed that the additional investigation work
to this area has been undertaken by their consultant engineers
and an addendum has been prepared which will be forwarded.

The comments of the Contaminated Land Officer on this additional
report will be added on the addendum.

Representations At the time of writing one letter of objection has been received.
Any further representations will be reported on the addendum.
The reasons for objection are:

1 They object on the same grounds as their previous
objections to the existing development currently being
constructed to the rear of no. 54;

1 The proposal is out of character with the surrounding area
and will result in a loss of amenity to neighbouring existing
properties and to the community as a whole;

71 They also wish to object to the continuing destruction of
green space and wildlife habitats;

01 If this extension to the existing scheme gets the go ahead
it will unduly prolong the construction period on the site
and the disruption and nuisance to which they are currently
being exposed will continue for well over a year;

[l They request that if the application is approved, a planning
condition be attached state that all construction work on
the current development of 10 properties is complete
before work is allowed to commence on any extension to
the current site. This has serious implications for them as
they don’t want to be subject to the visual intrusion, loss of
privacy and amenity, the continuous nuisance etc that they
are currently subjected to as a result of the site temporary
accommodation being located on their boundary. They are
already faced with the prospect of being unable to sit and
enjoy what was previously their peaceful garden during the
summer and spring months as it is now disturbed by
construction noise, toilet smells, raised voices from
operatives etc.

Assessment Principle of the development
The site is located within the settlement of Clayton-le-Woods. The
site is currently the garden areas of numbers 62 and 64 Lancaster
Lane and is previously developed land as defined by Planning
Policy Statement 3: Housing (PPS3). The proposal is therefore
acceptable in principle in line with this policy.

As per previous applications on this site the density is below the
30 dwellings per hectare minimum set out in PPS3. However
PPS3 does allow for lower densities where the characteristics of
the area and the desirability of achieving high quality well
designed housing dictates. The immediate surrounding area is
characterised by residential dwellinghouses which incorporate
large garden areas. It is therefore considered that a lower density
is justified on the site taking into account the layout of the
surrounding area.



Agenda Page 50 Agenda ltem 4c

Layout, Design, Scale and Appearance

The design and scale of the proposed properties are in keeping
with the previously approved properties on the site, being two-
storey detached dwellings. The layout is a continuation of the
existing layout along the access road and is considered in keeping
with the previously approved scheme in line with policy HS4.

Neighbour Amenity

Three additional properties are proposed to the previously
approved scheme. Two will be on the north side of the access
road and there will be 11.5m between the first floor windows of the
proposed properties and the garden boundaries of numbers 62
and 64 (an amended plan lengthening the garden of the house
shown on plot 11 has been received). This complies with the
interface guidelines and these two properties will back onto the
houses on Lancaster Lane that have sold parts of their gardens to
build them.

The other additional property will back onto Kirkby Avenue. There
will be 10.5m between the rear first floor windows of this property
and boundary of the property behind on Kirkby Avenue and 25.5m
between the proposed rear windows and the rear elevation of this
property, both of which comply with the Council’s interface
guidelines for new developments. The property backing onto
Kirkby Avenue will have a similar relationship with these
properties as houses on the previously approved scheme. It is
therefore considered the proposal will have an acceptable
relationship with neighbouring properties which will not
unacceptably impact on their amenity in accordance with policy
HS4.

Highways and Parking

The application proposes the three additional properties will be
accessed via an extension to the private drive previously
approved. The private drive will therefore serve five properties in
total. This is the maximum that can be served off such a drive, but
is considered acceptable. The comments of Lancashire County
Council Highways are awaited and will be added to the
addendum.

In terms of parking the proposed properties will all have four
bedrooms or more and therefore require three off-road parking
spaces. Each property has a double driveway in front of it, the
properties on plots 11 and 12 have a single integral garage and
the property on plot 13 has a double integral garage. However,
these garages measure approximately 5m by 2.5m which falls
short of the guideline size in Manual for Streets of 6m by 3m to
allow for storage as well as parking. However, Manual for Streets
does allow smaller garage sizes to be considered if other storage
and cycle parking is provided for the properties. Amended plans
have been received providing a storage shed for each of the three
properties and the smaller garages are considered acceptable as
alternative storage is provided. A condition will be applied to any
permission requiring this storage to be provided.

Sustainable Resources

The Council has adopted a Sustainable Resources Development
Plan Document and Sustainable Resources Supplementary
Planning Document, both of which form part of Chorley’s Local
Development Framework, the provision of Policy SR1 applies to




Agenda Page 51 Agenda ltem 4c

this proposal. A Sustainable Resources report accompanies the
application and the comments of the Planning Policy team on this
policy will be placed on the addendum.

Public Open Space
A commuted sum is required for each of the three properties,
which will be secured through a Section 106 legal agreement.

Other

An objector on Kirkby Avenue has requested that if the application
is approved conditions should be attached stating that all
construction work on the current development of 10 properties is
complete before work is allowed to commence on any extension
to the current site due to the siting of the temporary
accommodation (site cabins) on their boundary. However,
conditions must meet the tests as set out in circular 11/95. It is not
considered that requiring the existing dwellings to be completed
before the further 3 dwellings are started is reasonable due to the
way the dwellings are constructed on site.

The applicant advises that the site cabins have been located
between plots 8 and 9 as they give easy access to the turning
head for deliveries and advise that if planning is approved they will
construct the 3 additional units the subject of this application
simultaneously with the main site. They estimate that this will
extend the overall construction period by approximately 1 month
due to the economies of scale. If the dwellings were to be built
independently this would dramatically extend the construction
timetable by up to 6 months.

Recommendation Approve (subject to s106 agreement), refuse if s106
agreement not signed by 5" January 2010.

Conditions

1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of
this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. Surface water must drain separate from the foul and no surface water will be
permitted to discharge to the foul sewerage system.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP17 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

3. The garages hereby permitted shall be kept freely available for the parking of cars,
notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995.

Reason: To ensure adequate garaging/off street parking provision is made/maintained
and thereby avoid hazards caused by on-street parking and in accordance with Policy
No. TR4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review

4. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the ground investigation
report Ref 06203 and its associated addendum report.
Reason: In the interests of safety and in accordance with PPS23.



Agenda Page 52 Agenda ltem 4c

5. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until that part of the road which
provides access to it from the public highway has been constructed in accordance with
the approved plans and the approved planning application reference 07/00685/FUL.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy No.TR4 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

6. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the predicted energy
use of the development expressed in terms of carbon emissions shall be submitted to an
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. If no data specific to the application
is available benchmark data will be acceptable. A schedule should include how energy
efficiency is being addressed, for example, amongst other things through the use of
passive solar design. It will be flexible enough to show the on-site measures to be
installed and implemented so as to reduce carbon emissions in accordance with policy
SR1 of the Sustainable Resources DPD. No development shall commence until the
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details as may be approved shall be implemented and retained in perpetuity unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In line with the objective of National
Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning, the Climate Change
Supplement to PPS1, Policies EM16 and EM17 of the Regional Spatial Strategy and
Chorley Borough Council's Sustainable Resources DPD and Supplementary Planning
Document.

7. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the cycle/storage (garden sheds)
as shown on drawing no AL007 Rev D stamp dated 23 November 2009 have been
provided for each of the properties.

Reason: The garages are smaller than would normally be provided and therefore to
ensure sufficient storage/cycle storage is provided at the properties in accordance with
Manual for Streets.

8. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until samples of all external
facing materials to the proposed building(s) (notwithstanding any details shown on
previously submitted plan(s) and specification) have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out using
the approved external facing materials.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in
accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

9. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of the
position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected (notwithstanding
any such detail shown on previously submitted plans) shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until
all fences and walls shown in the approved details to bound its plot have been erected in
conformity with the approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved
details shall have been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to
substantial completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide reasonable
standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No. HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

10. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour,
form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials (notwithstanding any such detalil
shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be
carried out in conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the visual
amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.



Agenda Page 53 Agenda ltem 4c

11. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced full details of existing
and proposed ground levels and proposed building slab levels (all relative to ground
levels adjoining the site) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously
submitted plans. The development shall only be carried out in conformity with the
approved details.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality, in the interests of the amenities of

local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley
Borough Local Plan Review.



Agenda Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Jane E Meek BSc(Hons) DipTP MRTPI
Director of Development and Regeneration
Chorley Borough Council

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application No.
09/00780/FUL

Grid R

ef:
E: 356188
N: 422467




Agenda Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Owa]. Kame & Location! Z:\Job'S\WATHHOMES\S4 |ancasier lenelss - 60 Lanceeter Lane Layout 7 - Rev D.dwg.

46 - 64 LANCASTER LANE CLAYTON LE WOODS

Vot

\.{5\4 (spacial)

En
)

= A R

I
| | e ,,_i ‘“Ii \
L !
s L — .
- nd . /
LANCASTER LANE
- -

general notes:
do not scale the drawing.
all dimensions tn ba checked on slte prior to commencement of work and any
diserepancy shall be immediately reported and resolved prior ta work commencing.
this drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and
spedfications relating to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing.
copyright reserved to mdk partnership td. and this drawing may not be used or
reproduced without prior written consent.

Accommodation Schedule

Type No.

Ed Edale 2

En Eton 1

Ca Cambridge 4

Ri Richmond 1

Sc  Scoft 2

Ne Newton 1

Ofd Oxford 1

Br Brunel 1

Total 13

ENCLOSURES

' 1.8m high close boarded

screen fance
0.9m high post and rail
fanca
Existing trees to be
retained .

4 Indicative planting

Denoctes handed plots

Denotes bin / recyclmg store

position.
w2 Denotes bin / recycling store
collection point. |
Household Composting area.
WJ&WGaMen Shed)
CHORLEY BORQUGH OOUNC‘IL
TOWN AND COUNTRY Flihi
2 3 NOV 2009
THIS IS r' £ FLA
APPLICATICH o‘ihlgol r‘wL
D BN Ti-H t.rcnquumIGcl'dmmodlmLm to piofe 11, 12 & 12 adettional pakdng
spooasramaved.
< IR TGH Adkifiena) penidng woaces o pkofs 11, 12 & 13 added,
B 17/ IGH Pict 11 gardan amended.
A 2R0%09 TGH Private foolpaths. pates & palos adced.
Rev. Date By Descripfion
Cllank

WAINHOMES
\| V

mck partnership limited

hurtaly vilma § 48 watding streot: raad B fulwood B preston 8 pr2 Sbp
wel: D17728 774510 fax: 01772 774511 mok@mckparmership,co.uk

Project:
Land to Rear of 54 - 44 Lancaster Lane,

Clayton Le Woods
Ormawing Tie:
Proposed Site Layout
Dvarwr Checked: Scale: Dale:
TGH 1:500@ A2 22/08/2009
Job No: Drerwing Mot Raw:
07-183 ALOO7 D

A4

AdVNIWI1Fdd
Ot W)l epusby

A —

/G abed epuaby




Agenda Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 59 Agenda ltem 4d

Item 4 09/00873/FUL Permit Full Planning Permission
Case Officer Caron Taylor

Ward Eccleston And Mawdesley

Proposal Replacement agricultural workers dwelling, re-use and

relocation of former dwelling as fishing training centre (re-
submission of planning application 09/00678/FUL)

Location Orcheton House Farm Wood Lane Heskin LancashirePR7 5PA
Applicant Mr Richard Prideaux GPS (Northwest) Ltd
Proposal The application is for a replacement agricultural workers dwelling

and re-use and relocation of the former dwelling as fishing training
centre (re-submission of planning application 09/00678/FUL).

Summary The replacement dwelling is considered acceptable in terms of
Green Belt policy and PPS7 and is therefore considered
appropriate development. The relocation of the existing dwelling
for use as a classroom related to fishing training is considered
appropriate development in terms of PPG2. It is well located to the
existing buildings and two bays of an existing building on the site
will be demolished to allow it to be relocated.

Policies Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green Belts
Planning Policy Statement 7: Sustainable Development in Rural
Areas
DC1: Development in the Green Belt

Planning History Ref: 00/00188/FUL Decision:
PERFPP  Decision Date: 24 May 2000
Description: Extension to fish farm, to incorporate 4 new stock
pools and addition of 2 new stock pools within existing site,

Ref: 02/00914/FUL Decision:
REFFPP Decision Date: 28 May 2003
Description: Erection of permanent dwelling. APPEAL
ALLOWED
Ref: 94/00780/AGR Decision:
WDN Decision Date: 8 January 1996

Description: Application for Agricultural Determination in respect
of Broiler House

Ref: 94/00907/FUL Decision:
PERFPP Decision Date: 15 March 1995

Description: Erection of 2 Broiler Houses with associated feed

hoppers

Ref: 96/00383/CTY Decision:
REFLCC Decision Date: 10 July 1996

Description: Retrospective application for planning permission to
retain unauthorised landfill on site



Agenda Page 60 Agenda ltem 4d

Ref: 97/00726/CTY Decision:
PERLCC Decision Date: 26 November

1997

Description: Regrading of existing landfill, the planting of a new

hedgerow and trees, and the removal of surplus material from the

site

Ref: 98/00167/COU Decision:

PERFPP Decision Date: 5 August 1998
Description: Change of use of land to coarse fishery and shed to
fisherman's facilities

Ref: 98/00169/FUL Decision:

REFFPP Decision Date: 5 August 1998
Description: Conversion of part of agricultural building to a
dwelling for a temporary period of 5 years

Ref: 99/00224/FUL Decision:

PRRRTF Decision Date: 3 November 1999
Description: Siting of mobile home, in association with approved
fish farm, for a temporary period of 3 years

Ref: 05/00746/AGR Decision:

PAAGR Decision Date: 12 August 2005
Description: Application for agricultural determination in respect
of the erection of a replacement barn,

Ref: 06/01339/AGR Decision:
WDN

Decision Date: 8 January 2007

Description: Erection of replacement barn,

Ref: 07/00021/AGR Decision:
REAGR

Decision Date: 5 February 2007

Description: Erection of replacement barn,

Ref: 07/00969/AGR Decision:
REAGR

Decision Date: 12 September 2007

Description: Application for agricultural determination in respect

of the erection of a replacement barn,

Ref: 07/00969/PAR Decision:
PERPAR
Decision Date: 19 November 2007

Description: Application for agricultural prior approval in respect
of the erection of a replacement barn,

Ref: 09/00678/FUL Decision:
WDN
Decision Date: 19 October 2009

Description: Replacement agricultural workers dwelling, re-use
and relocation of former dwelling as fishing training centre

Consultations Lancashire County Council Highways
Have no objection to the proposal

Coal Authority
Standing Advice



Agenda Page 61 Agenda ltem 4d

County Land Agent
See main body of report

Representations At the time of writing no representations have been received,
however based on the similar application 09/00678/FUL which
was withdrawn it is expected that objections will be received.

Applicants Case The owner of Orcheton House Farm has been looking to diversify
the operation. The fish farm/fishery has received a number of
enquiries about the training of young people in fishing skills and
has directly assisted in the on-site training programme of Wigan
Council. Operationally, fishing training is already taking place on
site, however a classroom facility is now needed for indoor tuition.
Classes would consist of approximately 10 pupils and 5
supervisors and take place generally on weekdays between the
hours of 9am and 5pm. Letter of support have been enclosed from
Wigan Council Children & Young People’s Services/Wigan
Warriors. As the letter from Wigan Councils explains, Government
Policy in the form of ‘Every Child Matters’ and ‘Playing for
Success’ initiatives requires new study support centres and skills
initiatives to be created to help under-achievers in schools. A
fishing Academy has already been established at the CHAMPS
centre in Wigan and training has already been undertaken at
Orcheton House Farm Fish Farm/Fishery. Wigan Council is now
keen to permanently establish this initiative at the fishery which
will be the only ‘Fishing Playing for Success Satellite Centre’ in the
country.

Assessment Principle of the development
There are two aspects to the proposal; the replacement of the
existing agricultural workers dwellings; and the re-use and
relocation of the former dwelling as a fishing training centre. Each
will be covered in turn.

In relation to the replacement agricultural workers dwelling, the
existing dwelling is a single storey timber chalet style building. It
was permitted to be on the site on a permanent basis on appeal
following refusal by the Council and is subject to an occupancy
condition. A mobile home had been sited on site prior to the timber
building.  Agricultural workers dwellings are appropriate
development in the Green Belt and therefore are not contrary to
PPG2 or policy DC1.

Annex A to PPS7 provides guidance on planning application for
agricultural workers dwellings. Whilst the County Land Agent
acknowledges that the enterprise is not strictly agricultural the
principle of a dwelling on the site has been established by the
planning appeal decision. What is now for consideration is its
replacement with a larger dwelling of permanent materials.

The County Land agent states that the present dwelling is
reaching the end of its useful life and it is clear that a replacement
dwelling is required. In line with Paragraph 9 of Annex A to PPS7
agricultural workers dwellings should be commensurate with the
established functional requirement and it is the requirements of
the enterprise and not those of the owner that are relevant in
determining the size of a dwelling appropriate to the holding. The
previously withdrawn application (09/00678/FUL) proposed a
dwelling with a floor area of 165ml which the County Land Agent



Agenda Page 62 Agenda ltem 4d

considered too large and inappropriate for the holding. The current
application now proposes a dwelling with a more modest floor
area of 120m, on the same site as the existing dwelling, which
following a meeting with the County Land Agent is considered
acceptable. The proposed dwelling will be over two-storeys as
opposed to the existing single storey timber dwelling on the site.
However, there is a significant land level difference on the site
which the design will exploit and the ridge height of the proposed
dwelling is therefore approximately only 1m higher than the
existing and will not have an unacceptable impact on the
openness of the Green Belt.

In terms of materials the dwelling will be constructed of brick with
a slate roof and will have a timber porch and a balcony
overlooking the lake. The materials are considered acceptable
subject to a condition requiring samples to be submitted. The
replacement dwelling is therefore considered acceptable in terms
of PPS7 subject to an occupancy condition also being imposed on
it.

The other aspect of the proposals is to relocate the existing timber
dwelling for use as a fishing training centre for the training of
fishing skills. The applicant has looked at ways of providing the
necessary facilities (including an indoor classroom).

In terms of planning policy conversion of one or part of the existing
buildings to provide a classroom would be preferable if possible.
The applicant advises that he has investigated converting one of
his existing farm buildings and the most obvious place to locate
this facility would be in the end section of the existing timber barn
close to the main fishing lake. However, the cost of upgrading and
converting such an old building to meet modern standards has
proved prohibitive. However, with the proposed replacement of the
existing single storey timber dwelling the opportunity arises to
relocate this building to a suitable location nearby location and use
it for training purposes with little need for modification, the only
costs being the relocation of the building, minor roof repairs and
connections to the mains services. However, two rear bays of the
barn will be demolished when the former dwelling is relocated.

In terms of policy PPG2 and policy DC1 of the Local Plan state
that essential facilities for outdoor sport and recreation are
appropriate development in the Green Belt. The relocated building
will be used as a classroom (6 x 6.5m) with an integral kitchen,
bathroom/toilet and the two former small bedrooms will be used
for the storage of equipment. The size of the former dwelling is not
considered excessive for the requirements. In terms of openness
of the Green Belt the floor area of the relocated dwelling would be
30ml less than the two rear bays of the barn that are proposed to
be demolished. In addition the siting of the former dwelling is
considered to relate well to the other buildings on the site,
positioned between the buildings and the lake behind the
proposed new dwelling. The proposal is therefore considered
acceptable in line with PPG2, policy DC1 and PPS7. Conditions
will be applied controlling its use and that it shall not be used as a
dwelling.

Neighbour Amenity
The nearest property to the proposals is High Heyes Farm to the
north which is over 80m away from the proposed replacement




Agenda Page 63 Agenda ltem 4d

dwelling and relocated building. The proposals will not therefore
have an unacceptable impact on the amenities of this property.

Highways and Parking

There has been no objection from Lancashire County Council
Highways and there is considered to be sufficient existing parking
at the site for the proposals. It is not considered that the increase
in traffic with have a detrimental impact on highway safety or the
amenity of neighbouring properties.

Other

A commuted sum contribution towards public open space is not
required as the proposed dwelling replaces an existing one on the
site.

Recommendation: Permit Full Planning Permission
Conditions

1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of
this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The occupation of the dwelling hereby approved shall be limited to a person solely or
mainly working, or last working, at Orcheton House Farm and engaged in the fish rearing
enterprise, or a widow or widower of such a person, and to any resident dependents.
Reason: To ensure that the dwelling is kept available to meet the needs of Orcheton
House Farm, as the site is within an area where residential development are not
normally permitted and in accordance with PPS7 and PPG2.

3. Once the existing dwelling is removed from its existing position the residential use of it
shall cease and it shall be repositioned as shown on Drawing No. 09W058/001 Rev D
stamp dated 2™ November 2009, following demolition of 2 bays of the agricultural type
building. Thereafter the building shall only be used for the purposes of a fishing training
centre as detailed in the Design and Access Statement accompanying the application.
Otherwise it shall be removed from the site.

Reason: To prevent a proliferation of building in the Green Belt for which there is not an
on-going need and in accordance with PPG2 and policy DC1 of the Adopted Chorley
Borough Local Plan Review.

4. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until samples of all external
facing materials to the proposed building(s) (notwithstanding any details shown on
previously submitted plan(s) and specification) have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out using
the approved external facing materials.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in
accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and DC8A of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (as amended) (Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A to E), or any
Order revoking or re-enacting that Order, with or without modification, no alterations or
extensions shall be undertaken to the dwelling(s) hereby permitted, or any garage, shed
or other outbuilding erected (other than those expressly authorised by this permission).
Reason: The dwelling is associated with Orcheton House Farm and the Local Planning
Authority wish to control the size of the dwelling in the future, in line with Planning Policy
Statement 7 to protect the appearance of the locality and openness of the Green Belt
and in accordance with PPG2 and policy DC1 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local
Plan Review.



Agenda Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 65 Agenda ltem 4d

’mx——/
Drain

y 4

High Heys Farm

Y

(CHORLEY RURAL WEST ED

Jane E Meek BSc(Hons) DipTP MRTPI
Director of Development and Regeneration
Chorley Borough Council

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Chorley B.C. 100018509

Application No.
09/00873/FUL

Grid Ref:
E: 353007

N: 415983

Scale:

1:1,250 4




Agenda Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



—

e

ﬁ

|

(

i
L

l

Ol

I

£
I

|

ﬁig;ZE j

lors

0

to make your GOITI]

North Elevation

6000

1100

South Elevation

|
L

Agenda Paqge 67

100

New Dwelling 1

N

!
1650
5100

West Elevation

.~ Slate roof
Black PVC

- rain water
goods

———n
=

—Red facing brick

and boalustrades

Stone lintel
Hardwwod double

E Timber handrail
;
glazed windows

<
s
H

Stone Quoins

Stone cills

a_.

West Elevation

CLLLLLLTTLL
R2000RRRRRRRAN
13830050 0000R00010

100

Training Centre 1

At

East Elevation

4200

AVLULCULLULLL DT E L e e
145909509900000000000 00N RN R AN AR AR RN RRARAREAN
ﬁﬁ###ﬁﬁﬁAyy#HyﬁﬁyﬁﬁyﬁyyﬁyﬁyyHﬂﬁyﬁﬂyﬁyyyﬁﬁyyyﬁyyyﬁy

1

3508000000 00RRRANS
495004000000 000RR R0 0RRA
7000805800 00RRRRR00RRRARARARE
3999500000000 000RRR00RRR 00NN

3

4999009000000 000RR0RRR0RRRRARARARANNY
4359000000000 000RR00RANNN

[4935459000900000 00000000 00RN00

8959995900080 00000R000RRR0RRRATRNN

4599980000000 000R00RRRRARARARIRAANN
LT

[3990558900000000000R00RRR0RRRRRRRRRRNARAS
J49590999000000 0000000 00RRARRRRRRANE

ATCCCLUTLLCLTC LU DL LU L iy

[49999080000000000000000 0 R0RRRRARRARNRRTRRNRARRARRAL
CLEEELTL T i i i g

49995595908 000000 0000000 RRANRRARARRARRARTRRRRARRARIANN
[59999599905550000000000 000 RRRRRRRR Rt ReRneaRnneanite
CLLTLLTLELCE LT LT i e e,
3190859000000 0 000NN AN AR NN A AN RR RN RRRRRRERARRRRAA Y
4999559090008 000 000 R0RRARRRRNRRRRARNRRARARRRAANY
[49999999009008000000000 0000 0NN NN RNRR NN RRRRRRRA Y
[§99988505090800080000000000R00RA00R0RRRRRRRRRARRRRENN
LLCLTELRT e e iy

N ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%yﬁﬂﬁyyﬁﬁﬁw

i

[

]

]
Wﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁy 4
<

P

[RRS8000080101
[§9999909009000 0000000000 R0RRRRARNARTRRTRRARARRARRANN

Retoiing Woll

North Elevation

42.00

41.5

Replacement Dweliing

1B00h facther adge
B Rl

o
Q
<+

40.5

53
58
st
s
2w
=2
[
oL
=L
EE
i~ o

East Elevation

=

N BEFERRED 1O |
A

-2 NOV 2009

CHORLEY BOROUGH COUNGIL

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1890

THIS IS THE PLA
APPLICATION No.

40.00

39.5

Timber handrait

and balustrades \Li

9.00

South Elevation

8.5

37.5

38.00

Agenda ltem Aa|_

. E
2| L, : :
- m 2 :
m iz z w.. m
E 8 o
+ : =
53 5 . i3:
o = g 8 .w. mmo
o . N G mm
E e L m mso
mm m s |§ % o% mmmm
aa ) mm n g% 3F mmmmm
g § £% w8 I
= aw_.h g mwv
2|88 E 9= 23 1
q 5% 8 g0 2E 5 smmmm
T BE | - |8_ |8 5% 32 2 Bgash
5 mA 8 BMSMm m wmmm
B (4 |ie [ ogctEs e
58 |8 |28 |3% |5 s8302 Mmmmmm
Auoaeg
S,
c
1
o ©o o
M oo m FOl
L <
Il 25
. w-m
| X
I -
TR
2 I
B0 I
] I
I |
| 1 I 1 n
L (D = &
s O ¢ o)
il d ; 2
= <K PR g 3 _ ~ g o
o — /. \ ™ _' m o
L ri..f 3 S
i ™\ 8 H -
(8 ey * 2 o imef QB
W ~ \Q o hLII g o QD
,m,.« ..... ﬂ__.“ .n p W mw
_ -1 0
Jl I LN
E
~+
|
|
1
1
I
| |
||
1 |
i |
| |
| |
|
|
|
|
|
—_ |
w |
o |
. _
o] |
i S - _
2 | & !
5 |
- I...._
5 I
: “
g n
|
|
o _
j !
]
[N
__, _ = |
J _ [ m_ 3 ““ =
il h i
<o (INT=EICE] |
2 o | i
58 TmmiE iy
o2 |l e | %
£ =gl | @
® 5 it L
.m.m, M
52
&
<
-
o
®
3
< LLJ
< £
S _ ‘ 3
" 73]
QO
72
=
8
a.
o
@
&
Q
a
£




Agenda Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 69 Agenda ltem 4e

ltem 5 09/00850/FUL Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)
Case Officer Mrs Nicola Hopkins

Ward Chorley South East

Proposal Re-plan of part of the site including the construction of 8

dwellings, parking court and associated garages (amendment
to reserved matters approval 07/01226/REMMAJ). Including
the erection of 1 additional dwelling.

Location Formerly Multipart Distribution Limited Pilling Lane Chorley
Applicant Barratt Homes Manchester
Proposal The application relates to an amendment to the previously

approved reserved matters application at the former Multipart site,
Pilling Lane. Planning permission was granted in January 2008 for
the erection of 400 dwellings on the whole site. The site was split
into two with Barratt Homes gaining planning permission for half
the site and Redrow Homes gaining planning permission for the
other half.

The half of the site subject to this planning application relates to
the Barratts half of the site. Barratt Homes propose to amend part
of their site which includes removing a footpath/cycle link to Smith
Street which was originally approved.

Summary The proposal incorporates amending the approved layout and
removing the footpath/cycle link to Smith Street. A few of the
residents along Smith Street raised concerns with this access and
it is considered that the amended scheme alleviates these
concerns. The proposal results in the addition of an extra dwelling
in this location when compared to the previous approval. The
proposed changes are very minor and are considered to be
acceptable.

Planning Policy PPS 1, PPS3, PPS23, PPG13. Policy DP1, Policy DP3, Policy
UR7,
Policy ER5 (NWRSS). Policy 7, Policy 12, Policy 21, Access and
Parking SPG, Landscape and Heritage SPG (JLSP). GN1, EP4,
EP9, EP10, HS4, HS19 (ACBLPR)

Planning History = 04/00934/OUTMAJ- Residential development including roads,
sewers, open space, landscaping and associated works.
Approved

07/01226/REMMAJ- Reserved Matters Application for the erection
of 200 houses, with associated roads, footpaths, and works.
Approved January 2008

Applicant’s Case @ The following points have been submitted in support of the
application:
71 The proposal is to rotate plots B80-B83 to allow them a
frontage outlook into the development. These units faced
the other way due to a continuation of Smith Street and a
proposed cycle link both of which have been omitted.



Agenda Page 70 Agenda ltem 4e

(1 The proposal includes an extra Maidstone house type
attached to plots B84-B86 together with the central roof
gable to give these properties interesting elevational
treatments

1 The existing boundary wall will be retained and made good
where required, this will allow the remaining properties
surrounding the site a sense of privacy from the
development whilst maintaining a good treatment to the
development boundary

Representations None received
Consultations None received

Assessment Principle of the Development
The principle of redeveloping the site for residential development
was established with the grant of outline planning permission in
April 2005 and the subsequent grant of reserved matters
(07/01226/REMMAJ) in January 2008. The proposal incorporates
the redevelopment of a brownfield site within a sustainable
location.

The whole site is approximately 10.1 hectares in area. 400
dwellings equates to approximately 40 dwellings pre hectare
which is higher than the minimum 30 dwellings per hectare
recommendation set out in PPS3. The site represents high density
development which accords with the advice contained in PPSS3.

Amendments to the Approved Scheme

The application relates to amendments to part of the Barratts half
of the site. The originally approved scheme incorporated a
footpath/ cycle link from the development onto Smith Street, which
is a neighbouring residential street. Some of the residents along
Smith Street raised concerns with this link and as there is a
footpath/cycle link onto Grime Street close to Smith Street it was
considered that the link onto Smith Street was not necessary as
the nearby link onto Grime Street provided adequate linkages
between the site and the surrounding area. The Developers were
made aware of the concerns in respect of this link hence the
submission of this application and the proposed amendments to
this part of the site.

The proposed amendments include:
1 Removal of the footpath/cycle link onto Smith Street
1 Rotating plots B80-B83 to face into the development and
back onto the boundary of the site
71 The addition of one property attached to plots B84 and
B85

Impact on the Neighbours

The proposed amendments only relate to a small part of the site.
All of the properties proposed within this part of the site now face
into the development and back onto the side gables of the
properties on Smith Street and Poplar Street.

The proposed dwellings are two storey terraced properties which
is typical of the properties within the surrounding area. From the
rear of plots B84- B86 (including B123) 12.5 metres is retained to
the side gable of number 18 Poplar Street. From the rear elevation
of plots B82-B83 17 metres is retained to the side gable of 16



Agenda Page 71 Agenda ltem 4e

Smith Street. These measures exceed the Council's 12 metre
window to gable standard spacing distance and as such the
proposed dwellings will not adversely impact on the residents
amenities.

Internally within the site plots B80-B83 have adequately sized
gardens for the type of family dwelling proposed on this plot. Plots
B84- B86 (including B123) only have 9 metre long gardens. 16
metres in retained between the front of the dwellings and the
houses facing these properties on plots B87-B90 which reflects
what was approved previously but does not meet the Council’s 21
metre window to window distance. In certain situations reducing
the distance between the front of dwellings can create an active
overlooked street scene. As these properties overlook the
footpath/ cycle link it is considered that a ‘tighter’ street scene in
this location is appropriate. As this relationship has already been
approved and relocating the properties further forward to create
larger garden areas would further reduce the window to window
distance it is considered that the proposed dwellings have
adequate garden space to serve the type of dwelling proposed.

Highways and Parking

The proposed highway layout to serve the properties subject to
this application is identical to the previous layout and approval of
the highway layout does not form part of this planning application
as it already has approval.

The proposed amendments involve the erection of 3 and 4
bedroom properties. In accordance with the Council’s parking
standards 2 off road parking spaces are required for three
bedroom properties whilst 3 off road parking spaces are required
for 4+ bedroom properties.

The Maidstone house types are 3 bedroom dwellings which have
two allocated parking spaces within the adjacent car parking court.
This provision accords with the Council’s parking standards. The
car parking court is a similar arrangement to the approved
scheme.

Plots B80 to B83 have 2 off road parking spaces. Plot B80 has a
driveway and garage to the side of the dwelling. The garage
measures 6 metres by 6 metres (this is a double garage shared
with plot B79) which accords with Manual for Street. 6 metres is
retained in front of the garage to accommodate a car whilst the
garage door is open, in accordance with Manual for Streets. Plots
B81-B83 have 2 dedicated parking spaces each within the parking
court.

Although 3 car parking spaces per dwelling should be provided for
plots B80 to B83 this parking arrangement matches the approved
scheme and as such it would not be possible to refuse this
application on lack of parking. Additionally the parking court
incorporates 3 visitors spaces which provides additional parking
provision within this part of the site.

Design and Appearance

The proposed dwellings are very similar to the approved house
types for these plots and as such the proposals are considered to
be appropriate for this part of the site.



Agenda Page 72 Agenda ltem 4e

Trees

This part of the site accommodates a group of 8 trees which have
formed part of the site since the factory was on the site. In order to
access the proposed parking court two of the trees will have to be
removed however the access has been orientated to ensure the
majority of the trees can be retained and this arrangement was
agreed as part of the approved reserved matters application at the
site.

Section 106 Agreement

The original outline planning approval incorporated a Section 106
Agreement which was directly related to that outline permission
and subsequent reserved matters applications. As reserved
matter approval has been granted at the site and this application
is dealt with as a full application amendments to the original S106
agreement are required to refer to this application.

Conclusion The principle of residential development was established with the
grant of outline planning permission and reserved matters
approval. The amendments to the layout and house type
substitutions to the application site are considered to be minor and
as such the scheme is considered to be acceptable.

Recommendation  Approve Full Planning Permission (Subject to the Section 106
Agreement)
Refuse if the Legal Agreement is not signed by 7" January
2010

Recommendation: Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)
Conditions

1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of
this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in conformity with the
proposed ground and building slab levels shown on the approved plans or as may
otherwise be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority before any development
is first commenced.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in the interests of the amenities
of local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review

3. No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such detalil
which may have previously been submitted. The scheme shall indicate all existing trees
and hedgerows on the land; detail any to be retained, together with measures for their
protection in the course of development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and
shrubs to be planted, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard
landscaped; and detail any changes of ground level or landform.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy
No.GNS5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

4. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of any
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees
or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die,



Agenda Page 73 Agenda ltem 4e

are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning
Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of the appearance of the locality and in accordance with Policy
No GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. The external facing materials detailed on plan reference 400/PM01 Rev A, received
23" November 2009, shall be used and no others substituted without the prior written
approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in
accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review

6. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour,
form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials (notwithstanding any such detail
shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be
carried out in conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the visual
amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

7. Surface water must drain separate from the foul and no surface water will be
permitted to discharge to the foul sewerage system.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP17 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

8. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the Management
Company to deal with the future management and maintenance of the site shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall
thereafter be managed by the approved Management Company.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory management of the unadopted highways and public
open space and in accordance with Policies TR4 and HS21 of the Adopted Chorley
Borough Local Plan Review.

9. The site shall be remediated in accordance with BAE Environmental Remediation
Strategy Report (Reference: A0356-02-R1-1). Upon completion of the remediation works
a verfication/ completion report containing any validation sample results shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by ensuring that
the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the proposed end use and in
accordance with Government advice contained in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control

10. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until that part of the service road
which provides access to it from the public highway has been constructed in accordance
with the approved plans.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy No.TR4 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

11. The garages hereby permitted shall be kept freely available for the parking of cars,
notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995.

Reason: In order to safeguard the residential amenity and character of the area and in
accordance with Policy HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review

12. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the proposed residents
consultation procedure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details shall include information on how the residents will be
kept informed on the progress of the development prior to commencement and during
the development period. Additionally details of the main contact / site manager during
the development shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority and the residents



Agenda Page 74 Agenda ltem 4e

prior to the commencement of the development. The residents consultation plan shall be
implemented and completed in accordance with the approved procedure.

Reason: To ensure that the existing residents are fully aware of the progress of the
development.

13. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of the
position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected (notwithstanding
any such detail shown on previously submitted plans) shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until
all fences and walls shown in the approved details to bound its plot have been erected in
conformity with the approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved
details shall have been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to
substantial completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide reasonable
standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No. HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

14. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
measures set out within the action plan of the Residential Travel Plan dated April 2009
(submitted under application 09/00374/DIS).

Reason: To reduce the number of car borne trips and to encourage the use of public
transport and to accord with Policies TR1 and TR4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough
Local Plan Review.

15. During the construction period, all trees to be retained shall be protected by 1.2
metre high fencing as specified in paragraph 8.2.2 of British Standard BS5837:2005 at a
distance from the tree trunk equivalent to the outermost limit of the branch spread, or at
a distance from the tree trunk equal to half the height of the tree (whichever is further
from the tree trunk), or as may be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.  No construction materials, spoil, rubbish, vehicles or equipment shall be
stored or tipped within the areas so fenced. All excavations within the area so fenced
shall be carried out by hand.

Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP9
of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

16. The existing soil levels around the base of the trees to be retained shall not be
altered.

Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP9
of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

17. Prior to the commencement of the development a schedule for the phased repair/
replacement of the boundary walls shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The information shall include a structural report of the
walls/boundary treatment and details of any retaining structures. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved schedule of works.

Reason: In the interests of the structural integrity of the site and the visual amenities of
the area. In accordance with Policy GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

18. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the gate treatment, to
secure the alleyway between plots B84-B123 and plots B82-B83,
shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The gates
shall thereafter be retained in perpetuity with access limited to the occupants of plots
B84, B123, B82 and B83.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to reduce any potential
security issues. In accordance with Policy GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local
Plan Review.



Agenda Page 75 Agenda ltem 4e

19. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced full details of lighting
proposals for the proposed parking court shall have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such detail shown on
previously submitted plans. The development shall only be carried out in conformity with
the approved details.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality, to prevent light pollution, in the
interests of public safety and crime prevention and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5
and EP21A of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.




Agenda Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Jane E Meek BSc(Hons) DipTP MRTPI
Director of Development and Regeneration
Chorley Borough Council

Application No.
09/00850/FUL

Grid Ref:
E: 358655

N: 416494




Agenda Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



T . WARNNG TOHOUSE PURCHAGERS |
Lt i o Property Misdeserigtions Acl 1001

QYO SNMOCHLNOS

TR TR RETEINIA €2 bt iz x i rowra
LTI e g =

.
e Fes
bt £ N
3 3 B . .

CI I TN g i -
: i oo WWEE H|
e ]‘Jsi"' ! GOR
; ! BN .

Lo
0 ; A .
s ALE
! Lol
; 1t o
3 ' B
¢ - b CRE
. i ficd g
L;:n Y L . “ ” E H
c ;
X : ! : i ! >
Coa N Q_:)
: ; i .
. 28 [ 1 i : l ftl;on:‘-'-?ma\-%— m—u
4 i A .
For entianzo detai cfer : . Q
0 divg 253 P01 Rav A s e - ; (@)
| 1At Block B2 ) : ()(Z %;( S o)
i - . frdr Do 5 I L P “*b v ;
@, ! pplsean] ~l
i ER ORI A b R pelond
P BOEAELASEIEIE awe w
&
{ ™ ‘ i . 5 Gow bg
L . H
P {
! : H i r B S
. ]
H i i E oAt N
=, ﬁé‘y i { [
< gl o VS
C . o RN ) o 48
i_:‘ . d ‘. = } @ i ' Qo kS
egena. =3 K *
a | 5 O Wl M
: & Ty s
Propused dwelling and bause ype cade. . i a, i ! . B bR el g
j : o ! [),“”rr[\.
Proposed garage (6 he buit, : P ~ P ; ~ : i : L b R U e
‘ i 7
Handing of plot. z i ; : ; : ‘ R e
i Dual aspect gable pasiton : ' ! : [
; ; i i | . ]
Apress fBodr To dweling. ; : ! ' : i
7 o LTI 39 53 E 'gg] BARRATT ’
| : : ' L Lo £
i Iavlesiat 1 - Heringlione paving ‘ . : i _ L i [ J HOMES @
e Fostmtn tl)
Matoa 2 - Blogk paving MANCHESTER y 3
Barratt Homes Wanchester
Type G - 1800mm exsting bundaey vall {4 (Iivh:‘tol:”nl;dﬂtl:;\'g;;:Ing Lrd} Q_
! ‘ i : ' . City Park m
Type £ - 1800mm high fimber close boaeded fence. . s i - | abr i ; ‘ Mm%li;:;g:r
i ; | i : o ! Tei: 0161 872 0151 i —
) . i L !
Type E - WO0mM high bowicp raiings. ! b | ; ' , ! ,i | }‘ i ! ] Fax; 0161 855 2828 - § CD
i i [ i 1 i dats
! L i o i i | i i i : 3
: [ i i Lo | )
Type F - 1800mm High prvacy seroen with timber knee rail B [ . ; il i ] s 1 ; 1 i | | Piling Lane - Choidey 1‘ .
i i ' L ' .
: ey - L i H i mm— - = e
Praposed Landscaping, {Shown indicatively) 1: . ; i ; - g [ : Ty ‘ E -h
- T . Plann g Layout l CD
Cxisting trees o be relainad. !
* aihouier [n-,u i
i Eriging traes & be remaved i 4091 PLU % £ i 5
i { i i




Agenda Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 81 Agenda ltem 4f

ltem 6 09/00745/FULMAJ Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Case Officer Mr Andy Wiggett

Ward Chorley East

Proposal Proposed Residential Development. Erection of 66 Dwellings
and Associated Infrastructure.

Location Quarry Road Industrial Estate Quarry Road Chorley

Applicant Northern Trust Ltd

Proposal The proposal is a full planning application. The scheme proposes

66 mixed two storey dwelling types including 3 bungalows The
proposed main vehicular access into the site is from the existing
access off Quarry Road with a further access serving only a small
number of dwellings off Fell View, again at the location of the
existing access. The application follows on from the outline
application which Committee resolved to approve in February
2009.

Policy Regional Spatial Strategy for the North West
L4
W3
EM1
RDF2

Chorley Borough Local Plan Review 2003
GN1
EM9
HS4
HS6
TR4

Planning Policy Statement 1 - General Principles
PPS3 - Housing

Planning History =~ 08/00023/OUTMAJ: Proposed residential development for 72 no.
2, 2.5 and 3 storey mixed dwelling types with associated roads
and open space - refused

08/01147/OUTMAJ: Proposed residential development for 76 no.
2, 2.5, 3 & 4 storey mixed dwelling types with associated works —
approved subject to S106 agreement

Consultations Lancashire County Council Highways
Raises no concerns from a highway point of view but wishes to
secure a contribution of £17500 towards traffic calming on Yarrow
Road and Canterbury Street.
Lancashire County Resources Directorate
Wish to see a developer contribution of £88260 towards youth
services, waste management and public art and public realm.
Neighbourhoods Directorate



Agenda Page 82 Agenda ltem 4f

Due to the nature of the industries and processes carried on the
land there is a potential for ground contamination. Recommends
that conditions be attached requiring an investigation and
assessment be carried out.

Environment Agency

Having received a contaminated land report from the applicants
we would withdraw our objection to the development subject to
conditions requiring further investigation and the production of a
remediation strategy. Encouragement should be given to the
developer to produce a sustainable drainage system.

United Utilities

No objections to the proposal provided it is drained to separate
systems. A water supply can be provided.

Coal Authority

Standard comments

Planning Policy

Whilst the retention or redevelopment of employment sites for
employment uses is normally preferred, the fact that this particular
site does not perform well when assessing its specific suitability
for employment re-use, particularly with regard to its poor road
access, combined with the fact that it has been marketed without
attracting occupiers, means that we do not object to this site being
redeveloped for housing.

Representations One letter of objection has been received raising the following
issue:
e The emergency exit off Fell view will be used as a short
cut to the houses:

Applicant’s Case

e There is a presumption in favour of appropriate
development as an unallocated site within the
settlement of Chorley

e The proposal for the site represents the redevelopment
of previously used land in conformity with national and
regional planning policies

e With regard to the provisions of Policy EM9 of the
Local Plan, it is considered that an employment re-use
or redevelopment would no longer be appropriate for
planning or environmental reasons

e The traffic assessment concluded that the development
proposals will not have a material impact on the
operational performance of the local highway network

Assessment The main issues concern planning policy, highway and traffic
matters, land contamination ecological concerns and design and
amenity considerations.

Planning Policy

Members will recall the resolution in February of this year to
approve in outline a scheme for residential development of the
land. The Local Planning Authority has, therefore, established the
principle of the use of the land and the paragraphs below reiterate
the considerations taken into account then. This is no longer a
material consideration in regard to the determination of this



Agenda Page 83 Agenda ltem 4f

application but is set out in order that the planning context is
clearly explained.

The key issue with regard to planning policy matters was
compatibility with Policy EM9 — Redevelopment of Existing
Employment Sites for Non-Employment Uses and the relevant
Supplementary Planning Guidance. Those considered suitable to
be re-used for employment purposes are intended to be reserved
for such uses unless there is no realistic prospect for an
employment re-use, it would not be economically viable or it would
nor be appropriate for planning or environmental reasons. The
applicant submitted a copy of a report prepared by GVA Grimley
which concluded that the site was not a particularly suitable one to
be reused for employment purposes and demonstrated that the
site was not viable for redevelopment for industrial/warehouse
uses. The existing premises are poorly accessed, functionally
obsolete and detrimental to the amenity of adjoining residents. A
marketing exercise had been carried out without attracting any
potential occupiers. The proposal, therefore, met the criteria set
out in Policy EM9 so as to permit the site to be reused for a non-
employment use.

In terms of housing policy the proposal complies with the criteria
set out in HS6 — Housing Windfall Sites as the site is brownfield, in
a sustainable location and is compatible with the surrounding uses
in terms of amenity and impact on surrounding uses.

The applicant has agreed to provide affordable housing at a level
of 20%, that is 13 dwellings.

With regard to the policies of the Regional Spatial Strategy, the
additional housing will contribute to the housing figures set out in
Policy L4 and is compatible with the aims of Policy RDF2 which
seeks to concentrate development in key service centres such as
Chorley town.

Highway and Traffic Considerations

The County Highway Authority have no objections to the principle
of the development and are only seeking a contribution towards
traffic calming in the area. The traffic assessment submitted with
the application confirms that it is in a sustainable location and that
traffic generated by the development proposal compared with that
attracted by the permitted industrial use will be little different and
have the added advantage of removing HGVs from the area.

Land Contamination and Ecological Considerations

The application is accompanied by a comprehensive geotechnical
survey of the site. The Environment Agency have assessed the
report and withdrawn their initial objection but wish to see
conditions imposed to secure a method statement and
remediation strategy which also would cover the possibility of
further contamination being found and for post remediation
sampling and monitoring. The land was previously tipped in
connection with an adjoining brick and terracotta works. Since
then the land has been completely covered in concrete surfaces
and buildings and has no ecological value. Along the frontage
with the houses on Fell View there is an area of landscaping but
this would be retained. The application is accompanied by a



Agenda Page 84 Agenda ltem 4f

report on arboricultural issues which concludes that the
development as proposed will not have an adverse or negative
impact on the local or wider landscape given that those trees
proposed for removal are almost all of a relatively poor condition
and that the proposals can be used as a means of replacing these
trees with better specimens as part of a landscaping scheme
prepared for the site. It also recommends that an appropriate
method of Japanese Knotweed eradication be formulated.

Design and Amenity Considerations

The detailed scheme differs from the outline application in that a
piece of land that currently forms a landscaped area on Fell View
will be incorporated into the site and be used for frontage housing
together with a small parking court. The scheme now includes
footways along Fell View which serves the existing housing
development there. The trees being removed consist of poor
silver birch specimens and it is considered that on balance the
improved layout benefits the current residents more than the loss
of the trees. The layout satisfies the Council’s interface distances
in relation to the houses on Hornby Road and the new houses will
be at approximately the same level. The houses on Fell View have
blank elevations towards the proposed new houses. Their design
of brick with tile roofs with small porch and projecting brick dentil
features is considered acceptable.

Conclusion: The current application satisfies the relevant policy criteria with
regard to new housing and follows on from the Council’s approval
of the outline planning application. It is on a brownfield site that
can be released from employment use as the requirements of
Policy EM9 have been met. The layout is acceptable and does not
adversely affect the amenity of adjoining houses. The Highway
Authority have no objections subject to securing a contribution to
traffic calming measures. This matter, a contribution to open
space provision and affordable housing will form part of a S106
agreement to be entered into before the planning permission is
issued.

Recommendation: Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)
Conditions

1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of
this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour,
form and texture of all external facing materials to the proposed buildings
(notwithstanding any details shown on the previously submitted plans and specification)
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall only be carried out using the approved external facing materials.
Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in
accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

3. No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such detalil



Agenda Page 85 Agenda ltem 4f

which may have previously been submitted. The scheme shall indicate all existing trees
and hedgerows on the land; detail any to be retained, together with measures for their
protection in the course of development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and
shrubs to be planted, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard
landscaped; and detail any changes of ground level or landform.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy
No.GNS5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

4. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of any
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees
or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die,
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning
Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of the appearance of the locality and in accordance with Policy
No GNS5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced full details of existing
and proposed ground levels and proposed building slab levels (all relative to ground
levels adjoining the site) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted
plans. The development shall only be carried out in conformity with the approved
details.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality, in the interests of the amenities of
local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley
Borough Local Plan Review.

6. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour,
form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials (notwithstanding any such detalil
shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be
carried out in conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the visual
amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

7. Japanese Knotweed is present within the application area. Under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) it is an offence to cause Japanese Knotweed to
grow in the wild. Therefore a programme of control/eradication of this species shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of the development. The programme shall accord with Environment
Agency Guidelines.

Reason: To ensure the eradication of Japanese Knotweed in accordance with the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amendeq).

8. No development shall take place until full details have been submitted of the predicted
energy use of the development expressed in terms of carbon emissions and a schedule
setting out how energy efficiency is being addressed, including benchmark data. It will
show on-site measures to be installed and implemented so as to produce a minimum of
10% or locally set targets whichever is the higher) of the predicted energy use of the
development by means of low carbon energy sources. Appropriate on-site measures
include rainwater/brown water recycling. No development shall commence until the
scheme has been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details as
may be approved shall be implemented and retained in perpetuity unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area, in line with the objective of National
Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement : Planning, the Climate Change
Supplement to PPS1 and Chorley Borough Council’s Adopted Sustainable Resources
DPD.



Agenda Page 86 Agenda ltem 4f

9. During the construction period, all trees to be retained shall be protected by 1.2 metre
high fencing as specified in paragraph 8.2.2 of British Standard BS5837:2005 at a
distance from the tree trunk equivalent to the outermost limit of the branch spread, or at
a distance from the tree trunk equal to half the height of the tree (whichever is further
from the tree trunk), or as may be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.  No construction materials, spoil, rubbish, vehicles or equipment shall be
stored or tipped within the areas so fenced. All excavations within the area so fenced
shall be carried out by hand.

Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP9
of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

10. No development shall take place until:

a) a methodology for investigation and assessment of ground contamination has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
investigation and assessment shall be carried out in accordance with current best
practice including British Standard 10175:2001 “Investigation of potentially
contaminated sites — Code of Practice”. The objectives of the investigation shall be,
but not limited to, identifying the types, nature and extent of contamination present to
the site, risks to receptors and potential for migration within and beyond the site
boundary;

b) all testing specified in the approved scheme (submitted under a) and the results of
the investigation and risk assessment, together with remediation proposals to render
the site capable of development have been submitted to the Local Planning
Authority;

¢) the Local Planning Authority has given written approval to the remediation proposals
(submitted under b), which shall include an implementation timetable and monitoring
proposals. Upon completion of the remediation works, a validation report containing
any validation sampling results have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by ensuring that
the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the proposed end use and in
accordance with the guidance in PPS23 — Planning and Pollution




Agenda Page 87 Agenda ltem 4f

& 39—
36
N R Play
Area
37 Play Area
8

46 . 48| 49
54
56
JSS
51
—

= Ar
F

_

H The Bungalow

Cowling
Mil
/\ ==
i R duced fi the Ord S i ith th issi
Jane E Meek BSc(Hons) DipTP MRTPI of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. Crown Copyrigh.
Director of Deve|opment and Regeneration Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
) may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Chorley Borough Council Chorley B.C. 100018509
Application No. Grid Ref: Scale:
E: 359389 6
09/00745/FULMAJ N: 416861 1:1,250




Agenda Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



B I [ 1
X x b
¢ —— 12 11
Q 5
X6
T %4
. -
® X
X 4 aé:;
1
3
= FELL M IEY
o JT// o = -’_L v );a
o) ( / :
R . J _° 'n_ - o]
Sl emsimg Lreel, ond ‘{LU gt - _‘X’ Q\ B L 7 __j
hown-grd—formmcw n‘ e } -1 2 s 6 iy
w@erp . tootpnthr - iy VoL ] —j }H l - - fi 15 18t r) — e
TN t 7 Y jr— \\m_ . ! [ T B
VJO{I /’(‘N WE—)_“_M;L'!E ]]_m_‘ el
* i - . S ot v o S
§ 18] - " . . 1gltg
sovnctl | parking {uzii 984 £TL | EEL 3% 088 1 988 | ¥ ns {5 |15 wlars jvs |17 1211 1211
i 0L | § :'}-"’ — JUUU P B B iyt
w e bere | 2L | | court 3 - o [ [
i & | x 23 — -
S M | i | — W |
— S t :[ \5 [ll 0 E' J'Tn l:_?-l _1" I \_l; l —| mm_& """"""
o @y ; e e -
e : e [ 1 S S T e -
(o || 6 | | e (@ ] el s & A=) 1 r
e il ol . 6 - P |
Ty |selssiil i 53 ™ S e K )
e ~ I 1 P a e > e ;o
L. ! =] —-! b | }
5 i H =] - 2
75 |67 |75 TR L Rt TR AN i 3 [ ; ‘ 1]
S i =] ' 3 ! ik i
i 55 55 = 4 aor N "
. - i I s N s I ALl M T o
1 Ei i o _ T 56 et SiL cegy | :
e T L o WOrks X _f_ ; 5
a6 ] ! - 1 o 58 s SV, S N N
BrvaLY - parking : [ IO R R —— ] i e ] [
e court i i 4 7 A i | g ey e
S #S 45 i b ! . =t ;
f 1 = . : 57 A H
S g HI L e [ & —{ e i 3
7] [&% — i \ 56 L i
i e : I s o ey Ty o
1 ] . ; 5 s | & GREC :
- " u;, & g 1] ’. It :
- § aloy - i o
Garoge R %\"’ "y . * E | i |
} KL S o A R
_1 A o J | |8k7 75 715 1773 ns k| I mm %
..... = B o i . | =
5% — X A 59160 ti62 B 3
Kl 313 ;::‘(,i H &
ch 125 . -
. o 7
T P Ar
] Mo
T Al Llel A e
17{36) 13 fjas)] [35]a4] 34 33‘ 33|32 lm 3t
i Jj_‘ - ; - X
;'LL SLL Ll ‘L’L:’_ SiL ) %L CLL | SiL

= L HT T

Yimngr FEkedl

GARAGE

s
YHEEY

BryaLLPRoUND
L.

RCUGH GROUND

SGURITY FUPCE

t ViR fesn rence

aaaaa — T
eI R \ ol o Il == M R
g TryaLLl Frunt -
e suNGaLDE L'—)S—:'
F}iEI)GE e
The Bungalow
e =T
Om - 10m 20m
ACCESS DEHIED E ! | ; | i i I | ! ‘

Scale Bar 1:.500

om 10m
L il
Scale Bar 1:500

20m
| ¢}

W, T FELLOWS
ORI TUAD, CHORLEY
ACCOMNMODATTONSCHEYILE
m TEEL SALE
TTNANE TYPE SQTT RO TOTAUBUTT
1277 FEEY R HORE {12 (3 76
BT FEEDTET HOSE e 7 1654
b D SEMIHOUSE T 827 7 5789
775 FBED SEWHOUSE 1T 175 i) AT
7S SEED TERRIDUSE 1775~ z GRL
RO TEETTERRHADUSE 70 5 T350
TOTAL 53 T334
AFFORDAELE
B0 S HED TERRHADUSE [ 856 5 LK
7 2 BEDTERRAOUSE {773 5 KIS
543 TBED TERR BUNG 5473 3 1528
TOTAL 13 9674
A Plos44 &ﬁimumlwmi 470909 ELIA)
C Mo 23:05:00 JRM
CLIENT
M.J. Fellows Ltd, =l¢‘=
PHOJECT anE
Proposed Residential Development at ARCHTECTURAL CONSULTANTS
Quarry Road, Chotley. 213 PRESTONOAD
WHIRE-LE.WOBDS
CHORLEY
DRAWING THEE LANCASHIRE
i PRE6 TPS
Proposed Site Layout o A
FAX: 01257 267224
: wiverdmpardilieels.oo.uk
DATE SCALE A7 DRAWN | DRWG No, REV
31:07:08 1:.200 JRM 09/066/P20 B8 © Copyriht Lavison Margerlson Praction Lid.

69-26e4.epuaby..

Jv wal| epusby



Agenda Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 91 Agenda ltem 4g

ltem 7 09/00749/FULMAJ Permit (Subject to Legal Agreement)
Case Officer Mrs Nicola Hopkins

Ward Chorley East

Proposal Erection of 37 dwellings (amendment to layout, design,

landscaping and external appearance approval as part of
planning approval 02/00680/REMMAJ)

Location Land Between Froom Street And Crosse Hall Lane Chorley
Applicant Mrs Nichola Burns

1 letter has been received querying the increased traffic
levels

Consultation expiry: 11" November 2009

Application expiry: 8" January 2010

Proposal The application incorporates amendments to a previously
approved scheme. The previous scheme (02/00680/REMMAJ)
incorporated the erection of 161 dwellinghouses. The proposal
incorporates amendments to part of the site and seeks to amend
the layout, design, landscaping and external appearance of 37
dwellings on the site. A subsequent planning approval at the site
amended the originally approved layout and resulted in a scheme
which incorporates the erection of 164 dwellings across the whole
site.

The site is located between Froom Street and Cross Hall Lane,
Chorley and covers a site area of 7.83 hectares. The principle of
redeveloping the site for residential use was established as far
back as 1988 with the grant of outline planning permission. In
addition to this the site is allocated as a housing site within the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

The whole site is 7.83 hectares in size. The proposed
amendments would result in the construction of 172 dwellings
across the whole site which equates to a density of 22 dwellings
per hectare. This part of the site covers 0.83 hectares.

The gross density of the proposed scheme is some 22 dwellings
per hectare. This falls well below the Government’s recommended
minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare necessary to achieve
a relatively efficient use of land. However, this is a somewhat
constrained site which reduces the effective developable area. In
addition to this the principle of a low density development has
already been established at the site and this proposal would
actually increase the previously approved density creating a more
efficient use of land.

Summary This proposal relates to an amendment to a previously approved
scheme. The principle of redeveloping the site was established
over 20 years ago and this proposal which results in an increase
in the number of dwellings on the site will represent more efficient
use of the land.



Agenda Page 92 Agenda ltem 4g

Planning Policy Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable
Development
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing
Planning Policy Statement 23: Planning and Pollution Control
Planning Policy Statement 25: Development and Flood Risk
Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport

North West Regional Spatial Strategy:

Policy DP1: Spatial Principles

Policy DP2: Promote Sustainable Communities

Policy DP4: Make the best use of Existing Resources and
Infrastructure

Policy DP5: Manage Travel Demand; Reduce the Need to Travel,
and Increase Accessibility

Policy DP6: Marry Opportunity and Need

Policy DP7: Promote Environmental Quality

Policy DP9: Reduce Emissions and Adapt to Climate Change
Policy RDF1: Spatial Priorities

Policy L4: Regional Housing Provision

Policy L5: Affordable Housing

Policy RT9: Walking and Cycling

Policy EM5: Integrated Water Management

Policy EM15: A Framework for Sustainable Energy in the North
West

Policy EM16: Energy Conservation and Efficiency

Policy EM17: Renewable Energy

Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review:

GN1: Settlement Policy- Main Settlements

GNS5: Building Design and Retaining Existing Landscape Features
and Natural Habitats

GN9: Transport Accessibility

EP4: Species Protection

EP9: Trees and Woodland

EP17: Water Resources and Quality

EP18: Surface Water Run Off

HS4: Design and Layout of Residential Developments

HS5: Affordable Housing

HS6: Housing Windfall Sites

HS21: Playing Space Requirements

TR4: Highway Development Control Criteria

TR18: Provision for pedestrians and cyclists in new developments
Policy SR1: Incorporating Sustainable Resources into New
Development

Sustainable Resources Development Plan Document

Planning History = 9/88/527- Outline application for residential development on
approximately 8 hectares of land. Approved.

9/90/693- Renewal of outline planning permission for residential
development. Approved.

9/93/89- Provision of canal bridge, access road and footways to
serve approved residential development site. Approved.



Agenda Page 93 Agenda ltem 4g

9/93/332- Application for renewal of outline planning consent no
9/90/693 for residential development of approximately 19.5 acres
of land. Approved.

96/00391/FUL- Amendment to condition no 1 of outline planning
permission 9/93/332 for residential development and open space
to alter time period for submission of reserved matters from three
to five years. Approved.

98/00207/0OUT- Renewal of outline planning permission 9/93/332
for residential development. Approved

98/00208/FUL- Renewal of planning permission 9/93/89 for
provision of canal bridge, access road and footways to serve
residential development site. Approved

02/00680/REMMAJ- Reserved Matters application for proposed
housing development consisting of 161 dwellings and public open
space Approved

02/01123/FULMAJ- Modification of condition 1 on planning
permission 9/98/00207/OUT for residential development, to
extend the period of time in which reserved matters can be
submitted by one year. Withdrawn

06/01057/FULMAJ- Substitution of house types and minor
amendments to plots 1, 8, 10, 14, 15, 17, 31 and 32, and
amendments to approved layout (02/00680/REMMAJ). Approved

06/01187/TPO- Crown reduce or remove assorted trees (removed
trees to be replaced) some covered by TPO4 (Chorley) 2003.
Approved October 2006

06/01301/FUL- Erection of electric substation to serve approved
residential development. Approved

07/00538/FUL- Proposed amendments to approved layout
9/02/00680/REMMAJ. House type substitution to plot 25.
Approved

07/01051/FULMAJ- House type substitutions, the erection of 3
additional dwellings and minor revisions to roads serving plots 84 -
161. Part amendment to the originally approved layout ref
9/02/00680/REMMAJ (site area 7.83 hectares). Approved

Applicant’s Case  The following points have been submitted in support of the
application:

[l The proposed re-plan incorporates replacing 29 dwellings
with 37 dwellings.

[l The proposal incorporates replacing larger dwellings with
smaller townhouses and mews properties

01 There is a reduced demand for large detached properties.
first time buyers prefer more traditional 2 storey dwellings
or 3 bedroom properties

Representations 1 letter has been received querying whether there are any plans to
deal with increased traffic along Haworth Road

Consultations Lancashire County Council (Planning Contributions) have



Agenda Page 94 Agenda ltem 4g

commented on the scheme
United Utilities have no objection

The Ramblers Association have raised concerns in respect of
the impact on footpath 19 and the diversion along a tarmac
footpath

Natural England have commented on protected species and the
need for surveys

Lancashire County Council (Ecology) have no further
comments to make other than those made in respect of
application 02/00680 and the requirements to protect the Black
Brook and protected species.

The Environment Agency have no objection

Lancashire County Council (Strategic Planning) have
commented on housing, minerals and waste and renewable
energy. They raise no objection

British Waterways have no objection

Corporate Director (Neighbourhoods) has no comments to
make

Lancashire County Council (Archaeology) have no comments
to make

The Council’s Arboricultural Officer has no objection to the
proposals

Assessment Principle of the Development

The principle of redeveloping the site for residential development
has been established for a number of years. Outline planning
permission was originally granted in 1988 to develop the site for
residential purposes. Reserved matters were granted at the site in
2003 (02/00680/REMMAUJ). This permission related to the erection
of 161 dwellings and the development is currently under
construction on site. The site is approximately 25% complete.

This is not an easy site to develop due to the significant levels
changes across the site, the fact that the site is bounded by the
canal and the M61 and the fact that the Black Brook bisects the
site.

Proposed amendments

This application relates to a part amendment to the previously
approved scheme. The amendments relate to the northern part of
the site, which is adjacent to the canal and the Black Brook. The
following amendments are proposed when compared to the
approved scheme:

8 additional properties

Plots 35-40 now front onto the new estate road

Plot 34 incorporates multiple aspects

Courtyard parking is incorporated

Dual aspect properties have been incorporated to provide
a frontage to Black Brook

Plots 41-55 have been re-planned to front onto the canal

I A B |

O



Agenda Page 95 Agenda ltem 4g

Along the canal the proposal incorporates split level houses (the
houses appear two storey when viewed from the front and three
storey from the rear) which front onto the canal. This design
solution utilises the asset of the canal and provides overlooking
whilst accommodating the level changes on the site.

Properties have been repositioned to front the highway which will
create an active street scene and create natural surveillance to
the public right of way.

The extent of formal highway (including footways) has been
extended along the boundary with the Black Brook to serve the
proposed dwellings. It is not considered that this will have any
further adverse impact on the Brook when compared to the
approved layout and the scheme still incorporates a footpath link
along the Brook.

The amended siting of the properties still retains the required
spacing distances with the adjacent dwellings and will not
adversely impact on the neighbours amenities. It is considered
that the scheme is a more efficient use of brownfield land.

Highways and Parking

Access to the site is via Crosse Hall Lane. A bridge crossing the
canal has been constructed and serves as the main access to the
site. Planning permission was granted for this bridge in 1998
(98/00208/FUL). Pedestrian access is also retained onto Froom
Street and Crosse Hall Lane. These access points will act as
emergency access points for vehicles but will be gated to ensure
that these access points are not utilised by public vehicles.

The scheme incorporates a mixture of 1, 2, 3 and 4 bedroom
dwellings. The applicants have been advised that garages should
measure 6x3 metres in accordance with Manual for Streets to be
considered a parking space, amended plans have been submitted
in accordance with these measurements. Additionally within the
parking court the proposed garages have been replaced with
timber framed carports which provide sufficeint parking space and
soften the appearance of the expanse of hard standing to these
areas.

The applicants have also been advised of the parking
requirements for the size of the dwellings proposed. The majority
of the properties have adequate parking provision however two of
the 4 bedroom dwellings only have two parking spaces. Increasing
the driveway space further would remove all landscaping to the
front of these dwellings which would create an oppressive
appearance. Additionally the approved scheme for this part of the
site, which could still be constructed, incorporated the previous
parking standards and this scheme incorporates an improvement
to the approved scheme. It is considered that 2 parking spaces for
these two dwellings is acceptable in this situation.

Ecology

Natural England have commented in respect of bats as it is not
clear whether the issue of bat roosts in the trees was addressed at
the time of the original outline and reserved matters application or
whether the amendments to the layout will have ecological
impacts. As such they are advising that an Ecological Survey



Agenda Page 96 Agenda ltem 4g

should be undertaken. However although there were trees
originally on this part of the site they were not considered worthy
of retention and as such were not protected by the Tree
Preservation Order on the site. Due to the fact that there are no
trees on site the proposals will not impact on bat roosts and there
is, therefore, no need for additional surveys particularly taking into
account the Ecologists comments below.

The Ecologist at LCC has confirmed that they have commented
previously upon aspects of the earlier application (02/00680). The
Ecologist has also confirmed that provided that the current
amended proposals do not compromise in any way the protection
of Black Brook (condition 4 of permission 02/0068), or
implementation of the approved method statement for the
protection of protected species, and the management of areas
other than gardens and highways (as required by condition 12),
then | have no further comments to make at this time.

In order to ensure that the scheme does not adversely impact on
the Ecological assets of the site the same conditions will be
attached to the recommendation. It is not considered that the
proposals will adversely impact on the ecological assets of the
site.

Trees and Vegetation

A few trees on site were considered to be worthy of retention and
a Tree Preservation Order was placed on these trees. These trees
are not however affected by the development subject to this
planning application.

The Council’s Arboricultural Officer has confirmed that the
proposed changes do not impact upon the existing trees in any
significant way and as such he is satisfied with the amendments.

Section 106 Agreement

An original Section 106 Agreement was secured at the site for the
provision of on site affordable housing along with a commuted
sum for off site affordable housing. The legal agreement also
covered open space provision. The agreement was originally
signed in 1999 and a supplementary agreement was signed in
2003 requiring the payment of additional commuted sums.

As reserved matter approval has been granted at the site and the
date for submitting reserved matters has expired this application is
dealt with as a full application. As such a supplemental S106
agreement is required to tie this application into the Section 106
obligations.

Lancashire County Council Planning Contributions team have
requested for environmental improvements and waste
management. The Section 106 for this site however was agreed a
number of years ago and no further obligations can be requested
in respect of this site.

Affordable Housing

In respect of the affordable housing the legal agreement specifies
20 low cost housing on site with a floor area of less then 85
square metres and 2 bedrooms or less. The house types originally



Agenda Page 97 Agenda ltem 4g

agreed as the on site included the Thorpe, Bereford and Didsbury.
It was envisaged that the size of the properties ensured that the
properties would be affordable. However the legal agreement was
signed a number of years ago and this model of affordable
housing no longer accords with the Council's definition of
affordable housing. As such these properties do not form part of
the Council’s affordable housing numbers.

Public Rights of Way

There are two public rights of way which cross the site, footpath
number 4 and footpath number 19. Footpath 19 is affected by this
development however it is proposed to divert this footpath along
the footway which is not a significant diversion to the current
route. There is currently a temporary footpath diversion in place
whilst the construction work is ongoing. The applicant has been
advised that a permanent diversion will be required, this will be
dealt with by Lancashire County Council.

The Ramblers Association have raised concerns in respect of the
replacing a rural footpath with a tarmac footpath. The originally
approved scheme included incorporating the footpath through an
area of Public Open Space however this was adjacent to the
highway footway, partly behind the sub station and to the rear of
dwellinghouses. The amended footpath will be overlooked by
dwellinghouses fronting the highway, which is more acceptable
from an urban design perspective, is no longer located to the rear
of the sub-station and is likely to be the preferred route for
pedestrians as it is safe and overlooked. As such the footpath
diversion is considered to be acceptable.

Resident concerns

One letter has been received querying whether any measures
would be incorporated to deal with the increased traffic along
Haworth Road. Haworth Road is one of the highways which has
been created as part of the whole development. It was always
proposed to serve the western half and part of the southern part of
the site via this route. Therefore the traffic implications were
considered at the time of the original application. It is not
considered that the relatively small increase in the number of
dwellings will significantly impact on traffic generation on the site.

Sustainability

Since the grant of reserved matters approval in 2003 the Council
now has an adopted Development Plan Document and
Supplementary Plan Document on Sustainable Resources which
requires the submission of a Sustainability Statement. The
applicants have submitted a Sustainability Statement as part of
this application. Further comments from the Council’'s Planning
Policy Section are awaited in this regard.

Levels

As set out earlier this site is not easy to develop due to various
land levels across the site and the fact that the Black Brook and
the Canal divide the site. The proposed finished floor levels of the
dwellings subject to this application are similar to the surrounding
properties and there will be no loss of amenity resulting from
significant level changes.

The main level change is between the site and the canal
boundary. To deal with this change split level houses are



Agenda Page 98 Agenda ltem 4g

proposed along the canal which will enable the dwellings in this
location to overlook the canal whilst providing an appropriate
design solution for this part of the site.

Conclusion The principle of developing the site for residential purposes was
established nearly 20 years ago and the redevelopment of the site
is currently ongoing. The amendments to the originally approved
scheme proposed as part of this application are considered to be
minor and it is not considered that the addition of eight extra units
will adversely impact on the development or the area as a whole.
As such the amendments are considered to be acceptable.

Recommendation  Permit Full Planning Permission
Refuse if the S106 Agreement is not signed by 8" January
2010

Conditions

1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of
this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. All vehicles entering and leaving the site in connection with the construction of the
development hereby permitted shall only do so via the new access road and canal
bridge permitted under planning permission 9/98/00208/FUL, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of local residents and in
accordance with Policy TR4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

3. Before any development hereby permitted is first commenced the temporary
protective metal fencing along the full length and both sides of Black Brook shall have
been erected in accordance with the approved details. The fencing, thereafter, shall
remain in place at all times during the course of the permitted development being carried
out, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the watercourse and prevent debris and construction material from
encroaching into this area and in accordance with Policy EP17 of the Adopted Chorley
Borough Local Plan Review.

4. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced there shall have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a method statement
for providing protection to protected species during the course of the development and a
ten year plan (including provision for protecting all protected species and their habitats)
for the maintenance and management of all areas other than garden curtilages and
highways. Thereafter, the approved method statement and ten year maintenance and
management plan shall be fully complied with and implemented in full.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the development, the amenities of
future residents and nature conservation and in accordance with Policies GN5 and EP4
of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review and Government advice contained
in PPS9.

5. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved scheme for the provision and implementation of a surface water regulation
system to limit surface water run off from the completed development to existing rates.
Reason: To reduce the increased risk of flooding and in accordance with Government
advice contained in PPS25: Development and Flood Risk.

6. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details of the measures to be taken, during the period of construction, to
prevent mud and other debris being carried onto the public highway by vehicles leaving



Agenda Page 99 Agenda ltem 4g

the site. The agreed measures shall be implemented in full before commencement of the
development and retained in operation until such time as the development is complete.
Reasons: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy TR4 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

7. The site shall be remediated fully in accordance with recommendations made in the
Ground Investigation and Remediation Statement Ref: 588/02 Chorley, Crosse Hall Mill
Farm (May 2004) by Woodford Consulting Engineers Ltd.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by ensuring that
the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the proposed end use and in
accordance with Government advice contained in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control

8. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present
at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained
written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, an amendment to the Method
Statement detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by ensuring that
the land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the proposed end use and in
accordance with Government advice contained in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control

9. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995, (Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A to E), or any Order amending
or revoking and re-enacting that Order, no alterations or extensions shall be undertaken
to the dwelling(s) hereby permitted, or any garage, shed or other outbuilding erected
(other than those expressly authorised by this permission).

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in accordance with Policy No.
HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

10. The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in conformity with the
proposed ground and building slab levels shown on the approved plans or as may
otherwise be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority before any development
is first commenced.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in the interests of the amenities
of local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

11. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour,
form and texture of all external facing materials to the proposed building(s
(notwithstanding any details shown on the previously submitted plans and specification)
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall only be carried out using the approved external facing materials.
Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in
accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

12. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour,
form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials (notwithstanding any such detail
shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be
carried out in conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the visual
amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

13. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of the
position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected (notwithstanding
any such detail shown on previously submitted plans) shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until
all fences and walls shown in the approved details to bound its plot have been erected in



Agenda Page 100 Agenda ltem 4g

conformity with the approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved
details shall have been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to
substantial completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide reasonable
standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No. HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

14. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the predicted energy
use of the development expressed in terms of carbon emissions shall be submitted to an
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. If no data specific to the application
is available benchmark data will be acceptable. A schedule should include how energy
efficiency is being addressed, for example, amongst other things through the use of
passive solar design. It will be flexible enough to show the on-site measures to be
installed and implemented so as to reduce carbon emissions in accordance with policy
SR1 of the Sustainable Resources DPD. No development shall commence until the
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details as may be approved shall be implemented and retained in perpetuity unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In line with the objective of National
Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning, the Climate Change
Supplement to PPS1, Policies EM16 and EM17 of the Regional Spatial Strategy and
Chorley Borough Council's Sustainable Resources DPD and Supplementary Planning
Document

15. Prior to the commencement of the development details of appropriate mitigation
measures to prevent pollution of the waterway during and after the construction of the
development hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development thereafter shall be implemented in accordance with
the approved details.

Reason: In order to avoid contamination of the waterway and ground water from wind
blow, seepage or spillage at the site. In accordance with Policy EP5 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

16. No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such
detail which may have previously been submitted. The scheme shall indicate all existing
trees and hedgerows on the land; detail any to be retained, together with measures for
their protection in the course of development; indicate the types and numbers of trees
and shrubs to be planted, their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or
hard landscaped; and detail any changes of ground level or landform.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy
No.GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

17. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of any
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees
or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die,
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning
Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of the appearance of the locality and in accordance with Policy
No GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

18. No development shall take place until details of the proposed surface water drainage
arrangements have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in
writing. No part of the development shall be occupied until the approved surface water
drainage arrangements have been fully implemented.

Reason: To secure proper drainage, to prevent flooding and to prevent pollution to the
waterway. lin accordance with Policy Nos. EP18 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local
Plan Review and Government advice contained in PPS25: Development and Flood Risk



Agenda Page 101 Agenda ltem 4g




Agenda Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 103 Agenda ltem 4g

L

y 4

[—

Towing Path

Quitfall

ooJg Yoelg

Leeds and Liverpool Canal

yped BuimoL

(wn) wed

i R duced fi the Ord S i ith th issi
Jane E Meek BSc(Hons) DipTP MRTPI of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. Crown Copyrigh.

Director of Deve|opment and Regeneration Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

) may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Chorley Borough Council Chorley B.C. 100018509

Application No. Grid Ref: Scale:

E: 359600 7

09/00749/FULMAJ(1 N: 417800 1:1,250




Agenda Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



3 (Ji)!?ll}\fli TRAIC CALMIENG ARD BALY BINE TCr
% B THCORPORATED YO ERTRANCL SPIKE ROAD
SE(. =g REFMEIITS ﬁ‘ORJ‘:‘)ﬂPH

RGE A
(‘MB:‘\NLM{NT TO RERETAINED J\" F'\JIEI'IL
OPEN SPACE AND HIHAP\UDW[IH
FOOTRATH LINKS AL LARDSCARIRG

s Halt

i FRONT,
HEDGE
TR
LTS

. Farm -

%

1371?) 3

TRARCE ROM ARD HEVY Carseg, BRIDGE: -
ANCE \d'ITH ?‘;J]Tﬂilh‘G APPROVEQD
(i

\

1 Crosse 1 Lodge

KT STONE DWARF WALLS ARE) PITRAR
FEATURE WALLS 1O BE THCORPORATED
GE OF PLOES 129 10 145
LHNEING AND TEGUAR STRE PAVm(:
HASED TO SHARED DRIV OF

SPUIT LEVEL DAWEELINGS (2 STCREY TO CAMALS
3 STORLY RIAR) TQ CANAL FRONTAGE TO ALEOW
VIEVWS ALROSS EYTE FROM (A2 RARK,

S g

L STYLE TRAFTEC CALMERG TO CANAL
IROA IRCORVORATED INTD LANDSCAPING
SCHEMT AT CANAL SIDE - TREES, YV-RAT, PAVEDR
PROYSHUBRING STRIFS. DETARLS OF WniCn
TO B AGREED WITH LA BIGHWAY DEPARIMENT

VIR

PROPOSED SN STAKD OH FROM CANAL BEK
YO IMPROVE STARTLITY ANE INCORPCRATE 4
FOOTPATIENITILPATING 10 IMPRCVE

LIREAR OPER SPACE THROUGH DEVI
RETAINING DXISTIHG BLACK BRODK IR H'S
SXISTING CONDITION [ B WADE ACCESS

NTS FOR THE EXOARONMENT AGERCY 7
SADE. MOV FOOTEATHS AHD FLANTING

‘ P
FLOVE 129 - 14510 BE SUILT 16 MATERIALS THAT ARL:

I08BE F’RﬂViDLIl ‘\'-’ITNN 1'('5 1ERGTNE AS TO l
TING. .

Lee?d Liverpoot Canat

4!
/l'rrmt;m 3 £ GRIGINAL FARM BUTLDING A
/nr)’rqulw'ﬂx CHILOKER'S FLAY AREA

o FRD\‘T{}‘F s3:15

CANAL ALY

DXISTIRG CARAL TOOVERIDGE 10 BE RET/GNED
W'
FISHED CROURD LEVEL S TO BE R}\lhf

l'{DPOSEQ UARRIW.S TO TOOTF‘:’NS DETACHED
AATE CARIIAGEVIAY ‘?ﬂf JGREED
R

PROPOSED 2m ACCUSTIC FENGETQ BE -~~~ 77
3] Pmmscﬁrut)

194

MEve FGOTRATH LIKKS PROVIDED, -

HEIGHT.

SOLIT LEVEL DAVELLINGS PROVIDED T CANAL
RONTAGE {2 STOREY CAHALLS STOREY REAR)

EXISTING EMBANKMENT TO BE QETAINET AND
PROVADEGH WITH LCAY MAINTENARDY PEATTING

T EXISTING SURFACT WATER DRAIN TO B ™~
PRCAVTDED WITIE EASEMENT OVER

" HRRIER A0 FREVENY mnomsmus
-Qf ‘FME FATHAY TGETWEER FRODM E

EAISTING SEWER mos 1E8TE

lw\«. Grer |

Enn hu-j

18

Fruprdt T A G Al

gt T ast Ak o et

TOBE IVERTED | ﬁ {O‘u 3
BACK ONFO n=sr:§ i
PLOT 13 :

T3 LHE DEVEL QPR e

crogeane s
AY TO BE PROWIED AS
RGENIT ACCFES LRIK

Ceenee EXOEAl BuSshee

s 0 B 0 e e
R En Ly

0 &4ty s g
G b Fip bk et e 207 g0

frozag.

MORRIS ey
FIOMIS 1w e

Fan a4z TR 5L

CROSSE HALL MILL FARNM,
CHORLEY

PLANNING LAYCOUT 02

GO| obed epuaby

B4 wa)| epusby



T

Fakeg At

e
L sm

b

L wi,

B

QY0 SNWOGHLNOS

Bt

= é‘g
‘. &
! =

Légénd:
Proposed dunling and hovse lype code.
Proposed garage 1o he Buit,
Handing of plot.

H
: {uat aspact gable posdi

i Aeniss ) Dodr To dwellng.

pul
taleaat | - Hersglone pavig
tdatesiat 2 - Dlock paving
£ Tyge G - 1800m extsting bexuralary wall.
i Type 11 £800mm tigh limber clese boarded fenee,

Type € - 1000mm gh bowlap ralings.
Type - 1800mm tigh privacy screan with Snsher knee fail.
Proposed Landscaping. {Shown (ndicalively)

Exisling trees {0 be relained.

|
|
|

Existing traes (o be romoved.

43

PCPLAR STREET

it

o

g

H
i

w oot da b

i Fatm Qe

. b
R
i
feoe Py s

o

T

R

faan { A

s

REx:]

iy WARNING TO HOUSE PURCHASERS

v Properly Misdeseriptions Aet 1991

CEy 2R MRS § 3 it it ol

Srutc o oot ey sden s

]

3 e 1 Ther vestelds 64140 Ervarg map 6 i B R K32 U,

GO

a7
0

GO

nner

w5

s

E P
LY b TR TS
non phamS mac ws
C ot ks
T e A LT P
& enmmasmeta g
Rev oa”
HOMES
MANCHESTER
Batrailt Homes Manchester
{A division of BOW Trading Ltd]
4 Brindtley Road
Gity Park
Manchester
Mi6 $HO
Tei: 8161 872 0161
Fax: 0161 255 28248
ol B

Piling Lane - Chiorigy

§ B g thmter

400/ PLot

B4 wa)| epusby



R

remove existing lreeﬁ\-\und__

shown—ore—tormrrew - Errieadie- .
5010 s foatnoths : {i%l
Novoa /'{M- At
x ey X
t
T Rl =1} porkin 775 | 775 | s
% DKL TR R R ‘():oul“ig E NP
. 3 o 1.
- L 1
S 12,3
0| S L | T
B —— T R T 1 !
B a8 | [ | BB B |63 L] s TS B3 e :
i RN 4 3 3 !
- =] 7N i
P A T
"""" A s < - i 5
= ]
715 670 | 715 115 e )\l
. 1
B
e e T T " ] -
L
- TR L i
b i
a6 £ HE
B = parking il (R I M
1 o H
v o &7 o
- ! o &8
b - {
I 57
! k T
‘: 58
i B9 g6 | &1
- <1 ;
I/ I SR SO S
} : |
v
e !
775 715 7
ey 591 60 !
E].. - 1ol S =
I R
U I _4,/’.
- s i E_‘J
L [ -y
4Ly SM Ll
| @ 31
Bt i !it-. @ i_
e oo heves - RAVALL
g - v )
i L]

GRRAGE

iﬂ:liﬁ%‘.
GROUND

i

SUGURITY FERGCE

“VIRE hear roase

X
e T

ACCESE DEMYED

The Bungolow

Om - 10m 20m
I I T T S
Secale Bar 1:500

Om 10m 20m

O T I I T
Scale Bar 1:500

WM JFELLOWS
QUARRY ROAD, CHORLEY
—ACCONMMOUATION SCHEDULE
GENERAL SALE
NAWE TYPE SUFT RGO TOTALSQTFT
1271 ABEDS DET. HOUSE 1217 ] T60
gI7 SHEDTET NOSE 627 2 o4
8§27 BT SHHOURE B27 7 5789
775 3 BED SEVTHOUGE 775 2y PrEYEN
Ei 3 BEDTERR HOUGE £ 4 3760
570 2 BELTERRROUSE 670 5] 3350
TOTAL 53 ” 43034
AFFORDAELE
7O | 3o TERRAUDSE T BEG 5 AR
T2 2 BED TERR HOUGE 723 5 3695
k] TBED TER HURG 545 3 W |
TOTAL™ i3 8674
A Piots 44 6 45 ot tocamad. er0e0n s
B Mpgne pddod. e 23:05:00 1804
CLIENT
M.J. Fellows Ltd. 1Y)
PROJECT 'v.
N HER
Proposed Residential Development at ARCHITECTURAL CONSUETANTS
Quarry Road, Chorley. 13 PRESTON FOAD
WHITLE-LE-WQODS
CHORLEY
DRAWING TITLE 1ANCASHIRE
i PRE 7P
Pmposed SIte LayOUt Tel: 01257 261555
FAY: 01257 267224
W] vk
DATE SOME A o ToRAGH. RE : -
310709 1200 JRM | 09/066/P20 | B @ Copyigh Lawson Margerison Prmctice L1A.

L0+-ebed-epusby

B4 wa)| epusby



Agenda Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 109 Agenda Iltem 4h

Item 8 09/00714/FULMAJ Permit Full Planning Permission
Case Officer Mrs Nicola Hopkins

Ward Adlington & Anderton

Proposal Erection of 37 affordable dwellings with external amenity

space and off street parking at Fairview Farm, Adlington

Location Land Adj Fairview Farm (incl Land Bounded By Chorley Rd
Eller Brook And Railway) Chorley Road Adlington

Applicant Mr John Wright

27 letters of objection have been received
Consultation expiry: 13™ October 2009
Application expiry: 15" December 2009

Proposal The application relates to the erection of 37 affordable dwellings at
the Fairview Farm development in Adlington. Planning permission
was granted in November 1999 for the redevelopment of the
Fairview Farm site. This dwellinghouses and community centre
approved by this permission have now been completed. This
affordable housing parcel formed part of the original approval
however is has been retained for the provision of affordable
housing

The Council owned the whole site which was sold to Westbury
Homes (now Persimmon Homes) who developed the main part of
the site. The part of the site subject to this application, however,
was retained in Council ownership and allocated for affordable
housing provision. For the past few years the Council has been
working with Places for People who are the Registered Social
Landlord who will provide the affordable housing on this site.

Summary The principle of redeveloping this parcel of land for affordable
housing was established with the grant of outline planning
permission in 1999. The proposal will contribute to the Council’s
supply of affordable housing and is considered to be the most
appropriate use of the land.

Planning Policy National Polices:
PPS1, PPS3, PPS9, PPS22, PPS23, PPS25, PPG17

Circular 05/2005 Planning Obligations

North West Regional Spatial Strategy:

Policy DP1: Spatial Principles

Policy DP4: Make the best use of Existing Resources and
Infrastructure

Policy DP7: Promote Environmental Quality

Policy RDF1: Spatial Priorities

Policy L4: Regional Housing Provision

Policy L5: Affordable Housing

Policy RT9: Walking and Cycling

Policy EM1: Integrated Enhancement and Protection of the
Region’s Environmental Assets

Policy EM5: Integrated Water Management



Planning History

Agenda Page 110 Agenda Iltem 4h

Policy EM15: A Framework for Sustainable Energy in the North
West

Policy EM16: Energy Conservation and Efficiency

Policy EM17: Renewable Energy

Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review:

GN1: Settlement Policy- Main Settlements

GNS5: Building Design and Retaining Existing Landscape Features
and Natural Habitats

GN9: Transport Accessibility

EP4: Species Protection

EP9: Trees and Woodland

EP17: Water Resources and Quality

EP18: Surface Water Run Off

HS4: Design and Layout of Residential Developments

HS5: Affordable Housing

HS6: Housing Windfall Sites

HS21: Playing Space Requirements

TR4: Highway Development Control Criteria

TR18: Provision for pedestrians and cyclists in new developments
Sustainable Resources Development Plan Document

Statement of Community Involvement

95/00322/0UT- Outline application for the erection of factory with
ancillary warehouse, offices, service yard, car park together with
site access road and roundabout junction works on Chorley Road.
Refused August 1995

98/00660/CO4- Regulation 4 outline application for residential
development, associated open space and multi-functional
community building. Approved November 1999

01/00120/REM- Reserved matters application for 176 houses,
multi-functional community building and five-a-side pitch and all
associated works. Approved August 2001

01/00145/FUL- Construction of roundabout and new access off
Chorley Road & modification of conditions 21 & 12 of outline
permission 9/98/660 to allow the alternative access and to prevent
access from The Avenue. Permitted August 2001

02/00082/FUL- Construction of new roundabout and new access
off Chorley Road and modification of condition 21 of outline
permission 9/98/660 (alternative to permission 9/01/145).
Withdrawn

02/00291/ADV- Display of non-illuminated signs.
Advertisement consent granted May 2002

02/00523/TPO- Felling of tree T2 (adjacent to Chorley Road)
covered by TPO 17 (Adlington) 1991. Refused August 2002

02/01165/FUL- Substitution of house type on plot 358.
Refused January 2003

03/00010/TPO- Pruning of T2 (Beech) Tree covered by Tree
Preservation Order No. 17 (Adlington) 1991, to reduce by 20% the
two main branches over Chorley Road and remove all major
deadwood from the tree crown. Approved April 2003



Agenda Page 111 Agenda Iltem 4h

03/00062/FULMAJ- Substitution of houses on plots 88-122, with
26 dwellings instead of 34 dwellings. Approved September 2003

03/00186/FUL- Re-siting of 2 dwellings at plots 147 and 148.
Approved August 2003.

03/00643/FUL- Erection of community centre, equipped play area,
playing pitch, access road and car parking. Approved August 2003

04/00217/FUL- Amendment of house type to include rear
conservatory. Approved April 2004

04/00629/FUL- Revision to Planning Permission 9/98/660/CO4 by
modification of condition 4 to change public open space (Area 6)
from equipped play space to a landscaped park. Pending decision

Applicant’s Case  The following points have been submitted in support of the
application:
71 The combined objectives of the development of this site are:
o To provide new, quality housing to satisfy identified
need within the area of Adlington
o To provide development that has high standards of
environmental sustainability and urban design and
that integrates well with the existing residential area

Representations Adlington Town Council welcomes this development of
affordable housing but have some concerns in respect of :

Drainage

Ground levels

Bats

Trees

Access

I o R

27 letters of objection have been received raising the following
points:

Impact on highway safety- access roads are very narrow
Additional traffic

Damage to properties- crime and safety issues

No benefit to the community

Impact on bats and loss of trees

Extra noise and disruption

Affordable housing- de-value existing properties

Loss of light and loss of privacy

Design out of keeping with the neighbouring development
Loss of open space which is used for play

Lead to anti-social behaviour

Flooding

Too many properties

Parking problems

Will not be truly affordable

No need for affordable housing

Impact on community facilities

O

I A A

Consultations Corporate Director (Neighbourhoods) has no objection subject
to various conditions/ informatives

Lancashire County Council (Archaeology) have suggested a
condition in respect of archaeological investigation



Agenda Page 112 Agenda Iltem 4h

Lancashire County Council (Ecology) initially made comments
in particular in respect of incorporating the recommendations of
the ecology survey and bat survey reports into the scheme and
providing compensation for the loss of the stream habitat and bat
foraging habitat.

Following the receipt of amended landscape plans and additional
ecological information the Ecologist has confirmed that the new
proposals are an improvement on what was originally submitted.
However there would still be a loss of biodiversity value.

The Council’s Architectural Liaison Officer has commented in
respect of Secure by Design and has confirmed that the applicant
has to have ‘Secured by Design’ status for the development in
order to secure the available grants.

The Environment Agency initially objected to the scheme as the
proposal would lead to the destruction of the watercourse and
have a detrimental impact on biodiversity. There is no evidence of
any safeguards or compensatory measures for the loss of the
watercourse

Following the receipt of the amended landscaping details and
additional ecological information the Environment Agency
removed their objection. This is subject to various conditions.

Lancashire County Council (Education) requested a
contribution to education facilities to accommodate a deficit in
primary school places however they have confirmed that there is
not a current shortfall

Lancashire County Council (Planning Contributions) have
made a request in respect of S106 contributions

The Council’s Arboricultural Officer has commented in respect
of the trees on site

Central Lancashire PCT have commented in respect of health
care facilities in the area.

Strategic Housing have commented on the affordable housing
mix

United Utilities have no objection to the scheme subject to
various conditions/ informatives

Assessment Principle of the Development

The site is currently a vacant piece of land which was previously
used as agricultural land associated with Fairview Farm. The site
is allocated within the Local Plan under Policy HS1.1, which is a
saved Planning Policy, for housing development. When outline
planning permission was granted for the redevelopment of the
whole site in November 1999 the approval incorporated the
affordable housing parcel. The subsequent reserved matters
application did not incorporate the affordable housing parcel as
ownership of this site was retained by the Council to ensure that a
Registered Social Landlord (RSL) could provide affordable
dwellings on the site. The site has now been sold to Places for
People



Agenda Page 113 Agenda Iltem 4h

Additionally the Section 106 Agreement associated with the
development requires the developers of the main site to the
provide the affordable housing parcel with appropriate services
and connections.

The principle of developing the site for housing was established
with the grant of outline planning permission in 1999. Although the
time period for submitting reserved matters has expired, hence
why this is a full application, the principle still exists and this site
has always been envisaged to be the affordable housing element
of the Fairview Farm site.

Proposed Development

The proposed development incorporates the erection of 37
affordable dwellings adjacent to Fairview Farm, Adlington. The
site covers 1.19 hectares which equates to approximately 31
dwellings per hectare. This density accords with Government
advice contained in PPG3: Housing and will be in keeping with the
character of the area.

All the dwellings proposed will be 2 stories high. 30 houses will be
made available for rent which are split between 11 two bedroom
dwellings and 19 three bedroom dwellings. The remaining seven
will be available as intermediate accommodation which are split
between 4 two bedroom dwellings and 3 three bedroom dwellings.
The scheme incorporates a mixture of detached, semi-detached
and terraced dwellings.

Strategic Housing have confirmed that the above mix has been
previously agreed with Places for People and the mix is
appropriate in respect of need within the area.

The development is being funding mainly through Government
funding sources. £1.085 million grant funding has been secured
from the Homes and Community Agency (HCA). £577,000
recycled grant funding from Places for People will be utilised and
an additional £500,000 is being secured as this is required for
changes to the proposed tenures of the dwellings.

Impact on Services

Lancashire County Council have requested Section 106
contributions in respect of waste management and education
facilities. The letter submitted by LCC requests £143,407 to
provide 13 primary school places. As Chorley Council have not
signed up to the County’s contribution paper further justification
was requested from the Education Authority in respect of this
request particularly as this is an affordable housing scheme which
would be seriously hindered from a financial viability perspective if
an obligation this high was attached to the land.

The Education Authority (LEA) have confirmed that there is not a
existing deficit in primary school places within a 2 mile radius of
the application site although in the future, 2013/2014, there will be.
Circular 05/2005 sets out the five tests which are required to be
met when requesting planning obligations. Two of the tests
‘necessary to make the proposed development acceptable in
planning terms’ and ‘directly related to the proposed development’
are particularly pertinent to this request.



Agenda Page 114 Agenda Iltem 4h

Firstly, as the LEA have confirmed there is not a current deficit of
primary school places within the area and the deficit in places will
not occur until 2013/14. As such the primary school places deficit
is not directly related to this development. Secondly, no evidence
has been provided as to where the contribution will be utilised and
as such the request is not directly related to the proposed
development. As such the request does not meet the tests of the
Circular and cannot be requested as a planning contribution.

Additionally this is a relatively small scheme. Taking into account
the number of children this scheme could realistically generate
and the fact that there is currently a surplus in primary school
places it is not could justified to refuse the application on lack of
education provision.

This scheme will provide a much needed proportion of affordable
housing within the Borough which is both a National and
Corporate priority. The majority of funding for this scheme will be
secured through Government funding (HCA Grant) and any further
requests for financial contributions would detrimentally impact on
the deliverability of this scheme and would reduce the amount of
Government funding available for affordable housing.

In respect of health care provision in the area Central Lancashire
PCT have confirmed that both GP surgeries in Adlington currently
have spare capacity to take on the proposed increase in patient
numbers and therefore the addition of 37 dwellings would not
have an adverse impact on health facilities in this area.

The request from LCC for a S106 contribution for waste
management has not been fully justified and as such it is not
considered that such a request would meet the tests of the
Circular.

Design and Layout

The proposal incorporates the erection of 37 two storey family
dwellings. This proposal comprises of detached, semi-detached
and terraced properties. The design of the properties incorporate
modern dwellings with projecting window details, non-standard
window treatments and projecting front elements. This design
solution is considered appropriate for this site as it will provide an
alternative housing style within the area and the fact that the site
is accessed via a relatively new modern housing estate ensures
that the properties will not be out of character although these are
more modern interpretations than those found on the main
Fairview site.

There are two vehicular access points to this site, the main one is
via Fairview Drive (through the main site) with a vehicular access
serving 4 of the proposed dwellings off Farm Avenue. When the
scheme was originally submitted the dwellings served off Farm
Avenue fronted Farm Avenue and backed onto the adjacent
Environmental Area. Through discussions with the Council the
scheme has been amended so that these dwellings front onto the
Environmental Area. Additionally the houses on plots 27 and 28
have been amended to accommodate windows/ features within
the side elevations. Plot 21 has been resited to front onto this
area. This provides natural surveillance/ overlooking to the
Environmental Area along with providing visual interest on these
prominent elevations.



Agenda Page 115 Agenda Iltem 4h

Levels

There are various levels across the site with a level drop of
approximately 10 metres from the north-east boundary of the site
to the south-west boundary of the site. The submitted layout plan
incorporates the proposed finished floor levels of the proposed
and existing dwellings.

The properties on Fairview Drive along the northern boundary of
the site are slightly higher than the proposed dwellings however
this difference does not exceed 0.5 metres and the dwellings
accord with and exceed the Council's approved spacing
distances.

The properties on The Avenue to the east of the site are sited at a
higher land level than the proposed dwellings. 32 The Avenue is
located to the rear of plot 33 however in excess of 14 metres is
retained between the rear of the proposed dwelling and the main
side elevation of this property. The properties on Carlisle Place to
the north east of the are approximately 1.5 metres higher than the
proposed dwellings. 21 metres is retained between the side
elevation of the proposed dwellings and the rear of the properties
on Carlisle Place. This significantly exceeds the required 12
metres and as such takes into account the level difference.

The main level difference occurs along the southern boundary of
the site. In this location the proposed dwellings are approximately
2 metres higher than the existing dwellings on Field Rose Court
and Meadow View. The properties which are directly behind the
existing dwellings are the properties on Plots 1-3 and these are
directly to the rear of 11-16 Field Rose Court. Where properties
are back to back in excess of 21 metres (approximately 24.5
metres) is retained. Plot 1 is at a 90 degree angle to 16 Field Rose
Court and retains 14 metres from the rear elevation to the side
elevation. Where there are level differences greater spacing
distances are required. The proposed spacing distances do not
strictly accord with the increased guidelines however to accord
with the guidelines the properties would be a lot further away from
the boundary, would have very large garden areas and would not
constitute the most appropriate use of land. Therefore the
proposal would not accord with the key principles set out in PPS1:
Delivering Sustainable Development which include promoting
efficient use of land through higher densities. It is considered that
the spacing distance is adequate and will maintain the amenities
of the existing and future residents.

These spacing distances also apply internally within the site taking
into consideration the amenities of the future residents. The only
part of the site where this is an issue is the relationship between
the rear elevation of plots 10 & 11 and the side elevation of plot
13. There is 12 metres retained between these dwellings which
accords with the Council’s spacing standards. Due to the level
differences greater spacing would usually be required however as
this difference is internally within the site the future occupiers will
be aware of the difference and the impact on the residents will be
minimal.

Highways and Parking
When outline planning permission was originally granted for the
redevelopment of the whole site access to the affordable housing



Agenda Page 116 Agenda Iltem 4h

parcel was proposed to be via The Avenue and there would be no
vehicular access between the main site and the affordable
housing parcel. This was secured via condition 12 of the original
outline approval.

In 2001 Westbury Homes, the original Developers of the site,
applied to modify condition 12 of original permission to allow an
alternative access and to prevent access from The Avenue. This
application was approved and conditioned restricting no vehicular
access to The Avenue. It was determined that it was more
appropriate to access the affordable housing through the main
housing site.

The submitted scheme incorporates the main vehicular access to
the site via Fairview Drive although a secondary vehicular access
will be achieved within the eastern corner of the site via Farm
Avenue. This vehicular access will however only serve 4 of the
proposed dwellings.

The main vehicular access to the site continues the carriageway
which currently serves the main site. The carriageway is 5 metres
wide with 1.75 metre wide footways on either side. Turning
facilities are provided and it appears that it is intended for the main
carriageway to be adopted. Comments are awaited from the
Highway Authority in respect of this site however the Highway
Engineer has been involved in this scheme at pre-application
stage and the scheme was amended in line with the Highway
Engineer’'s comments.

Parts of the site, mainly those serving parking courts and the
vehicular access off Farm Avenue, will not be adopted and will be
privately managed by Places for People.

The scheme incorporates two and three bedroom properties and
as such there is a requirement of 2 parking spaces per dwelling.
All of the properties incorporate off road driveways (no garages
are proposed). To ensure that adequate space is provided a
minimum of 5 metre long and 2.4 metre wide spaces have been
provided

Within the eastern section of the site the four dwellings served off
Farm Avenue incorporate both in curtilage and adjacent to
curtilage parking. This parking arrangement has resulted from the
negotiated changes to this part of the site which are set out above.
The in curtilage parking results in a reduction in the amount of
private garden space associated with the dwellinghouses. In
curtilage parking is required to ensure that the scheme meets
Secure by Design principles. Parking needs to be overlooked, for
crime and safety reasons, and if the parking was outside the
curtilage of the property overlooking would be hindered by the
boundary treatment. Alternative solutions were suggested which
included gating the vehicular access to these properties with only
residents having access which would create a secure parking
area. This however was discounted as it would create
management issues for Places for People. It is considered that in
curtilage parking provides a safe provision and although the
gardens will be reduced in size the occupiers will have an element
of private garden space. As such the proposed layout is
considered to be acceptable.



Agenda Page 117 Agenda Iltem 4h

Ecology

The site has been left undeveloped for a number of years and
consists of mature trees, scrub/ vegetation and a stream which
runs through the site. There was originally a derelict barn on the
site which has been demolished. Due to the varying habitats
across the site the applicants have commissioned an Ecological
Survey which forms part of this submission.

Both the Ecologist at Lancashire County Council and the
Environment Agency have reviewed this document and have
raised concerns in respect of loss of foraging opportunities for
bats, breeding birds, Japanese knotweed, loss of hedgerows and
compensation for the loss of aquatic habitats on the site. Both
statutory consultees are concerned that the proposals will have a
detrimental impact on biodiversity and need to be satisfied that the
proposed compensation/ mitigation ensures that there will not be a
net loss to the biodiversity value of this site.

Through discussions with the applicants, their agents, the
Ecologist, the Environment Agency and the Ecologists appointed
by the applicants solutions have been considered to overcome the
concerns raised. The proposed landscaping of the site has been
amended to try and alleviate the concerns raised. The amended
plan and update on the Ecology report have been forwarded to
both the Ecologist at LCC and the Environment Agency.

The Ecologist at LCC has confirmed that the proposals are an
improvement on what was originally submitted and as much as
possible has been incorporated in respect of the site layout. The
Ecologist still has concerns, however, that there would be a loss of
biodiversity value as a result of the proposals. This is largely due
to the site becoming increasingly valuable for biodiversity with
increasing time since abandonment from agriculture.

This site has been left undeveloped for a number of years hence
why the site has regenerated and now has a biodiversity value. If
the site had been redeveloped at the same time as the rest of
Fairview Farm the site would have had a low biodiversity value.
The scheme incorporates environmental areas, a pond, bat boxes
attached to the dwellings and new tree planting throughout the
site. It is considered that the scheme incorporates features which
compensate for the loss of aquatic habit and provide foraging
habitats for bats.

Following a recent high court decision the Local Planning

Authority have a legal duty to determine whether the three

‘derogation tests’ of the Habitats Directive implemented by the

Conservation (Natural Habitats &c.) Regulations 1994 have been

met when determining whether to grant planning permission for a

development which could harm a European Protected Species.

The three tests include:

1) the activity must be for imperative reasons of overriding public
interest of for public health and safety;

2) there must be no satisfactory alternative and

3) favourable conservation status of the species must be
maintained.

This requirement does not negate the need for a Licence from
Natural England in respect of Protected Species and the Local
Planning Authority are required to engage with the Directive.



Agenda Page 118 Agenda Iltem 4h

The only protected species identified at this site which the scheme
has the potential to impact on is bats. According to the submitted
ecology report at least one of the bat boxes on the site may be in
use by bats. The bat survey report also confirmed that habitats on
site (e.g. mature trees and tree line, grassland, stream and scrub)
provide foraging opportunities for bats roosting outwith the
application area.

The proposed scheme is considered to be the most efficient and
effective use of the site and will provide affordable housing. The
submitted Ecology report incorporates mitigation proposals which
will be secured via condition and the amended landscape
proposals ensure that foraging opportunities for bats are provided
to compensate for the loss of the existing habitats. It is considered
that implementation of the recommended proposals ensure that
there are not significant impacts on the conservation status of the
bat population locally.

Trees

There are several mature trees across the site which are
protected by Tree Preservation Order 2 (Adlington) 2000. The
majority of trees are to be retained as part of the scheme and will
be located either within the garden areas of the properties or
within public open space areas.

Two of the trees however are proposed for removal including Tree
T4, which is a Sycamore Tree, and Tree T5, which is a Beech
tree. The Council's Arboricultural Officer has reviewed the
proposals and the submitted Tree Assessment. He has confirmed
that tree T4 has a rotten base and is unsafe, as such its removal
is justified. The Arboricultural Officer has raised concerns with the
removal of Tree T5 which is fully mature, in good health and there
is no arboricultural reason for the loss of this imposing, healthy
tree. The scheme has been assessed to consider whether this
tree could be retained however the retention of the tree would not
be possible in respect of the proposed layout and if it was retained
is unlikely to be maintained during the construction phase.

To mitigate for the loss of this tree it is proposed to incorporate
new tree planting across the whole site as part of the landscaping
scheme. Additionally heavy standard Alders will be planted within
Environmental Area | to compensate for the loss. Alders are native
species which the Arboricultural Officer is satisfied will adequately
compensate for the loss of the Beech Tree.

Community Consultation

In accordance with the Council's Statement of Community
Involvement the applicants along with their agents undertook
consultations with the community prior to submitting the formal
application. This included a ‘Drop In’ session at Fairview Youth
and Community Centre. Both residents and Council’s were invited
to the event and offered the opportunity to comment on the
scheme.

The event was attended by over 44 people and at the event the
proposals were explained to the attendees and their questions
answers. A comments sheet was provided to each attendee and
Places for People are currently in the process of responding to
each of the queries. A copy of these responses will be made



Agenda Page 119 Agenda Iltem 4h

available to the Council. The applicants have stated that the
queries can be resolved and will not result in amendments to the
scheme.

Contamination

The applicants have commissioned a Phase 1 Desk Study in
respect of land contamination at the site which forms part of the
submission. The Council's Waste & Contaminated Land Officer
has reviewed this document and has suggested conditions in
respect of additional requirements for the site. These will be
attached to the recommendation.

Drainage

A number of concerns have been raised in respect of drainage at
the site. The amended landscaping plan proposes to re-route the
ditch to intercept surface water from site discharges into a
proposed pond and overflows will be diverted via a silt trap into
the main surface water drain.

The water course through the site will be culverted. United Utilities
and the Environment Agency have not raised any concerns in
respect of drainage and it is considered that adequate drainage
facilities can be accommodated on the site.

The Council’'s Enforcement Officer and Principal Building Control
Officer has looked into the issue of services to the site and have
confirmed that suitable connections including electricity, gas and
water are provided to the site.

Response to the Neighbours Concerns

As set out above there have been several letters of objection
raising various concerns. A lot of these issues are set out within
the body of the report. In respect of highway safety the scheme
utilises existing residential roads which are suitable for residential
traffic. The scheme incorporates adequate parking for the size of
dwellings proposed and although comments are awaited from the
Highway Engineer he has been involved with this scheme at pre-
application stage.

In respect of the impact on wildlife and ecology as set out above
concerns were raised initially however the landscaping has been
amended and it is considered that the bat population in the area
will be maintained and not adversely impacted on by the proposed
development.

This site was always retained as the affordable housing parcel
associated with the Fairview Farm development and was never
envisaged as being retained as open space. The site will be
owned by Places for People which is a Registered Social Landlord
and the properties will be managed and maintained as affordable
houses available for rent/ intermediate ownership for people
identified on the Council’'s Housing Need register. There is a
significant need for affordable housing within the Borough which
this scheme will contribute to resolving.

As set out above it is not considered that the proposals will
adversely impact on the amenities of the existing or future
residents. De-valuation of properties is not a material planning
consideration. As set out previously there is not a current deficit in
school places within Adlington. The Community Centre and



Agenda Page 120 Agenda Iltem 4h

outdoor play facilities constructed as part of the Fairview
development will also benefit the residents of this scheme as
when the redevelopment of this site was considered this
consideration included this parcel of land.

Conclusion The principle of developing this site for affordable housing was
established over 10 years ago. The proposals represent the most
efficient and effective use of this site taking into account the
constraints.

Recommendation: Permit Full Planning Permission
Conditions

1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of
this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, full details of the
position, height and appearance of all fences and walls to be erected (notwithstanding
any such detail shown on previously submitted plans) shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until
all fences and walls shown in the approved details to bound its plot have been erected in
conformity with the approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved
details shall have been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to
substantial completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development, to provide reasonable
Standards of privacy to residents and in accordance with Policy No. HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

3. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour,
form and texture of all external facing materials to the proposed buildings
(notwithstanding any details shown on the previously submitted plans and specification)
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall only be carried out using the approved external facing materials.
Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality and in
accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan
Review.

4. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the colour,
form and texture of all hard ground- surfacing materials (notwithstanding any such detalil
shown on previously submitted plans and specification) have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be
carried out in conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interest of the visual
amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

5. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the Management
Company and arrangements for the future management and maintenance of the site,
including the Environmental Areas and private parking areas, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall thereafter be
managed by the approved Management Company in accordance with the approved
arrangements.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory management of the private driveways and
Environmental Areas at the site and in accordance with Policies GN5 and TR4 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.



Agenda Page 121 Agenda Iltem 4h

6. No development shall take place until a programme of archaeological work has been
implemented in accordance with a scheme of investigation which has previously been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The site is situated within an area of known archaeological interest and, as
such, the site should be appropriately excavated and the remains recorded and in
accordance with Policy Nos. HT11 and HT12 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local
Plan Review.

7. Prior to the commencement of the development a site investigation and risk
assessment for landfill gas shall be undertaken at the site. The results of the
investigation and risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority in the form of a Site Investigation Report. Thereafter the
development shall be carried out in accordance with the recommended precautionary
measures set out within the report unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of safety and in accordance with Government advice contained
in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control

8. Prior to the commencement of the development a report to identify any potential
sources of contamination on the site and where appropriate, necessary remediation
measures, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The report should include an initial desk study, site walkover and risk assessment. If the
initial study identifies the potential for contamination to exist on site, the scope of a
further study must then be agreed in writing with Local Planning Authority and thereafter
undertaken including details of the necessary remediation measures. The development
shall thereafter only be carried out following the remediation of the site in full accordance
with the measures stipulated in the approved report.

Reason: In the interests of safety and in accordance with Government advice contained
in PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control

9. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of any
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees
or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die,
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning
Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interest of the appearance of the locality and in accordance with Policy
No GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

10. The existing soil levels around the base of the trees to be retained shall not be
altered.

Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP9
of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

11. During the construction period, all trees to be retained shall be protected by 1.2
metre high fencing as specified in paragraph 8.2.2 of British Standard BS5837:2005 at a
distance from the tree trunk equivalent to the outermost limit of the branch spread, or at
a distance from the tree trunk equal to half the height of the tree (whichever is further
from the tree trunk), or as may be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.  No construction materials, spoil, rubbish, vehicles or equipment shall be
stored or tipped within the areas so fenced. All excavations within the area so fenced
shall be carried out by hand.

Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP9
of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

12. Prior to the felling of any trees the bat boxes shall be surveyed to identify the
potential for current usage. If bat usage is identified then the tree shall not be felled until
full mitigation measures to ensure the continued protection of this bat roost have been



Agenda Page 122 Agenda Iltem 4h

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
thereafter shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the continued protection of a protected species. In accordance with
Policy EP4 and Government advice contained in PPS9.

13. Japanese Knotweed is present within the application area. Under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) it is an offence to cause Japanese Knotweed to
grow in the wild. Therefore a programme of control/eradication of this species shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of the development. The programme shall accord with Environment
Agency Guidelines.

Reason: To ensure the eradication of Japanese Knotweed in accordance with the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).

14. Prior to the commencement of the development a habitat creation/enhancement and
management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include details of replacement bird breeding habitat, bat
foraging habitat, stream habitat and native tree planting Thereafter the approved
management plan shall be implemented in full.

Reason: To ensure that the retained and established habitats that contribute to the
Biodiversity Action Plan targets are suitably established and managed. In accordance
with Policy EM1 of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy.

15. The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in conformity with the
proposed ground and building slab levels shown on the approved plans or as may
otherwise be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority before any development
is first commenced.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in the interests of the amenities
of local residents and in accordance with Policy Nos. GN5 and HS4 of the Adopted
Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

16. Surface water must drain separate from the foul and no surface water will be
permitted to discharge to the foul sewerage system.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and in accordance with Policy Nos. EP17 of the
Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

17. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995, (Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A to E), or any Order
amending or revoking and re-enacting that Order, no alterations or extensions shall be
undertaken to the dwellings hereby permitted, or any garage, shed or other outbuilding
erected (other than those expressly authorised by this permission).

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in accordance with Policy No.
HS4 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.

18. The in curtilage parking spaces at plots 22-25 shall be kept freely available for the
parking of cars, notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995.

Reason: To ensure adequate off street parking provision is maintained and thereby
avoid hazards caused by on-street parking and in accordance with Policy RT2 of the
North West Regional Spatial Strategy 2008.

19. Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the proposed new
drainage ditch shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The details shall show how the new watercourse will be designed so as to
replicate a natural feature as far as is possible. The ditch thereafter shall be constructed
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that a varied range of habitats are provided on the site to
compensate for the loss of habitats as a result of the development. In accordance with
Government advice contained in Planning Policy Statement 9: Biodiversity and
Geological Conservation



Agenda Page 123 Agenda Iltem 4h

20. Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed pond,
including a maintenance scheme, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The pond thereafter shall be constructed in accordance with
the approved details.

Reason: To enhance the conservation and biodiversity value of the site and to provide
wildlife habitats to compensate for the loss of biodiversity as a result of the development.
In accordance with Government advice contained in Planning Policy Statement 9:
Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

21. No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a surface
water drainage strategy (including attenuatation of surface discharges from the
development to existing ‘greenfield rates’) has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water drainage scheme shall be completed
in accordance with the approved strategy.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and to prevent flooding and in accordance with
Policy Nos. EP18 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review and in accordance
with Government advice contained in PPS25 Development and Flood Risk

22. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the predicted energy
use of the development expressed in terms of carbon emissions shall be submitted to an
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. If no data specific to the application
is available benchmark data will be acceptable. A schedule should include how energy
efficiency is being addressed, for example, amongst other things through the use of
passive solar design. It will be flexible enough to show the on-site measures to be
installed and implemented so as to reduce carbon emissions in accordance with policy
SR1 of the Sustainable Resources DPD. No development shall commence until the
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details as may be approved shall be implemented and retained in perpetuity unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In line with the objective of National
Planning Policy contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning, the Climate Change
Supplement to PPS1, Policies EM16 and EM17 of the Regional Spatial Strategy and
Chorley Borough Council's Sustainable Resources DPD and Supplementary Planning
Document.

23. Prior to the commencement of the development a scheme which demonstrates and
provides full details of how the design and layout of the buildings will withstand climate
change shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The details shall include details of the proposed Code for Sustainable Homes Level, how
the proposals minimise energy use and maximise energy efficiency. All dwellings
commenced after 1% January 2010 will be required to meet Code Level 3 of the Codes
for Sustainable Homes. The approved details shall be fully implemented and retained in
perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper planning of the area. In accordance with Government
advice contained in Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change -
Supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1 and in accordance with Policies EM16 and
EM17 of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy and Policy SR1 of Chorley Borough
Council's Adopted Sustainable Resources Development Plan Document and
Sustainable Resources Supplementary Planning Document.

24. Prior to the commencement of the development full details of the bridge structure,
required to allow access between plots 27 and 28, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The bridge thereafter shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities and proper development of the site and
in accordance with Policy GN5 of the Adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review.




Agenda Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda liem 4h

[y Q
T35
ttttt
5838 %¢
o
82829

Q. [
eeeee
¥s>EO

Scale:

1:1,250

Agenda Page 125

[
M.m
E S
z o
s 23

O
= Q c
a3

©
08O
25,

——
Oan.vu
Lo
050
0w om
de
x > 0
0OV =
eD.m
M,.mC
w
o O
c O
© O
- =

(]

Grid Ref:

E: 360009
N: 413873

Application No.

09/00714/FULMAJ




Agenda Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



il " \~" 17 Fairview Dr = T L) s
Thr 108.19 B 5 This drawing is the property of Blue Sky Architects and copyright is reserved
. +108.37 ex AN by them. This drawing s notto be copled or disclosed by of 1 any

19 Fairview Dr

N unauthorised persons without the prior written consent of Blus Sky Architects.

Thr 107.68 // .
S Do not scale from this drawing.
Garage %
Thr 106.52 A All dimensions are to be checked on site prior to construction, manufactura of
0008 \\ =" anycomponents and ordering of materials and equipment.
/N\103.48 008A \ . .~ Anydisciepancies are fo be raparied fo the architect or clariication.
. A 106.07 \ Fairview Farm P s E
’ Thr 109.55 All materials and workmanship 1o be In accordance with the current British
o, Standands and codes of praciice.
43 Fairview Dr A 014A
Thr 105.23 41 Fairview Dr 110.10
Thr 105.82
45 Fairview Dr + 4 e L) P
Thr 104.79 /
* 7
,/
47 Fairview Dr
A 0007 49 Fairview Dr Thr 103.67
101.47 Thr10369  +
T 11 Farm Av

Garage 51 Fairview Dr
Thr 102.32

Thr 111.78

+ 51 Fairview Dr
+ Thr 102.47

51 Fairview Dr
Thr 102.46

Garage 53 Fairview Dr
Thr 101.38

_I_

53 Fairview Dr
Thr 101.56

_.|_

1 Byre View

Thr 100.37
+

1 Byre View Garage

Thr 99.77 : : )
+ \\\\\ /,’,/
>
(@]
D
>
o
Q
o
Q
«Q
t o)
—
N
\l
6 8 Carlisle PI
Thr 110.12
+

2 4 Carlisle PI

6 Meadow View
Thr 97.44 i . o &Y _ ‘ s 2 Thr 110.12
+ ¢ ~ (&) i P ¥108.78 ex +
2 4 Carlisle Pl
Thr 110.11

+

30 32 The Avenue

28 The Avenue +
22 24 The Avenue

Garages o e Thr 106.83 26 The Avenue
Thr 98.42 + Thr 105.19 LA S Thr 106.82 A
s A Thr 108.05 20 The Avenue .
ki ded to Plots 24 & 2¢
Thr 109.20 18 20 The Averue C 131009 GL Reargardens and parking amen
Thr 109.08 B 121009 GL Reargarden boundary to Plot 33 amended back to

as originally proposed.
A 28/09/09 GL Amended in accordance with Planner's comments:

Plots 21 - 28 amended.

Rear garden boundary reduced to Plot 33.
ey de dawnby commenis
client

PFP Developments Ltd
project
Fairview Farm, Adlington
11 Field Rose Ct N = drawing
Thr 98.95 | B w 0003 Proposed Sit Layout
004C E = /M 105.47
98.83 A 15 = drawing number scale
. = 2640GM02/00 1:250
] -] 29 31 The Avenue Trees : d by
i Thr 104.76 Tenure: plots 17,18,19,20,28,29 and 30 are for sale revision awn
e h D a:l:::er:mpemes for rent 1 - Trunk outside site, root protection area to be protected. C GM
Thr99.47  + = W= ] + 2 Tree retained, root protection area to be protected.
_ ~ == 03.88 ex 3 Tree retained, root protection area to be protected. date cad reference
15 Field Rose Ct ., i 2m high fence 4 Trees to be removed. 17/04/108 2640GMI02 Site Layout
Thr 100.29 + 101.0 1.5m high fence with gates 5 B Trees to be removed. >
6 - Tree stumps to be removed. Q@
= 7 - Tree retained, root protection area to be protected.
16 Field Rose Ct 8 - Trunk outside site. = g
Thr10066 | 9 - Trunkoutside site. : o3
10 -  Treeretained, root protection area to be protected. ' Y
11 - Tree retained, root protection area to be protected.
103 Fairview Dr o L e architects T
Thr 101.59 Existing Acos ) 14 - Trnkoutside site. 3
Retained 15 -  Treeto be removed. Bullding 1000 Kings Reach Yew Street Stockpoit SK4 2HG
0042 t 01614750220 g
A 10189 f 01614771748
) w  www.blueskyinspired.co.uk
offices also in Accrington

96 Fairview Dr




Agenda Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 129 Agenda ltem 5

Cheor Ieg

Council

Corporate Director (Business) Development Control Committee 08-12-2009

PLANNING APPEALS AND DECISIONS - NOTIFICATION

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To advise Committee of appeal notifications and decisions received from the Planning
Inspectorate and notification of decisions received from Lancashire County Council and
other bodies between 29" October and 25" November 2009.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2. That the report be noted.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

3.  This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Put Chorley at the heart of regional Develop local solutions to climate

economic development in the Central change.

Lancashire sub-region

Improving equality of opportunity and Develop the Character and feel of

life chances Chorley as a good place to live

Involving people in their communities Ensure Chorley Borough Council is a | X
performing organization

PLANNING APPEALS LODGED
4. None
PLANNING APPEALS DISMISSED

5.  Appeal by Mr N V Nalbandh and Trekgate Ltd against the delegated decision to refuse
planning permission for the change of use to a hot food takeaway at 8 High Street, Chorley
(Application No. 08/01020/COU).

PLANNING APPEALS ALLOWED

6. None

PLANNING APPEALS WITHDRAWN

Updated Template November 2008



Agenda Page 130 Agenda ltem 5

7. Appeal by Wainhomes Developments Ltd against the Development Control Committee
decision to refuse planning permission for the amendment to previously approved layout
(08/00203/FULMAJ) and erection of 7 detached houses/infrastructure on adjacent plot at

605 Preston Road, Clayton-le-Woods (Application No. 09/00150/FUL).

ENFORCEMENT APPEALS LODGED

8. None

ENFORCEMENT APPEALS DISMISSED

9. None

ENFORCEMENT APPEALS ALLOWED

10. None

ENFORCEMENT APPEALS WITHDRAWN

11. None

LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL DECISIONS

12. None

GOVERNMENT OFFICE DECISIONS

13. None

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

14. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Corporate

Directors’ comments are included:

Finance Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal No significant implications in this
area
J E MEEK
CORPORATE DIRECTOR (BUSINESS)
Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
Louise Taylor 5220 29/10/2009

Background Papers

Document | Date | File

Place of Inspection




Agenda Page 131

Agenda Item 5

Letter from the Planning
Inspectorate

17/11/09

12/11/09

08/01020/COU

09/00150/FUL

Civic Offices, Union
Street, Chorley or on
line at
www.chorley.gov.uk/
planning




Agenda Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



Report

Agenda Page 133

Agenda ltem 6a

Cher Ieg

Council

Report of

Corporate Director
(Business)

Meeting

Development Control Committee

08.12.2009

PLANNING APPLICATIONS DECIDED BY THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR
(BUSINESS), THE CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE ON 25

NOVEMBER 2009

Application = Recommendation

No.

09/00598/TPO  Consent for Tree
Works

09/00630/FUL  Permit Full Planning
Permission

09/00784/FUL Permit retrospective
planning permission

Location

5 Blossom Grove Whittle-Le-
Woods Lancashire

6 Blossom Grove Whittle-Le-
Woods Chorley Lancashire PR6
7HB

3 Springside Gardens Whittle-
Le-Woods Chorley Lancashire
PR6 7DL

Proposal

Pruning of tree's in the rear of the
garden covered by TPO7 (Whittle
Le Woods) 1996

Amendment to the original
planning permission for the site
(Ref No. 07/01285/FUL)
comprising of a double garage
building split between plot 6 (6
Blossom Grove) and plot 7 (7
Blossom Grove) and attached to
plot 6 (6 Blossom Grove)

Retrospective application for the
insertion of an additional window
to the master bedroom in the first
floor north facing elevation of the
dwelling on plot 5 approved by
planning permission no.
07/01424/FUL



Agenda Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 135 Agenda ltem 6b

Report Chorley

Council

Report of

Meeting

Corporate Director

(Business) Development Control Committee

08/12/09

PLANNING APPLICATIONS DECIDED BY THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR

(BUSINESS), THE CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE 24
November 2009

Application  Recommendation Location
No.

09/00766/FUL Permit Full Planning
Permission

Proposal

Doorway To Value 50 Preston Extension to north elevation of
Road Whittle-Le-Woods Chorley  existing furniture showroom
PR6 7HH



Agenda Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 137 Agenda ltem 6¢

Report Chorley

Council

Report of Meeting
Corporate Director
(Business) Development Control Committee 08/12/2009

PLANNING APPLICATIONS DECIDED BY THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR

(BUSINESS), THE CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE 20"
NOVEMBER 2009

Application = Recommendation Location Proposal
No.
09/00615/FUL  Permit (Subjectto  Spring Cottage Crosse Hall Fold

Conversion of existing garage to
Legal Agreement)  Chorley Lancashire PR6 9AD

dwelling unit, including increase
in height of ridge and eaves and
provision of front and rear
dormers



Agenda Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 139 Agenda ltem 6d

Report Chorley

Council

Report of Meeting

Corporate Director
(Business) Development Control Committee 08.12.2009

PLANNING APPLICATIONS DECIDED BY THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR

(BUSINESS), THE CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE ON 10
NOVEMBER 2009

Application Recommendation Location Proposal
No.
09/00720/FUL Permit Full Planning Park At Fell View Chorley Regeneration of an existing green
Permission space and play area, including

minor earthworks, new play
equipment, stone park pedestrian
entrance features and lighting
columns

09/00733/FUL Permit Full Planning  Gatesgarth Quaker Brook Lane  Erection of Replacement Dwelling
Permission Hoghton Lancashire PR5 0JA



Agenda Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 141 Agenda ltem 7

Chor Ieg

Council

Report of Meeting

Corporate Director

(Business) Development Control Committee 08.12.2009

List of Applications Determined by the Corporate Director (Business) Under
Delegated Powers

Between 29" October and 25™ November 2009

Plan Ref 09/00610/FUL Date Received 29.07.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Adlington & Date Decided 09.11.2009
Anderton
Proposal: New timber framed conservatory at rear of dwelling, removal of temporary metal

chimney flue and build new stone chimney
Location : Tan Pits Farm New Road Anderton Lancashire PR6 9HG
Applicant:  Mr Michael Lally Tan Pits Farm New Road Anderton Lancashire PR6 9HG

Plan Ref 09/00611/LBC Date Received 29.07.2009 Decision Grant
Listed
Building
Consent
Ward: Adlington & Date Decided 09.11.2009
Anderton
Proposal: New timber framed conservatory at rear of dwelling, removal of temporary metal

chimney flue and build new stone chimney
Location : Tan Pits Farm New Road Anderton Lancashire PR6 9HG
Applicant:  Mr Michael Lally Tan Pits Farm New Road Anderton Lancashire PR6 9HG

Plan Ref 09/00648/FUL Date Received 12.08.2009 Decision Refuse Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Heath Charnock Date Decided 12.11.2009
And Rivington

Proposal :  Erection of a first floor extension over the garage with two storey link to existing
dwelling

Location : 14 Flag Lane Heath Charnock Chorley PR6 9ED

Applicant:  Mr Hanif Ahmed 14 Flag Lane Heath Charnock Chorley Lancs PR6 9ED

Continued....



Agenda Page 142 Agenda ltem 7

Plan Ref 09/00669/TPO Date Received 24.08.2009 Decision Consent
for Tree
Works
Ward: Chisnall Date Decided 09.11.2009
Proposal :  Felling of Beech tree and pruning of yew at 31A Church Lane, Charnock Richard

Location : 31A Church Lane Charnock Richard Chorley PR7 3RB
Applicant:  Mr Tony Lawson 31A Roundell House Church Lane Charnock Richard Chorley PR7

3RB
Plan Ref 09/00676/ADV Date Received 26.08.2009 Decision Advertising
Consent
Ward: Clayton-le-Woods Date Decided 29.10.2009
West And
Cuerden
Proposal :  Display of illuminated fascia sign, built up lettering illuminated by trough lighting to
front and side of building, projection sign to front of building and two banner signs to
car park

Location: 28 Pendle Road Leyland PR25 5TU
Applicant:  Mr Philip Coffey Tesco Stores Ltd Cirrus Building B Po Box 400 Shire Park Welwyn
Garden City Hertfordshire

Plan Ref 09/00681/FUL Date Received 28.08.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Chorley North Date Decided 29.10.2009
East
Proposal :  Installation of a steel storage unit

Location : Unit C4 Chorley North Industrial Park Drumhead Road Chorley PR6 7BX
Applicant:  Mr Andy Gossett Unit C4 Chorley North Industrial Park Drumhead Road Chorley

PR6 7BX
Plan Ref 09/00683/FUL Date Received 01.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Clayton-le-Woods Date Decided 02.11.2009
And Whittle-le-
Woods
Proposal:  Side Extension

Location : North Bank Farm Hill Top Lane Whittle-Le-Woods Chorley PR6 7QS
Applicant:  Mr J Dixon North Bank Farm Hill Top Lane Whittle-Le-Woods Chorley PR6 7QS




Agenda Page 143 Agenda ltem 7

Plan Ref 09/00691/FUL Date Received 03.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Clayton-le-Woods Date Decided 29.10.2009
And Whittle-le-
Woods
Proposal:  Two-storey side extension

Location: 33 Clover Field Clayton-Le-Woods Chorley PR6 7RR
Applicant:  Miss Lisa Pye 33 Clover Field Clayton-le-Woods Preston Lancashire PR6 7RR
United Kingdom

Plan Ref 09/00694/FUL Date Received 04.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Eccleston And Date Decided 25.11.2009
Mawdesley
Proposal : Demolition of existing single storey extension to rear, erection of new single storey

extension to rear and conversion of stable into granny annexe.
Location : Bridge House Towngate Eccleston Chorley PR7 6ND
Applicant:  Mr R Thompson Bridge House Towngate Eccleston Chorley PR7 6ND

Plan Ref 09/00695/CLEUD Date Received 04.09.2009 Decision Grant Cert
of
Lawfulness
for Est Use
Ward: Adlington & Date Decided 30.10.2009
Anderton
Proposal :  Certificate of Lawfulness for the stationing of 4 caravans for residential use

Location : Allanson Hall Farm Westhoughton Road Adlington Chorley PR7 4DG
Applicant:  Mr K Manley Allanson Hall Farm Westhoughton Road Adlington Chorley PR7 4DG

Plan Ref 09/00704/FUL Date Received 07.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission

Ward: Date Decided 25.11.2009

Proposal :  Erection of a detached dwelling with detached garage

Location : Plot 3 Land South Of Crosse Hall Lodge Crosse Hall Fold Chorley Lancashire
Applicant:  Mr L Hardy Crosse Hall Lodge Crosse Hall Fold Chorley Lancashire

Plan Ref 09/00705/TPO Date Received 08.09.2009 Decision Consent
for Tree
Works
Ward: Heath Charnock Date Decided 20.11.2009
And Rivington

Proposal : Tree works at the Roundhouse, Rawlinson Lane, Heath Charnock

Location : 81 Rawlinson Lane Heath Charnock Chorley Lancashire PR7 4DE

Applicant:  Mr Michael J Halloran 81 The Round House Rawlinson Lane Heath Charnock
Chorley Lancashire PR7 4DE




Agenda Page 144 Agenda ltem 7

Plan Ref 09/00706/FUL Date Received 08.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Astley And Date Decided 18.11.2009
Buckshaw

Proposal :  Application to vary condition 2 of planning approval 09/00166/COU to allow opening
of Doctors Surgery between 8am and 8.30pm on Mondays and Thursdays and
between 8am and 1pm on Saturdays

Location:  The Lodge Oakbridge Drive Buckshaw Village Lancashire

Applicant:  Miss Noreen Hounslea Central Lancashire PCT Jubilee House Lancashire Business
Park Centurian Way Leyland PR26 6TR

Plan Ref 09/00707/FUL Date Received 08.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Wheelton And Date Decided 09.11.2009
Withnell
Proposal :  Installation of velux roof light on south east elevation

Location : 30 Withnell Fold Chorley Lancashire PR6 8BA
Applicant:  Mr Mary Serjeant 30 Withnell Fold Chorley Lancashire PR6 8BA

Plan Ref 09/00709/FUL Date Received 09.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission

Ward: Pennine Date Decided 09.11.2009

Proposal :  Rear conservatory

Location : Land Adjacent Springside Farm Plot 2 Moss Lane Whittle-Le-Woods Lancashire
Applicant:  Mr Mark Preedy 3 Cypress Close Clayton-Le-Woods Leyland PR25 5TY

Plan Ref 09/00710/FUL Date Received 09.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Eccleston And Date Decided 12.11.2009
Mawdesley
Proposal :  Single storey extension to side of dwellling
Location : Barretts House Farm Back Lane East Mawdesley Ormskirk L40 3TA

Applicant:  Mr & Mrs Wignall Barretts House Farm Back Lane East Mawdesley Ormskirk L40
3TA




Agenda Page 145 Agenda ltem 7

Plan Ref 09/00711/LBC Date Received 09.09.2009 Decision Grant
Listed
Building
Consent
Ward: Eccleston And Date Decided 12.11.2009
Mawdesley
Proposal :  Single storey extension to side of dwellling

Location:  Barretts House Farm Back Lane East Mawdesley Ormskirk L40 3TA
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Wignall Barretts House Farm Back Lane East Mawdesley Ormskirk L40

3TA
Plan Ref 09/00712/FUL Date Received 09.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Clayton-le-Woods Date Decided 06.11.2009
And Whittle-le-
Woods
Proposal :  Conversion of existing garage to living accommodation including addition of bay

window and extension of existing canopy. Erection of new attached garage to side
(including dormer window to front to create accommodation in roof space).
Location: 33 Harvest Drive Whittle-Le-Woods Chorley PR6 7QL
Applicant:  Michael Oleary 33 Harvest Drive Whittle Le Woods Chorley Lancashire Pr6 7ql
United Kingdom

Plan Ref 09/00724/FUL Date Received 09.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission

Ward: Pennine Date Decided 09.11.2009

Proposal :  Single storey rear extension

Location : 3 Mottram Close Whittle-Le-Woods Chorley PR6 7GX
Applicant:  Mr & Mrs Smith 3 Mottram Close Whittle-le-Woods Chorley Lancashire PR6 7GX

Plan Ref 09/00716/FUL Date Received 10.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Coppull Date Decided 29.10.2009

Proposal :  Erection of security railings and gates to east and west entrances of subway

Location : Subway Between Station Road And Spendmore Lane Coppull Lancashire

Applicant: Mr Kenneth Ball Coppull Parish Council 78 Chapel Lane Coppull Chorley
Lancashire PR7 4PN




Agenda Page 146 Agenda ltem 7

Plan Ref 09/00717/FUL Date Received 10.09.2009 Decision Permit
retrospecti
ve planning
permission

Ward: Wheelton And Date Decided 04.11.2009

Withnell
Proposal :  Retrospective application for the replacement of existing fence and hedge with 1.8m
high fence.

Location: 5 Windsor Drive Brinscall Chorley PR6 8PX
Applicant:  Mr William Landon 5 Windsor Drive Brinscall Chorley PR6 8PX

Plan Ref 09/00596/PAR Date Received 11.09.2009 Decision Agricultural
Prior
Approval
granted

Ward: Lostock Date Decided 29.10.2009

Proposal :  Proposed agricultural building

Location : Land 185m South Of 185 South Road And 190m East Of Back Lane Farm Back
Lane Bretherton Lancashire
Applicant:  Geoffrey Smith Back Lane Farm Back Lane Bretherton Lancashire

Plan Ref 09/00719/TPO Date Received 11.09.2009 Decision Consent
for Tree
Works
Ward: Clayton-le-Woods Date Decided 20.11.2009
And Whittle-le-
Woods
Proposal :  Pruning of 3 Poplar trees at Greenlands, Parkside Drive South, Whittle Le Woods
Location : Greenlands Parkside Drive South Whittle-le-Woods Chorley Lancashire

Applicant:  Mr Howard Short 3 Hardacre Lane Whittle-Le-Woods Chorley PR6 7PQ

Plan Ref 09/00720/FUL Date Received 11.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission

Ward: Chorley East Date Decided 11.11.2009

Proposal : Regeneration of an existing green space and play area, including minor earthworks,

new play equipment, stone park pedestrian entrance features and lighting columns
Location : Park At Fell View Chorley
Applicant:  Mr lan Campbell Places For People 8th Floor, Paragon House 48 Seymour Grove
Old Trafford Manchester M16 OLN England




Agenda Page 147 Agenda ltem 7

Plan Ref 09/00723/FUL Date Received 14.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Chorley South Date Decided 09.11.2009
West
Proposal:  Rear conservatory

Location : 34 Ullswater Road Chorley PR7 2JB
Applicant:  Ms Deborah Ramsden 34 Ullswater Road Chorley PR7 2JB

Plan Ref 09/00726/ADV Date Received 15.09.2009 Decision Refuse
advertising
consent

Ward: Clayton-le-Woods Date Decided 10.11.2009

West And
Cuerden
Proposal :  Display of an externally illuminated pole mounted gantry sign

Location : 28 Pendle Road Leyland PR25 5TU
Applicant:  Tesco Mr Phil Coffey Cirrus Building B PO BOX 400 Shire Park Welwyn Garden
City Hertfordshire England

Plan Ref 09/00729/FUL Date Received 16.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission

Ward: Chisnall Date Decided 12.11.2009

Proposal :  Erection of replacement dwelling

Location : Hurst House Farm Halfpenny Lane Heskin Chorley PR7 5PR
Applicant:  Mr Paul Ainscough Hurst House Farm Halfpenny Lane Heskin Chorley PR7 5PR

Plan Ref 09/00733/FUL Date Received 18.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Brindle And Date Decided 11.11.2009
Hoghton
Proposal :  Erection of Replacement Dwelling

Location : Gatesgarth Quaker Brook Lane Hoghton Lancashire PR5 0JA
Applicant:  Mr T McDonnell 319 Higher Walton Road Higher Walton Preston PR5 4HU

Plan Ref 09/00740/FUL Date Received 22.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Chorley North Date Decided 17.11.2009
West
Proposal :  Erection of a car port to the side of the dwelling and a singe storey rear extension

Location: 33 Rylands Road Chorley PR7 2DN
Applicant:  Mr Zubair Essa 33 Rylands Road Chorley PR7 2DN




Agenda Page 148 Agenda ltem 7

Plan Ref 09/00746/ADV Date Received 25.09.2009 Decision Advertising
Consent
Ward: Chorley North Date Decided 20.11.2009
West
Proposal :  Provision of non-illuminated projecting sign

Location: Age Concern 61 - 63 St Thomas's Road Chorley PR7 1JE
Applicant:  Mrs Eileen Platt Age Concern Lancashire 61 - 63 St Thomas's Road Chorley PR7

1JE
Plan Ref 09/00747/FUL Date Received 25.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission

Ward: Heath Charnock Date Decided 20.11.2009
And Rivington

Proposal :  Replacement poultry rearing building
Location : Hall O'Th Hill Farm Chorley Road Heath Charnock Chorley Lancashire
Applicant:  Mr Richard Riley Hall O'Th Hill Farm Chorley Road Heath Charnock Chorley

Plan Ref 09/00755/TCON Date Received 29.09.2009 Decision No
objection to
Tree
Works

Ward: Lostock Date Decided 20.11.2009

Proposal :  Works to Laurel Tree

Location : 1 Hall Cottages Grape Lane Croston Leyland PR26 9HB
Applicant:  Mr & Mrs Edgehill 1 Hall Cottages Grape Lane Croston Leyland PR26 9HB

Plan Ref 09/00756/ADV Date Received 29.09.2009 Decision Advertising
Consent
Ward: Chorley South Date Decided 24.11.2009
West
Proposal :  Provision of illuminated projecting sign

Location : 154 Pall Mall Chorley Lancashire PR7 2LD
Applicant:  Totesport Douglas House Chapel Lane Wigan WN3 8HS

Plan Ref 09/00759/FUL Date Received 30.09.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Clayton-le-Woods Date Decided 24.11.2009
North

Proposal :  Rear extension to from additional bedrooms and relocation of existing conservatory

Location : Brookside Care Home 722 Preston Road Clayton-Le-Woods Preston Lancashire

Applicant:  Mr K Stevens Brookside Care Home 722 Preston Road Clayton-Le-Woods Preston
Lancashire PR5 6AJ




Agenda Page 149 Agenda ltem 7

Plan Ref 09/00760/CTY Date Received 01.10.2009 Decision No
objection to
LCC Reg
3/4
Application
Ward: Heath Charnock Date Decided 06.11.2009
And Rivington

Proposal :  Creation of two fishing pond pathways additional car parking and office/toilet block
Location : Land 190m North Of Holland Lodge Long Lane Heath Charnock Chorley PR6 9EF
Applicant:  Mr Daniels 114 Preston Road Chorley Lancashire PR7 1PT

Plan Ref 09/00761/FUL Date Received 01.10.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission

Ward: Euxton South Date Decided 20.11.2009

Proposal : Lean to extension to agricultural building

Location : Rosehill Farm Dean Hall Lane Euxton Chorley Lancashire

Applicant: Mr John Ashcroft Rose Hill Farm Dean Hall Lane Euxton Chorley PR7 6ER

Plan Ref 09/00766/FUL Date Received 01.10.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission

Ward: Pennine Date Decided 25.11.2009

Proposal :  Extension to north elevation of existing furniture showroom

Location : Doorway To Value 50 Preston Road Whittle-Le-Woods Chorley PR6 7HH
Applicant:  Mr Michael Long Doorway To Value Preston Road Whittle Le Woods Chorley PR6

7HH
Plan Ref 09/00773/FUL Date Received 02.10.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Heath Charnock  Date Decided 20.11.2009
And Rivington
Proposal :  Construction of a camp fire circle and pipe maze
Location : Bibbys Farm Back Lane Heath Charnock Lancashire PR6 9DL
Applicant:  Bolton Scout Trust C/o Agent
Plan Ref 09/00779/AGR Date Received 02.10.2009 Decision Prior App
not
required -
Agr
Ward: Brindle And Date Decided 10.11.2009
Hoghton
Proposal :  Erection of an agricultural storage building

Location : Land 90m South East Of Crossfields Cottage Bury Lane Withnell Lancashire
Applicant:  Mr Peter & Dawn Stringfellow 10 Salisbury Road Brinscall Chorley PR6 8RF




Agenda Page 150 Agenda ltem 7

Plan Ref 09/00789/FUL Date Received 09.10.2009 Decision Permit Full
Planning
Permission
Ward: Chorley South Date Decided 20.11.2009
West
Proposal: Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of new conservatory

Location : 99 Draperfield Chorley Lancashire PR7 3PN
Applicant:  Mr Jennings 99 Draperfield Chorley PR7 3PN

Plan Ref 09/00856/CTY Date Received 30.10.2009 Decision No
objection to
LCC Reg
3/4
Application
Ward: Lostock Date Decided 24.11.2009
Proposal: Creation/extension to school based adventure ftrail incorporating 6 agility play
pieces
Location:  Trinity And St Michaels Church Aided Primary School Out Lane Croston Leyland
Lancashire

Applicant:




Agenda Page 151 Agenda ltem 8

Cheorley

Council

Report of

Meeting

Corporate Director of

Development Control Committee
Governance

08/12/09

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 - SECTION 257
PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER RE: PART OF
PUBLIC FOOTPATH NO 6, ADLINGTON

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To consider an application submitted by Dickinson Dees Solicitors on behalf Places for
People Ltd, for the diversion of part of Public Footpath No. 6, Adlington, in order to
facilitate the development of an affordable housing scheme.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2. That the making of a Public Path Diversion Order pursuant to Section 257 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990, be approved, subject to the grant of planning permission,
in respect of a 158.7 metre length of Footpath No. 6, Adlington, so as to enable the
carrying out of development.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3. To facilitate the carrying out of development subject to the grant of planning permission in
accordance with Part Il of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

4. To have rejected the application would have been to compromise the proposed scheme of
development in that a right-of-way would continue to subsist on the land concerned and
therefore be exercisable in law across the site of 11 proposed properties.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

This report does not relate to any of the following Strategic Objectives:

Put Chorley at the heart of regional
economic development in the
central Lancashire sub region

Improved access to public services

Improving equality of opportunity
and life chance

Develop the character and feel of
Chorley as a good place to live

Involving People in their
Communities

Ensure Chorley is a performing
Organisation

Updated Template July 2007




Agenda Page 152 Agenda ltem 8

BACKGROUND

6.

Public Footpath No. 6 Adlington runs from the western end of Farm Avenue in a south-
westerly direction across an undeveloped expanse of open land to Fairview Drive, and
thence along the footway (i.e. “pavement”) of Fairview Drive, onto which the remaining
length of Footpath No. 6 has already been provisionally diverted as a consequence of a
Public Path Diversion Order made on 21 January 2004 under Section 257, Town and
Country Planning Act 1990. The land over which the Footpath runs was formerly pasture
land belonging to Fairview Farm extending down to the pedestrian level-crossing on the
Preston to Manchester line. The bulk of the land was subsequently developed as a private
residential estate, Fairview Drive, initially by Westbury Homes and then subsequently by
Persimmon.

It was always intended that the small parcel of land sandwiched between the new
residential estate and Farm Avenue should be developed for low cost housing and such a
scheme was brought forward in 1999, entailing the diversion of Footpath No. 6. Although
the Council on that occasion approved the making of a Diversion Order, the low-cost
housing scheme put forward at that time did not progress and in the end the wider
development proceeded ahead of the proposed low-cost scheme. The Order approved at
that time was therefore not pursued to completion. A new scheme has now been drawn
up by Places for People Ltd, (constituted as an Industrial and Provident Society) for the
construction of 36 properties.

DETAILS OF PROPOSAL

8.

The length of footpath forming the subject of the application runs for a total distance of
158.7 metres from the western termination of Farm Avenue in a south-westerly direction
to the rear north-west corner of No. 32 The Avenue and thence in a south-south-westerly
direction to the front north-western corner of no. 96 Fairview Drive. The Footpath
thereafter runs along the footway fronting nos. 90, 92, 94 and 96.

The proposed diversion, running for a total length of 174 metres, would run from the
western termination of Farm Avenue and thence in a generally south-westerly and thence
southerly direction along the pavement serving the new affordable housing scheme to the
front north-western corner of no. 96 Fairview Drive. Although the diversion comprises a
slightly longer route, it is not significantly different in extent or direction to the existing
route. The end effect of the proposal would also, of course, result in the Footpath being
encompassed within a fully urbanised environment

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

10. This report does not have any implications in relation to the following areas:
Finance Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal

A DOCHERTY

CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE

Background Papers

Document Date File Place of Inspection

Letter from Dickinson Dees
Solicitors together with map

9 November 2009 4002 Town Hall, Chorley




Agenda Page 153 Agenda ltem 8

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID

G Fong 5169 27 November 2007




Agenda Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 155 Agenda ltem 9

Cheorley

Council

Report of Meeting

Corporate Director of

Development Control Committee 08/12/09
Governance

PROPOSED CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To consider formal confirmation of the Tree Preservation Orders as detailed below.
RECOMMENDATION(S)
2. That the following Tree Preservation Orders be formally confirmed withoutmodification:

(1) The Chorley Borough Council Tree Preservation Order No. 1 (Eccleston) 2009;
(2) The Chorley Borough Council Tree Preservation Order No. 2 (Euxton) 2009.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

2. Formal confirmation of the Orders affords permanent as opposed to provisional legal
protection on the trees covered by those Orders.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

3. No alternatives were considered. Not to have confirmed the Orders would have meant
allowing the Orders, and thereby the protection conferred on the trees covered by those
Orders, to lapse.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

4, This report does not relate to any of the following Strategic Objectives:

Put Chorley at the heart of regional
economic development in the
central Lancashire sub region

Improved access to public services

Improving equality of opportunity
and life chance

Develop the character and feel of
Chorley as a good place to live

Involving People in their
Communities

Ensure Chorley is a performing
Organisation

BACKGROUND

5. No objections have been received in response to the making of the above Orders. It is
therefore, now open to the Council to confirm the above Orders as unopposed QuEiEr

Updated Template July 2007 o



Agenda Page 156 Agenda ltem 9

The effect of formally confirming the Orders will be to give permanent legal force to the
Orders, as opposed to provisional force, thereby making it an offence on a permanent
basis to fell or otherwise lop, prune etc, any of the trees covered by the Orders without
first having obtained lawful permission.

DETAILS OF PROPOSALS

6. The following Orders were made and served on all those with an interest
(owner/occupiers etc.) in the land on which the trees are situated on the dates stated for
the following purposes:

(i) The Chorley Borough Council Tree Preservation Order No. 1 (Eccleston) 2009,
made on 17 February 2009; to protect 22 trees on land surrounding the site of
Sagar House, The Green, Eccleston.

(i) The Chorley Borough Council Tree Preservation Order No. 2 (Euxton) 2009, made
on 3 March 2009 to protect 9 trees situated on land within the garden areas of no.
53 Wigan Road, Euxton.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT

7. This report does not have any implications in relation to any of the following areas:
Finance Customer Services
Human Resources Equality and Diversity
Legal

A DOCHERTY

CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE

There are no background papers to this report.

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
27 November
G Fong 5169 2009




Chofley  Chorley BA9BPERPAYSISon) 20688Nd2 I
/

= Drdnance
2 Survey’

Council

N

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (¢) copyright. | 1 . 1 2 5 O
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. .
Chorley Borough Councii 100018509 (2008)



srley Chorley B@

Council

Che

aPagelad

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (c) copyright. 1 . 500
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may iead to prosecution or civil proceedings. =
Chorley Borough Councit 100018509 (2009)



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Planning applications awaiting decision
	4a 09/00640/FUL - 4, Ewell Close, Chorley
	Item 1 0900640FUL(1).pdf
	Item 1 0900640FUL(2).pdf
	Item 1 0900640FUL(3).pdf

	4b 09/00708/FUL - Land 15m West of 176A Wood Lane, Heskin, Lancashire
	Item 2 0900708FUL(1).pdf
	Item 2 0900708FUL(2).pdf

	4c 09/00780/FUL - Land 50m South of 54 to 64 Lancaster Lane, Clayton-le-Woods, Lancashire
	Item 3 0900780FUL(1).pdf
	Item 3 0900780FUL(2).pdf

	4d 09/00873/FUL - Orcheton House Farm, Wood Lane, Heskin, Lancashire, PR7 5PA
	Item 4 0900873FUL(1).pdf
	Item 4 0900873FUL(2).pdf

	4e 09/00850/FUL - Formerly Multipart Distribution Limited, Pilling Lane, Chorley
	Item 5 0900850FUL(1).pdf
	Item 5 0900850FUL(2).pdf

	4f 09/00745/FULMAJ - Quarry Road Industrial Estate, Quarry Road, Chorley
	Item 6 0900745FULMAJ(1).pdf
	Item 6 0900745FULMAJ(2).pdf

	4g 09/00749/FULMAJ - Land between Froom Street and Crosse Hall Lane, Chorley
	Item 7 09000749FULMAJ(1).pdf
	Item 7 09000749FULMAJ(2).pdf

	4h 09/00714/FULMAJ - Land adjacent to Fairview Farm (including land bounded by Chorley Road, Eller Brook and railway), Chorley Road, Adlington
	Item 8 0900714FULMAJ(1).pdf
	Item 8 0900714FULMAJ(2).pdf

	5 Planning Appeals Notification Report
	6a Planning applications delegated on 25 November 2009
	6b Planning applications delegated on 24 November 2009
	6c Planning applications delegated on 20 November 2009
	6d Planning applications delegated on 10 November 2009
	7 Delegated Decisions determined by the Corporate Director (Business)
	8 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - Section 257 Public Path Diversion Order - Part of Public Footpath No. 6, Adlington
	9 Proposed Confirmation of Tree Preservation Orders
	Appendix


